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NOTICE OF 34 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34" Annual General Meeting [AGM] of the Members of MAYUR
LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED will be held on Monday, 18th day of November, 2019 at 02:00
P.M. at its Registered Office at G-60-62 & 67-69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaitpura - 303704,
Jaipur (Rajasthan) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the
consolidated financial statements) of the Company for the year ended 31" March, 2019 and
together with the reports ofthe Auditors and the Board ofdirectors thereon.

2, To appoint Director in place of Mr. Rajendra Kumar Poddar (DIN: 00143571), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. TO AUTHORISE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO BORROW FUND THROUGH SALE.
LEASE OR MORTGAGE THE ASSET OF THE COMPANY UNDER SECTION 180 (1] {A)
OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the followin g resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and the Articles of Association of the
Company, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company (herein after referred to as “the Board"which term shall be deemed to include
any Committee of the Board) to sell, lease or otherwise dispose off the immovable property
of the company situated at G-60-62 & 67-69, JAITPURA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE JAIPUR-
303704 (RAJ) with all its rights in favor of any person on terms and conditions as decided
by board of director in the interest of the company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to sign
and execute all such documents, deeds and writings and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto which may require for
dispose the property as mention above."

4, CHAGNE INREGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY WITHIN THE SAME STATE

"RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 12 and 110 and other provisions of
Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules applicable, if any, (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), and subject to the
approval of Statutory authorities including inter-alia or Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
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such other approvals, permissions and sanctions, if required, consent of the Members of
the Company be and is hereby accorded for shifting of Registered Office of the Company
from its present location at G-60-62 & 67-69, JAITPURA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE JAIPUR-
303704 (RAJ) to B-5, Vrindavan Apartments, Vrindavan Vihar, King's Road, Jaipur-
302019 (Raj.) under the jurisdiction of Shyam Nagar Police Station, Kings Rd, Nirman
Nagar, Jaipur-302019, Rajasthan.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable and to settle any question,
difficulty, doubt that may arise in respect of the shifting of registered office aforesaid and
further to do all such acts, deeds and things and to execute all documents and writings as
maybe necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MAYUR LEATHER FPRODUCTS LIMITED

FLACE: JAITPURA, JAIPUR
DATE: 24" September, 2019 Sd/f
HEENA LAKHANI

COMPANY SECRETARY
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NOTES:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)
7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

The relative Explanatory Statements pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to the special businesses set outin the Notice are annexed.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(THE “MEETING/AGM" ) ISENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF
THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM SHOULD BE LODGED WITH THE COMPANY AT
ITS REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.,

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY
AND HOLDINGIN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMEER
HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE FERSON AS PROXY
AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative toattend and vote on their behalf atthe Meeting.
Additional Information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock
Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the Annual
General Meeting, form an integral partof the notice.

In terms of Articles of Association of the Company, read with Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Rajendra Kumar Poddar (DIN: 00143571), Director of the company, retire by
rotation at the ensuing Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for reappointment. The
Board of Directors of the Company recommends this re-appointment.

Members /Proxies and Authorised representatives attending the meeting should bring
their copy ofannualreportand theattendance slip dulyfilled to attend the Meeting.
Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint
holder who is higher in the order of thenames willbe entitled to vote.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their ClientID and
DP ID Numbers and those who hold shares in a physical form are requested to write their
Folio Number in the Attendance Slip for attending the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer B ooks of the Company will remain closed from
Tuesday, 12th November, 2019 to Monday 18th November, 2019 (both days inclusive).
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any
change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they
are maintaining their Demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to advise any change in their address or bank mandates immediately to the
Company / RTA.

Members wishing to claim dividends that remain unclaimed are requested to correspond
with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents as mentioned above, or the Company
Secretary, at the Company's registered office, Members are requested ito note that
dividends that are not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the
Company's Unpaid Dividend Account, will as per section 124 of the Act, be transferred to

347 ANNUAL REPOART 2018-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Shares on which Dividend remains
unclaimed for seven consecutive years will be transferred to the IEPF as per section 124 of
the Act, and the applicable rules.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection
by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to address all correspondence to M/s. Link India Intime Pvt,
Limited., Noble Heights 1st Floor, Plot No. NH-2 C-1 Block LSC near Savitri Market
Industrial Area, Janakpuri, New Delhi- 110058 who is acting as our Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent. Please quote your folio number and our Company's name in all your future
correspondences.

All documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of
the Company during office hours on all days except Sunday & public holidays between
11.00 am to 1.00 pm up tothe date of Annual General Meeting.

For convenience of members, an attendance slip is annexed to the proxy form. Members
are requested to affix their signature at the space provided and hand over the attendance
slips at the place of meeting. The proxy of a member should mark on the attendance slip as
'proxy’.

Members holding shares in the same set of names under different ledger folios are
requested to apply for consolidation of such folios along with share certificates to the
Company.

In order to exercise sirict control over the transfer documents, members are requested to
send the transfer documents/ correspondence, if any, directly to the Registered Office of
the Company.

Members desirous of getting any information about the accounts and /or operation of the
Company are requested to write to the Company at least seven days before the date of
meeting to enable us to keep the in formation ready at the meeting.

SEBI encourages all shareholders to hold their shares in dematerialized form as this
eliminates the possibility of damage /loss of physical share certificate(s) & cases ol
forgery and facilitates the ease and convenience of paperless trading of shares.
Further, no stamp duty is payable on transfer of shares held in Demat form. It is also
pertinent to mention that with effect from April 01, 2019, SEBI has prescribed that
requests for effecting transfer of securities (except transmission or transposition
cases) shall not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form
with a depository. Accordingly, we request you to convert your shareholdings from
physical form to demat form at the earliest, in existing demat account or new demat
account to be opened with any Depository Participant.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participant{s) with whom they are maintainin g their Demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company/Registrar
and Transfer Agents.

Members desirous of making nomination as permitted under section 72 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of the physical shares held by them in the Company, can make
nominations in Form SH-13, which can be procured from the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent M/s Link Intime (India) Private Limited. The members holding shares in Demat form
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may contact their respective d epository participants for such nominations.

Members are informed that Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green
Initiative in Corporate Governance” (Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 and Circular
No. 18/2011 dated 29.04.2011) allowing paperless compliance by Companies through
electronic mode. Companies are now permitted to send various notices /documents to its
shareholders through electronic mode to the registered e-mail addresses of shareholders.
Your company has also decided to be a part of this initiative and request the shareholders
tosend /update their email ID in the company's record. This initiative will enable better flow
of the information required to be disseminated to the members and save the environment
by saving the paper. We seek your whole-hearted support for this initiative.

The Notice of the meeting along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by electronic
mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with Company/
Depositories as on cut off date i.e. 04" October, 2019, unless any Member has requested
for a physical copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses, physical copies arebeing sentby the permitted mode.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid up equity
share capital of the Companyas on Monday, 11th November, 2019 (Cut off date).
Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration)] Rules, 2014, as amended and Regulation 44 of
SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, the Company is
pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right to vote on the resolutions
proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic means through the electronic voting service
facility arranged by Central Depository Services (India) Limited. The facility for voting,
through ballot paper, will also be made available atthe Meeting and the members attending
the Meeting who have not already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their right at the Meeting through ballot paper. The instructions for e-voting are
annexed to the Notice.

Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / listof Beneficial Owners as on
Monday, 11th November. 2019 (Cut Off Date for E-Voting) are entitled to vote on the
Resolutions set forth in this Notice. The members may cast their votes on electronic voting
system from place other than the venue ofthe meeting (remote e-voting).

The remote e-voting period will commence on 09.00 A.M. on Friday, 15th, November,
2019 and ends on 05:00 P.M. on Sunday, 17th November, 2019. In addition, the facility
for voting through electronic voting system shall alsobe made available at the AGM and the
Members attending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be
eligible to vote atthe AGM. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may
also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Company has appointed Mr. Deepak Arora, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as
the Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.
The final results including the remote E-voting results shall be declared at the AGM of the
Company. The final results along with the scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the
Company's website www.mayurgroups.com within two days of passing of the resolution at
the AGM of the Company. The resulis shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock
Exchanges.

Company's website www.mayurgroups.com will be uploaded with the above documents
well before the mandatory period and the copies of the aforesaid documents will be
available for inspection at the registered Office of the Company also.
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32) E-VOTING FACILITY
The voting period begins on 09.00 A.M. on Friday, 15th, November, 2019 and ends on
05:00 P.M. on Sunday. 17th November, 2019. During this period shareholders' of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-
off date (record date) of Monday, 11th November, 2019, may cast their vote electronically.
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
@ In case a Member receives an e-mail from CDSL (for Members whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company/Depositories):
(I} The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the volng
period.
(i} Clickon “Shareholders”tab.
(ili) NowEmnter your UserID
a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.
(iv) Nextenter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(v} Ifyoun are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is tobe used.
(vi) Ifyou are a first ime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha -numeric "PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

* Members who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the
PAN field.

* In case the sequence number is1 ess than 8 digits enter the applicable
number of 0's before the number after the first two characters of the
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with
sequence number 1 then enter RAOO000001 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Bir th as recorded in your demat account or in the company

records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm /yyyy format.

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the

Bank company records for the said demat account or folio.

Details

* Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login. If the
details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as

mentioned in instruction (v).
| rrr—rrrererrer e T pp TP IS T T T DI T T

(viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein
they are required to manda torily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note
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that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolu tions contained in this Notice.

(%) Click on the EVSN 191017002 for the relevant <Mayur Leather Products Limited> on which you
choose to vote,

(xi) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies thatyou dissent to the Resolution.

(xii} Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.(xii)
After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will
be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL"and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xv)You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

(%vi)If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvii)Note Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

= Non-Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to
http:/ /www evotingindia.com and regis ter themselves as Corporates.

* A scanned copy of the Regisiration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed

to helpdesk.evot ing@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user should be created using the

admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they

wish to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

* Ascanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney [POA) which they have issued in favor
of the Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the Scrutinizer to verify
the same.

(xviii)In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com_under help section or
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAITPURA, JAIPUR
DATE: 24" September, 2019

5d/

HEENA LAKHANI
COMPANY SECRETARY
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANTTO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 3

Your board of directors has decided in their board meeting held on 24.09.2019 to sale the
immowvable property of the company to get rid off liquidity crisis running in the company. It will
generate cash which will be held company torun its business in better and economic way as it will
be usein working capital of the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act 2013, if any, the Company can dispose off its undertakings /property/ assets through sale or
lease or provide security of its assets for repayment of loan or otherwise only with the approval of
the shareholders accorded by way of a special resolution.

The Company intends to sell/dispose off its immovable property situated at G-60-62 & 67-69,
JAITPURA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE JATPUR-303704, RAJASTHAN which is the major property of
the company.

The board recommends the resolution under item no. 3 for approval of the members.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested in
the resolution set forth in item no. 3 of the notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANTTO SECTION 102 OF THE COMFPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO. 4

The Company was incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 in the State of Rajasthan at
Jaitpura City.

Considering the fact that the operational and business activities of the Company are undertaken
from its Corporate Office situated in Jaipur City within the same state at Rajasthan and also that
majority of the Directors of the Company are based in Jaipur, it is proposed that the Registered
Office of the Company be shifted to the Corporate Office of the Company. Such a change would
enable the Directors to guide the Company more effectively and efficiently and also result in
operational convenience.

The registered /corporate offices of most leading corporates is located at Jaipur or another metro
city. Post the shifting of the Registered Office of the Company from Jaitpura to Jaipur, the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) can be held in the city of Jaipur where the majority of Directors and
Shareholders of the Company are also based in Jaipur as compare to Jaitpura. If the Registered
Office of the Company is situated in Jaipur, it will be easier for the Shareholders to attend the AGM
of the Company.

In light of above and other administrative convenience, the Company is considering changing the
Registered Office of the Company from the city of Jaitpura to Jaipur (Raj)

In terms of Section 12 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made thereunder shifting of the registered office from one City to another requires the approval of
Memb ers by way of Special Resolution.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested in
the resolution setforth in item no. 4 of thenotice.
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The Board is of the opinion that the aforesaid Resolution is in the best interestof the Company and
hence, recommends the aboveresolution for your approval as a special resolu tion.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAITPURA, JAIPUR

DATE: 24" September, 2019
5d/

HEENA LAKHANI
COMPANY SECRETARY
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF 34™ AGM

Mr. Rajendra Poddar (DIN: 00143571) is retiring by rotation at the date of ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

Information pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the stock
exchanges in respect of the Director who is proposed to be appointed/re-appointed at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting tobe held on Monday, 18th November, 2019:

Further, as stipulated under §5-2, a brief profile of Mr. Rajendra Kumar Poddar is given as under:

(i) Brief Profile
Name Rajendra Kumar Poddar
Ape 62 Years
Qualifications B.com {(Honors)
Terms and Conditions of Ag per agreement
appointment

. . Nil
Details of remuneration
Date of first appointment 17.06.1987
Sharehalding in the Company 23.33%
Amita B - Wi

Relationship with other (- Foaar Wik

director {Manager and other KMP

Alkthilesh Poddar-Son

Directorships of other Board

Mayur Leather Products Limited -
Director & CEO.
Mayur Global Private Limited - Director

Membership /Chairmanship of
Committees of other Board

Btakeholder's Relatonship Committee
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(1i) Briefl Profile

Name of the Chief Financial

Officer Akhilesh Poddar
Father’s Name Mr. Rajendra Kumar Poddar
Date of Birth 11th July 1985

Flat Na. 603, 6th Floor, Mahima Elanza,
Permanent Residential Address Village- Goliyawas, Patrakar Colony,
Jaipur-302020, Rajasthan

Flat No. 603, 6th Floor, Mahima Elanza,

Present Residential Address Village- Golivawas, Patraltar Colony,
Jaipur-302020, Rajasthan
Onalification B-COM & CA INTER

Having 12 years of experience in
taxation, auditing & finance sector,
adminigtration, operations and
manufacturing. as working with various

organizations as on post of Senior
Manager Executive , Manager =

Experience Administration & General Manager -
Operations.

Cwrrently, he is a Director in “Mayur
Global Private Limited” handling family
business and financial, accounting
matters with uimost care and
eXperience.

Shareholding in the Company 5.31%

To fulfil the requirement of Section
2030of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Companies (Appointment and
Reason of Appointment Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
2014 and Regulation 6 (1) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)] Regulations, 2015.

Dhate of Appointmernt 17.09.2019

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAITPURA, JAIPUR
DATE: 24" September, 2019
sd/
HEENA LAKHANI
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Dear Shareholders,

Board's Report

Mayur Leather Products Limited

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 34" Annual Report on the business and operations

of the company together with the audited financial statements for the Financial Year ended 31"

March, 2019.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Performance ofthe Company for the year ended on 31" March, 2019is as follows:

(Amount in Rs.)

Standalone Consolidated

TartEalrs 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.08.2019 31.03.2018

Turnover (FOB| 12,61,06,401.60 | 18,05,51,483.74 | 12,61,06,401.69 18,78,02,058.34

Dther Income 1,75,49,646.89 1,29.87,173.71 | 1,72,70,080.89 1,53,10,617.60

Lezs: Total Expenditure

{except Depreciation and 15,70,11,454.65 | 21,13,33,202.84 | 17,98,61,120.16 | 20,31,12,675.94

Interest]

:’: m'““n’: i’:‘::‘:’ (L,83,65,406.07] | {1,77.04,646.39) | (3,63,04,657.68) | (1,43,10,281.05)
Tnterest 80,5%,693 84 59,65,494.59 80,60,338.84 838168177
Depreciation 38,26,156.82 39,87,670.56 45,442,995 55 5506147.06

Profit ""f "I ™ h{"m {2,51,46,256.73) | |2,87,47,711.54) | |2,37,91,303.19) | (2,80,98,079.88)

Less: Exceptionel ltem 0.080 0.00 1,65,430.46 0.00

Add{Lese: Extra Drdinary

o 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Frofit befors Tax [2,51,46,366.73) | (2,67,47,711.54) | (2,39,56,733.65) | (2,80,08,079.68)

Less: Deferred tax 93,589.91 3.20,310.65 (175636.52) (3,14,388.12]

Less: Income tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,30,000.00

HNet Profit/ {Loss] after Tax for
the year

(2,62,39,846.64

{2,90,68,022.19)

{2,37,81,097.13]

(2,84,13,631.76)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not he
reclasaified to

profit or loss {Net of Taxes

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

{2,52,39,846.64)

{2,80,68,022.19)

{2,37,81,097.13)

{2,84,13,691.76)

Previous year figures have been re-grouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary.

2, STATE OF COMPANY' S AFFAIRS AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

During the year 2018-19, companies performance was not so satisfactory as revenue from

operation has decreased by 30.10% as compared to year 2017-2018.
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The table below shows the comparative growth in revenue of the Company since last three years:
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Finatsial year mxﬂtﬂm Cther income Tetal tevetige
2016 -17 Re. 2401.81 Lakh Rs. 154.51 Lakh Re. 2556.32 Lakh
2017 -13 R=. 1805.51 Lakh Rs. 129.87 Lakh Rs. 1935.33 Lakh
2013 - 19 Es, 1261,96 Lakh Rs. 175,53 Lakh Ra, 1437.46 Lakh

As informed in the last Annual Report your company had to overcome the unexpected
challenges which arose due to changing in volatile exchange rate of Euro and US Dollar
with other foreign currencies.

Added to this, there was noticeable effect in the markets of Europe & Middle East resulting
in huge reduction in Exports of footwear from India. Normally, Our Turnover was 90% from
Exports and 10% from Domestic. The export market was shared on a 50- 50 basis between
European Customer and Middle East customer.

From 2017 - 18 there was huge downward trend in crude prices in the international market
i.e. from 100S (positive) to 505 (negative) per barrel, this greatly affected the ongoing project
in the Middle East. Thereby, turnover of the company had reduced by approx. 22% due to
downfall in the market by over 50% in the Middle East. The trend continued and the Middle
East Market has almost collapsed. The effect of Middle East economy in turn had a
cascading effect on European export market and the European market too has reduced by
approx. 25% which affected our total turnover reducing anotherapprox. 13%. Thus in
overall, there is a reduction in exports by over 70% greatly effecting the turnover and
profitability of your company. Thus in two years an average of approx. 90% of your export
turnover has reduced toonly approx. 27%.

Pravious year Balance export Now trend this year
Middle Eagt | 45% | (-50%) = | 22% 23% (- 50%) = [ 1%
Eurcpa 45% {- 25%) = [ 13% 32% {- 50%) = | 16%
Total : 0% 55% Reduced to : | 2T%

To supplement the reduction in Export market we decided to shift our focus to Domestic
market for which we have started addressing domestic institutional procurement through
tendering process and developing business relationships with BATA INDIA LTD and some
corporates.

Since this was a new market & highly competitive as other exporters were also facing the
same problem. Tender prices had to be quoted at abnormally low level to enter into a
competitive scenario.

These efforts are yielding positive results and we are procured local business expansion by
Rs. 5to 8 Crores in this Financial Year.

The existing domestic market was severally affected by Demonetization which cause
decrease in the existing customer requirementby above 30% to 40%. In this financial year,
we had to bear the brunt of declining exports, our challenge of new domestic market, new
domestic institu tion sales etc.

During the last year we saw considerable changes in the external Business Environment.
While Commeodity Prices and Inflation were under control, the Company is confident of
recovering the lost ground due to the recession in Europe. In addition, competition from
both foreign and national players continued to be aggressive. In this Scenario, your
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Company continued to focus on delivering values to the Customers.

Modernization of manufacturing process of your Company during the Year under review.
Various initiative has been taken by Board of Directors i.e..evolving consumer preferences,
rapid technological innovations, Six Sigma in Factory at different stages of implementation,
eco-friendly manufacturing process including energy saving measures and consumption of
minimum natural resources.

The Company acknowledges the importance of the plant and employees as the base behind
the success of the Company. Your Company believes that it's the teamwork of the
employees which enables Company to reach the new heights. The Company is committed to
work together keeping in full trust on each other and strive to keep itself in the high growth
trajectory to achieve newer heights.

3. TRANSFERTO RESERVES
For the period under review the Board is not transferring any amount to General Reserve Account
of the Company.

4, DIVIDEND
There is not adequate surplus to declare any dividend during the year; therefore your Directors did
not recommend payment of any dividend for the Financial Year 2018-19.

5, EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As provided under Section 92 of the Act and rules framed thereunder, the extract of annualreturn
in Form MGT-9is given in Annexure [ which forms part of this report.

6. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the year, Five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were convened and held on the
followin g dates as mentioned in the table:

Attendance of the Board Masting Held on Attendance at
Name of the AGM held
Director 20.04.3018 | OL.06.2018 13.05.3018 | 14.11.201 25.02.301 | on
sAdfourned B 8 29.09.32018
Meating) *[Adiourne
d Meeting)
Mr. Rajendra
Kumar Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yea
Poddar
Mrs. Amita s
Poddar Yes Yes ¥Yen Yesn Yea
Mr. Rajesh - Vet
Gupta Yes Yes Yen Yen Mo
Mr.
Madhusudan | Yes Yea Yes Yeg Ne
Yes
Prasad
Kejriwal
L e Yes Yes Yes res Yea
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* Date of Original Meeting was 30.05.2018 which was adjourned to 01.06.2018.
* Date of Original Meeting was 14.02.2019 which was adjourned to 25.02.2019.

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI(LODR] Regulations, 2015.

it DEPOSITS

During the year ended 31" March, 2019, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public
falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there
under and hence no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was
outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

B. CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Current Capital Structure of the Company is given below:-

a) Authorized Capital : Rs. 5,80,00,000 (Five Crores Eighty lakhs divided into 58,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10/ - each)
b) Issued Capital : Rs. 4,83,48,000 (Four Crores Eighty Three Lakhs Forty Eight

Thousand divided into 48,34,800 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ - each.)
¢) Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: Rs. 4,83,48,000 (Four Crores Eighty Three Lakhs Forty Eight
Thousand divided into 48,34,800 Equity Shares ofRs. 10/-
each.)

During the year, Company has not issued any equity share with differential voting rights hence
the disclosure under Rule 4 (4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable.

g, DIRECTORSANDKEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the Financial Year 2018-2019, Mr. Dinesh Swami has appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the companyw.e.f April 20, 2018 in place of Nitesh Kumar Kumawat who has resigned from the
post of CFO.

Mr. Rohit Agarwal, Company Secretary has resigned and in his place, Ms. Heena Lakhani has
been appointed as Company Secretary of the compan y with effect from June01, 2018.

During the financial year Ms. Divya Karla has appointed as an Independent Director of the
company with effect from June 01, 2018.

Further, it is informed to the memb ers of the company that after the closing of Financial Year Mrs.
Divya Karla, Non Executive & Independent Director of the Company has tendered her resignation
from Directorship w.efMay 07, 2019.

Further it is also informed to the members of the company that after the closing of Financial Year
Mr. Dinesh Swami, Chief Financial Officer of the Companyhas been ceased from the post of Chief
Financial Officer of the Company on September 09, 2019 and in his place, Mr. Akhilesh Poddar
has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the company with effect from September 17,
2019.
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Thus, the Board of Directors of Mayur Leather Products Limited is a balanced one with an
optimum mix of Executive and Non Executive Directors during the whole financial Year. They
show active participation atthe board and committee meetings, which enhances the transparency
and adds value to their decision making. The Board of the Company is headed by a Non - Executive
Chairman. Chairman takes the strategic decisions, frames the policy guidelines and extends
wholehearted support to Executive Directors, business heads and associates.

Further, after the closing of Financial Year Mrs. Divya Kalra has been resigned from the post of the
Non Executive Independent Director of the Company and the company is in process to appoint a
Non Executive Independent Director in place of Mrs. Divya Kalra.

Details of Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel aresummarized as follows:

Name of Date of
Directors Dexignation | Changws Nature of Change
Mr. Rajendra Executive NA NA
Kumar Paddar Directors
Mra. Amita Nen- NA
Poddar Executive NA
(Chairman) Directors
: Nen- MNA
EI:I'IE‘J““ V. Executive NA
Directors
Mr. Madhusudan | [ndependent | NA NA
Prasad Kejriwal Directors
Mr. Rohit Cempan May 30, : F
Agarwal Secmtaq{ 2018 Reslgnation
Mes. Heena Com June 1,
Lakhani Secrfuyy 2018 Appointient
June (41, Appeintment as an Independent
Independent | 2018 Directors
Mrs. Divya Karla | Directors
May O7, Resignation from the post of
20149 Directorship as Independent Directors
April 20 % | Appointment as a Chief Financial
. Chief 2018 Officer
g’ D]:nESh Financial
e Officer Sept. 09, | Censed from the post of Directorship
2019 g8 Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Akhilesh Sl Bept- | aocibnisnt s s ChisfFinans: ial
Financial 2019
Poddar Officer Officer

Retirement by Rotation-

Mr. Rajendra Eumar Poddar (DIN: 00143571), Director of the Company whose period of office is
liable toretire by rotation pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Articles of
Association of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment.
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10, DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR'S UNDER SUB SECTION (6] OF
SECTION 149

All the Independent Directors have given their declarations under section 149 (6) and section 149
(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. In the opinion of the Board, the
Independent Directors fulfill the conditions relating to their status as an Independent Director as
specified in section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder as well as
Regulation 16 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (incuding any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force).

11. FORMALANNUALEVALUATION

The Act and SEBI Regulations have mandated the need to ensure effectiveness of the Board
governance and require a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has
been carried out by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual
directors.

The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board,
Committees and other individual Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of
the non-executive directors and executive directors.

The Company is availing services of professionals for looking at the best practices prevalent in the
industry and advising with respect to evaluation of board members. On the basis of
recommendations of the professionals and the policy for performance evaluation of Independent
Directors, Board, Committees and other individual directors, a process of evaluation was followed
by the board forits own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

12, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

° AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised of 3 members during the financial year. The detail of the
composition of the Audit committee along with their meetings held /attended is as follows:

Name of Poalition Attendance at the Committes Mestings held on

the 01.06.2018 13.08.2018 14.11.2018 2%.02.201%

Membeyr “Adfourned HAdforrned
Mectng) Mzeting)

ﬁ* : Chairman Yes Yes Yes Yes

Mr.

Madhusuda

1 Prasad Member Yes Yes Yes Yes

Kejriwal

Mrs. Amita

Paddar Member Yes Yes Yes Yea

* Date of Original Meeting was 30.05.2018 which was adjourned to 01.06.2018.
* Date of Original Meeting was 14.02.2019 which was adjourned to 25.02.2019.
* Mrs. Divya Kalra has appointed as chairman of the Audit Committee w.e f June 01, 2018.
* Mrs. Divya Kalra has resigned from Directorship w.e f. May 07, 2019.

34" ANNUAL REPORT 20158-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

® NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee comprised of 3 members during the financial year. The detail of the composition of
the Nomination and Remuneration committee along with their meetings held/attended is as

follows:
Name of the Pasition Attendance at the Committee Meeting held on
Member 20.04.2018 01.05.2018 14.08,2018
Mr. Madhusudan
Prasad Kejriwal Chairman Yes Yes Yes
Mrs. Divya Kalra* Member NA Yes Yes
Mr. Rajesh Virendra
Gupta Member Yes Yes Yes

# Mrs. Divya Kalra appointed as memberof the Committee w.e.fJune 01, 2018.
# Mrs. Divya Kalra has resigned from Directorship w.e f. May 07, 2019.

The policy formulated by Nomination and Remuneration Committee on director's appointment
and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters as specified under section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and same was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The policy is annexed
herewith as Annexure- [1.

® STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee comprised of 4 members during the financial year. The detail of the composition of
the said committee along with their meetings held/attended is as follows:

Attendancs at the

Co ittee M held
Name of the Fasibicn mmi eetings on
Member 13.08.2018 | 25.02.2019
Mr. Madhusudan ;
Brasd Ketaal Chairman Yes Yes
Mr. Rajendra
Kumar Poddar Member Yes Yes
Mrs. Amita Poddar | Member Yes Yes
Mrz. Divya Kalra* | Member Yes Yes

# Mrs. Divya Kalra appointed as member of the Committee w.e fJune 01, 2018.
* Mrs. Divya Kalra has resigned from Directorship w.e.f. May 07, 2019.

13. AUDITOR'SOF THE COMPANY:

® STATUTORY AUDITOR
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At the 32" Annual General Meeting of the company held on September 29", 2017, the
shareholders had approved the appointment of M /s H.C. Garg & Co.., Chartered Accountants,
Jaipur ., having FRN 000152C as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a term of Five consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of the 32" Annual General Meeting of the Company till the
conclusion of the 37" Annual general Meeting tobe held in the year 2022 subject to the ratification
by the shareholders every year, if so required under law. Pursuant to the recent amendment to
section 139 of the Act to the effective May 7, 2018, ratification by shareholders every year for the
appointment of the Statutory Auditors is no longer required and accordingly the Notice of ensuing
Annual General Meeting does not include the proposal for seeking Shareholders approval for
ratification of Statutory Auditors appointment.

M/s H.C. Garg & Co., Chartered Accountants, Jaipur , having FRN 000152C has furnished a
certificate of their eligibility and consent under Section 139 and 141 of the Actand the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 for their continuance as the Auditors of the Company for the FY
2019-20. In terms of the Listing Regulations, the Auditors have confirmed that they hold a valid
certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the ICAL

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have submitted Auditors' Report on the Financial
Statements (standalone and consolidated) of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2019. The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax and goods and service tax
though there has been slight delay in few cases and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory
duesin respect of professional tax, as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

Further the Company is taking necessary steps to ensure the compliance/timely payment of
statutory dues.

Except above all Information referred in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments.

STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT

The qualification/observation of the Auditor's given in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory
and have been explained/ clarified, wherever necessary, in the notes to the Financial Statements
exceptas under:-

1. Rent Expenses amounting to Rs. 51.57 Lakhs not accounted as per Ind AS-115 ("Revenue
from Contracis with Customers").

2. Gratuity has notbeen provided as per Actuary Valuation given as per Ind AS 19 ("Employee
Benefits")

3. The Company has given Loans and Advances amounting to Rs. 869.62 Lakhs are subject to
Confirmation and Reconciliation. Further the Loans & Advances given exceed the Limit
given under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

REPLY BY MANAGEMENT ON AUDITORS QUALIFIED OPINON:
1. In respect of the Auditor's observation regarding Rent Expenses were not shown as
expenses. [tis submitted that this matter is under Dispute.

2. In respect of the Auditor's observation regarding Gratuity Liability has been calculated on
estimated basis and not as per Actuarial Valuation which is required as per Ind AS 19. It is
submitted that the company is calculate Gratuity Liability on cash basis as per company's
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policy.

3. In respect of the Auditor's observation regarding section 186 that company has given
Loans & Advances exceed the Limit. It is submitted that the company already has taken
approval for the exceeding limit and passed resolution for the same in the Annual General

Meeting held on 29.09.2018.
® SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

As per Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies [Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every Listed Company is required to appoint
Secretarial Auditor to carry out secretarial Auditof the Company.

In consonance with the requirements of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
there under, M/s ATCS & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Jaipur, was appointed to
conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for thefinancial year 2018- 19.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT

A Secretarial Audit Report issued by M /s ATCS & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, in
respect of the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019, is
given in ANNEXURE 111 to this Reportand it carries the following qualifications:

(i) Hundred percent Shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter{s) group is not in dematerialized
form as required under Regulation 31 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(ii) During the financial year 2018-2019 the Company has submitted its Shareholding Pattern
with a delay ofone day for quarter ended 31.12.2018.

(iif) During the financial year 2018-2019 the Company has submitted its quarterly financial
Results with delay two days for quarter ended 31.03.2018 and quarterly financial Results with
delay eleven days for quarter ended 31.12.2018 for which notice of penalty was received and the
same has been deposited by the company as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(iv) During the Financial Year Company has not transferred its shares which are lying in unpaid
dividend account since lastseven year to IEPF account.

In respect of above stated qualifications, your Directors would like to clarify that:

(i) Total Promoter's Shareholding is 64.02%. Out of these, only 1% shareholding is not in Demat
Form. The Company has already sent a mail to the Promoter(s) regarding conversion of physical
shares to Demat Shares but the Promoter has not provided us the PAN and other details for
conversion of the same. However the shareholding of the promoters is under process of
dematerialization.

(ii) It was due to technical problem in receiving the data from RTA and in future it will be taken care
of.

(iii) The company was fall in the ambit of preparation of its Financial Statements according to
Indian Accounting Standards w.e.f 01.04.2017. It took more time to prepare and finalize the
Quarterly Financial Statements times for quarter ended 31.03.2018 and 31.12.2018. Due to that,
the delay occur and it willbe taken care further.
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{(v] Due to old records and taking details from bank and RTA it was time consuming and
reconciliation of the same with RTA it is taking time and company is in process to transferred the
shares in due process.

® COSTAUDITOR

The requirement of Cost Audit in your industry has been excluded/ removed in The Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its
notification dated 30" June, 2014. Therefore, no appointment was made of the Cost Auditor to
carry out the Cost Audit for the financial year ended 31" March, 2019 and there is no requirement
of maintenance of costrecords as per section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

® INTERNALAUDITOR
M/s Varma Prashant & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Jaipur was appointed to conduct
Internal Audit of the company for the financial year 2018-19 as required under Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder and the Board of Director has re-appointed M/s
Varma Prashant & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Jaipur is appointed to conduct Internal
Aunditof the company for the financial year 2019-20.

8, MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION
BETWEENTHE END OF THE FINANCIALYEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT

There was no material changes and no commitment made by the directors affecting financial

position of the company between the end of the Financial Year and date of report. So no criteria

need tobe specified for the year.

9. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Company recognizes that its employees are its principal assets and thatit's continued growth
is dependent upon the ability to attract and retain quality people. The Company also recognizes
the importance of providing training and development opportunities to its people to enhance their
skills and experiences, which in turn enables the company to achieve its business objectives. The
morale of employees continued to remain high during the year contributing positively to the
progress of the Company. However aspirations of employees in India remain tobe high. This is a
challenge as only growth can fulfill these aspirations and in today's market scenarios one has to
perform extraordinarily to achieve growth.

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work to all sections of the society.
Your Company is committed to respect universal human rights. To that end, the Company
practices and seeks to work with business associates who believe and promote these standards.
The Company is committed to provide equal opportunities at all levels, safe and healthy
workplaces and protecting human health and environment. The Company provides opportunities
to all its employees to improve their skills and capabilities. The Company's commitment extends
to its neighboring communities to improve their educational, cultural, economic and social well-
being. Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and does not discriminate on the grounds
of race, religion, nationality, ethnic origin, color, gender, age, citizenship, sexual orientation,
marital status or any disability not affecting the functional requirements of the position held.

10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBLITY
Our key Stirategy for Corporate Social Responsibility is to mobilize core competencies and
resources of business, public organizations and Government Institutions to facilitate their
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working in partnership on projects that benefit communities. We also feel strongly about giving
back to our community. We believe everybody deserves to be treated with dignity and respect,
regardless of their personal circumstances, and offered the skills, knowledge and assistance they
need to help themselves lead healthy and productive lives.

The Directors of the Company are pleased to inform you that although the provision of Section 135
of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable on the company.

11. DELISTING OF EQUITY SHARES

The members have passed a special resolution in the Annual General Meeting of Company held on
10" July, 2004 permitting the Company to delist its shares from the regional stock exchanges of
Jaipur, Delhi, Calcutta, and Ahmedabad.

As on date, out of the above-stated four stock exchanges, the equity shares of the Company have
been delisted from the Delhi, Ahmedabad and Jaipur Stock Exchanges. Delisting application of
the Company is still pending with the Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Ltd., since December
2004. Inspite of several reminders, the Company did not get any response from the exchange in
the matter ofthe delisting status.

12, INFOEMATION ABOUT SUESIDIARY / JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company has 1 (one) subsidiary Company (i.e. Mayur Global Private Limited) with effect from
July 21, 2017 by virtue of the provisions of Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013. Mayur
Global Private Limited is a Footwear Manufacturing company established to fulfill the export
demand ofleather Footwear.

There has been no material change in the nature ofthe business of the subsidiaries. Pursuant to
Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014 a Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
Subsidiaries /Associate Companies /Joint Ventures is given in Annexure IV in Form AOC-1 and
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the
Company, consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited
financial statements in respect of subsidiaries, are available on the website of the Company.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management procedure, which is based on three pillars:
Business Risk Assessment, Operational Controls Assessment and Policy Compliance processes.
Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis. Some of the identified risks relate to competitive
intensity and cost volatility.

To sustain and grow in global market one must be ready for some level of uncertainty. Greater the
uncertainty, higher the risk. The risk management function is integral to the Company and its
objectives include ensuring that critical risks are identified, continuously monitored and
managed effectively in order to protect the Company's business. The Company operates in an
environment which is affected by various factors some of which are controllable while some are
outside the control of the company. The Company proactively takes reasonable steps to iden tify
and monitor the risk and makes efforts to mitigate significant risks that may affect it. Some of the
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risks that are potentially significantin nature and need careful monitoring are listed here under:
* Macroeconomic Factors
* Political Factors
« Product portfolio
Competition from product launches
Talent acquisition & retention
Continuance and growth ofchannel partners
High dependence on suppliers
Geographic concentration
Changes in government policy and legislation
Chinese Competition
Raw Material Price Increase
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

14, INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROLS

The Company has identified and documented all key internal financial controls, which impact the
financial statements. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through ongoing
monitoring and review process of the management and independently by the Internal Auditors. In
our view the Internal Financial Controls, affecting the financial statements are adequate and are

operating effectively.

15. MANAGEMENT DICUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
A detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis is provided as a separate section in
the Annual Report which forms part ofthe Board's Report as ANNEXURE VII.

16, DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), with respect to
Directors' Responsibility Statement, your Directors confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there arenomaterial departures from the same;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on thatdate;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance ofadequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a'going concern’' basis;

€) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operatin g effectively; and

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems areadequate and operating effectively.

17. FPARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As per amendment in Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
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personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 dated 30.06.20186, details of top ten employees in terms of
remuneration drawn, employed by the company during the financial year 2018-19 pursuance the
provisions in accordance with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016 and Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and
other details as required under Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in ANNEXURE VI
to this Report.

Apart from that, there are no employees in the company whose particulars are required to be
disclosed in the Report.

18. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN. INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED

Particulars ofloans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with

the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient

are provided in Financial Statement. During the financial year under review no such transaction

were done by the company toreport here.

19, CONTRACTSANDARRANGEMENTSWITHRELATED PARTIES

In line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI "LODR", your Company has
formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions which is also available on Company's website at
www.mayurgroups.com. The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting; approval and
disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

This Policy specifically deals with the review and approval of Material Related Party Transactions
keeping in mind the potential or actual conflicts of interest that may arise because of entering into
these transactions. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for
review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions on a
quarterly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature and / or entered in the Ordinary
Course of Business and are at Arm's Length. All Related Party Transactions are subjected to
independent review by a reputed accounting firm to establish compliance with the requirements
of Related Party Transactions under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI “LODR".

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business
and on Arm's Length basis. Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required
under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 is disclosed in Form AOC 2 in ANNEXURE V
is annexed to this report.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 39 to the financial statement which sets out
related party disclosures.

20. VIGILMECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Board of Directors has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism which is in
compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company's Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism encourages Directors and employees to
bring to the Company's attention, instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected incidents
of fraud or violation of the Code of Conduct that could adversely impact the Company's operations,
business performance and / or reputation. The Policy provides that the Company investigates
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such incidents, when reported, in an impartial manner and takes appropriate action to ensure
that requisite standards of professional and ethical conduct are always upheld. It is the
Company's Policy to ensure that no employee is victimized or harassed for bringing such incidents
to the attention of the Company. The practice of the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism is
overseen by the Audit Committee and no employee has been denied access to the Committee. The
Whistleblower Policy is available on the Company's corporate website w ww.mayurgroups.com.

21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance requirements as stipulated under the Regulation of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the company. Thus, the company has filed the non
applicability certificate to the exchange for regulation15 (2) read with regulation 27(2) of SEBI
(LODR] Regulations, 2015 certified by the compliance Officer of the company.

22, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the companies act,

2013 read with Rule 8 of companies (Accounts) Rules,2014, the particulars of technology

absorption and foreign exchan ge earnings and outgo is provided as under.

* CONSERVATIONOF ENERGY

The company is undertaking regular periodic energy conservation measures:-

Year ended Year ended
R 31.08.2019 31.03.2018
A. POWER AND FUEL
CONSUMPITION
a) Electricity :
Purchased Units 546315 494999
Total Amount {in Bs.} 4865247 4262641
Rate / Unit {Rs.) B.90 8.61
h) Own Generation :
Through IMesel Uenerator
Units
FO / HSD { Ltrs, } 7000 7200
Total Amount (in Rs.) 498454 480686
Units Per Ltr. of Fuel 7l1.21 66.76
il Gas
Caat / Unit (Ra.)
c) 8team :
Through Furnace Dil N.A. N.A.
Teotal Amount (Rs.)
Litres (Furnace Qil}
Rate f Lirs [Rs.)

a4"
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Through Coal / Lignite | N.A. N.A.
Total Amount (Rs.)

Coal [ Kgs. )

Rate / Kgs (Rs.)

Total Steamn Amount {Rs.)

Total Amount 5363701 4743327

B. CONBUMPTION PER UNIT
PRODUCTION
Produnets: Shoes & Uppers | 270944 312908
fin FPairs)

Energy Consumption
Per Pairs. ([in Rs.) 19.79 15.16

*» RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT /TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Company continued to give utmostimportance to the R&D activities. The Company has its own in-
house well-developed Research and Development division. The objective of the Company through
continuous Research and Development activities is the introduction of cost effective, state-of-art-
products with enhanced life and to increase the production capacity. The Company's Laboratory
and R&D division is continuously working towards new developments and keeps pace with the
latest developments in high tech areas. During the year company has spend Rs. 2,13,885.90
(previous year Rs. 5,61,737.00) on R & D expenditure, which is debited in financial books.

e FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase exports, development of new
export markets for product and services: and export plans:

The Company is engaged in the manufacture and export ofleather safety shoes and shoe uppers.
The majority sale is through exports. Due to the economic slowdown, the export market of the
regular products has been badly affected. This is being countered by two activities: -

= Re-align fresh business from existing customers with new products.
= Develop an Indian Market Network.

Hopefully the results should start showing within the next six months. It is our endeavor to
fight the worldwide recession.
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Earning:

Expert (FOB] 461.28
Outgo:

Travelling expenaes 8.29

Claim & compensation for 0.00

quality & Development

Raw material 44 58

Sales Commizsion 0.00

Rapairs & Maintenance 0.00

Plant & machinery 0.00

Membership Fees 1.B8

Testing fees 0.00

Rovalty 0.00

TOTAL OUFTGO 54,75

29, ERECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT

Aundit toreconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) or
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This
audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges
where the Company's shares are listed. The audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up
Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialised form
(held with NSDL or CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

30, CODEQF CONDLUCT

Your Company is committed to conducting its business in accordance with the applicable laws,
rules and regulations and highest standards of business ethics. In recognition thereof, the Board
of Directors has implemented a Code of Conduct for adherence by the Directors, Senior
Management Personnel and Employees of the Company. The Code of Conduct is dealing with
ethical issues and also foster a culture of accountability and integrity. The Code in accordance
with the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 has been posted on the Company's
website www.mayurgroups.com. All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have
confirmed compliance with the Code.

31, CONFLICT OF INTERESTS:

Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee
positions he occupies in other companies including Chairmanships and notifies changes during
the year. The Members of the Board while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the
decision making process. The Members of Board restrict themselves from any discussions and
voting in transactions in which they have concern or interest.

32, DISCLOSUREIN REFERENCE OF S5UB RULE 1 CLAUSE (C) SB CLAUSE (VIII] OF RULE
2 OF COMPANIES (ACCEPTANCE OF DEPOSITS) RULES2014
During the period under review the Company has not accepted loan /borrowing from its Director.

33. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN ATWORKPLACE
Your Company is an equal opportunity provider and believes in providing opportunity and key
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positions to women professionals. At the same time, it has been an endeavor of the Company to
support women professionals through a safe, healthy and conducive working environment by
creating and implementing proper policies to tackle issues relating to safe and proper working
conditions for them. The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the report on the
details of the number of cases filed under Sexual Harassment and their disposal, during the year
2019 is as under:

Number of caszes pendi ng as on the | NIL
beginning of the financial year

Number of complaints filed during, NIL
the financial year

Number of cases pending as on the | NIL
end of the financial year

34, PROHIBITIONOF INSIDER TRADING
With a view to regulate trading in securities by the directors and designated employees, the
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prohibition of msider Trading.

35. INVESTOR GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL

As perregulation 13 of SEBI (Listing Obligation & disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 the
number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction ofinvestors during the year under
review. There were no pending complaint or share transfer cases as on 31" March, 2019, as per the
certificate given by RTA.

36. MEETINGSOFINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company's Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year without the
presence of Executive Directors or management personnel. Such meetings are conducted
informally to enable Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company's affairs
and put forth their views to the Lead Independent Director.

During the year under review, the independentdirectors meton 14.11.2018 inter alia, todiscuss:

® Evaluation of the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board of Directors as
a whole.

® Evaluation of the performance of the chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views ofthe Executive and Non- Executive directors.

® Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the
management and the board that is necessary for the board to effectively and reasonably
perform its duties.

® Review the mechanism of safeguard the interests ofall Stakeholders.

37. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016 ('the Rules'), all unpaid or unclaimed
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Dividend are required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF established by the Central
Government, after the completion of Seven years. Further, according to the Rules, the share in
respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive
years or more shall also be transferred to the Demat Account created by the IEPF Authority.
Accordingly, the company has transferred the unclaimed and unpaid dividends. Further the
corresponding share will be transferred as per the requirement of the IEPF Rules, details of which
are provided on our website, at wwe.mayurgrou ps.com.

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules 2016 ('the Rules') mandates that
companies transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a period of seven years from the
unpaid dividend account to the Investor Edu cation and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, the rules
mandate the transfer of shares with respect to the dividend, which has not been paid or claimed
for Seven Consecutive Years or more to IEPF. Accordingly, the dividend for the years mentioned as
follows willbe transferred to the IEPF on the respective dates if the dividend remains unclaimed for
seven years, and the corresponding shares will also be transferred to IEPF if dividend as
unclaimed for seven Consecutive Years.

The Company sends periodic intimation to the concerned Shareholders, advising them to lodge
their claim with respect to unclaimed dividends, Shareholders may note that both the unclaimed
Dividend and corresponding shares transferred to IEPF including all benefits, accruing on such
shares, ifany, can be claimed back from IEPF, following the procedure prescribed in the Rules. No
Claim shall be in respect thereof with the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has credited Rs. 30,327.25 & Rs. 55281.00 forunpaid
dividend of the year 2010-11 (Final & Interim Dividend Respectively) and after the closing of the
financial year the Company has credited Rs. 98090 for unpaid dividend of the year 2011- 12(Final
Dividend) to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) pursuant to Section 205C of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Awareness and
Protection of Investors) Rules, 2001.

Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information
regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 28th
September, 2018 (date of last Annual General Meeting] on the Company's website
www.mayurgroups.com and on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

38. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS

In pursuance to Rule 8 (5) (vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Nosignificant or material
orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status
and company's operations in future.

39, GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. Issueofshares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Companyunder any scheme.
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3. The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Board and General Meetings.

4. There were no frauds found which have been reported to the Audit Committee / Board members
as well as to the Central Government. Further, there was no fraud reported by auditors under
section 143 (12) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

40, SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on board and general meetings.

41, ACENOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for assistance and co-operation received
from the Bankers, Central & State Government, Local Authorities, Clients, Vendors, Advisors,
Consultants and Associates at all levels for their continued guidance and support. Your Directors
also wish toplace on record their deep sense of appreciation for their commitment, dedication and
hard work put in by every member of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR Sd/- Sd/-

DATE :24.09.2019 R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR
Director & CEO Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
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Annexure [I] to Board's Report

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN IN FORM MGT-2
[Pursuant to Section 92(3] of the Companies Act, 201 3 and Enle 12[1] of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
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Shareholding Pattern (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
{I Category-Wise Share Holding

Shareh
oldarz

Mo, of $hares held at the beginning of the year {As
on 01.04.20:18)

Mo, of $hares held at the end of the year
[As on 31.03.:119)

Phrpsieal

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Damat

Phyxlcal

changa
durlng
dhe

year

A
|Promatars

(1) Indlan

a)
Individuz|

f
HUF

2330513

43,4400

22,738,913

45.21

2320477

48,400

2373877

0.000

b} Central
Govt. or
State
Govt.

c] Bodies
Corporate

Tla241

716241

14.81

716241

716241

14.81

) Bank/Fl

&) Ahy
other

SUB
TOTAL:
(A)
(1}

20,446,754

48,4400

30,95,154

64,02
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48400
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&,
02

(2)

|Foreign

a) NRI-
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5

b} Other
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5

&) Bexdies
Corp.

d}
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SLIE
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HAREHO
LDING
1
Institutio
ns
a) Mutual O G o 0 O a a aQ O
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(2] Nom
Insttutlons

a] Bodles
corporates

1} Indlan

1,05,920

12,300

1,18,220

2.45

108926

12300

121236

2.51

+3.06

i) Owarsaas

b} individualks

I}
Individual
csharehalde
rs halding
namina|
share
capital

L pho

Rs.1 lakhs

7,334,483

538,920

7,93,403

T2709F

58920

TREOLT

16.28

i}
Individuals
shareholde
rs halding
nominal
shara

caphtal In
excass of Rs.
1 lakhs

601,381

601,381

6124653

612653

+0.23

t] Othars
[sputify)

{i] Hinduy
Undivided
Famnily

1,36,788

1,326,788

283

1313440

1313440

2.72

11

(1) Hon
Rasldent
Incians|Nan
Repatf repat)

44,294

45,294

0.96

45994

45994

0.95

-Gl

(I} Cleardng
Membar

27,939

27,939

0.08

25931

254931

0.4

-0.04

SUB TUTAL
(B)2]:

0.0

15621

15621

0.32

32

Total
Publlc
Share
heldin
1]
(B
(By(LH-{B)(2]

16,52,805

71,220

17,24,02

358

1668462

7120

173968

359

+0.3

. Shares
held by
Custadian
for GDRx
& ADRs

1,668,426

™, 220

1,739,646

3543

1668462

Ti220

173968

.00

Grand Total
[A+B+C)

47,115,180

1,158,840

48,34.80
L

100

47,1518
0

1,19,582
2]

48342
L

100

Q.00

(i}

Share Holding of Promoters
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Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the end of the year
yaar {As on [As on 31.03.2019)
st | shasholders 01.04.2018) % chamyge In
share holding
: Wame %X %of | duringthevear
N % oftotal | shares % of il Pt
o No. of shares off pledged No. of total pladged
shares the encumb shares shares Srtunhe
company | eredto of the i
total company total
shar h
G sharas
Rejendra
1 Kumar Poddar 11,27,761 2:;.3 - 11.27,761 2:;.3 - -
Mayur Global
2 Private Limited 7,168,241 1-1.8 - 7,186,241 1-1-.3 - -
3 Amtfta Poddar 6,286,114 14.1 - 6,286,110 14.1 - -
9 0
4 Sarita Gupta 2,508,702 5.87 - 2,508,666 5.37 - =-0.0007
Akhilesh
s Poddar 2,55,950 531 - 2,855,950 531 - -
] Seerna Gupta | 28,400 0.59 - 28,400 0.59 - -
Ra[esh ¥ Gupta ) . )
7 [HUF] 20,000 041 20,000 041
Total 30,95,154 64.02 - | 30,95,113 64.02 - =0.0007
(M) Change In Pramotar's Sharehalding
Cumulxtive shareholding
Sharshalding during the year01.04.2018
ta [3L03.201%)
Shareholders | Mo. of Shares
Nams at the Increase/
beginning
5. No (01.04.2018)/ :t:: Date inm? In | Reascn % of total
end of the sharaholding No. of sharas of
sharas
year of the shares the
{31.03.2015} — coMmpany
¥
Ralendra 1127761 | 23.33 01.04.2018 - - 11,27.761 2233
1 Kumar
Poddar 1127761 | 2333 | 31.03.2019 - - 11,727,761 2333
Mayur Global 01.04.2018
Private 7,16,241 | 14.82 - - 7,165,241 14.82
= Limited 7,165,241 (1482 | 31.03.2019 e u 7,16,241 14.82
3 Amilta 6,286,100 | 14.19 01.04.2018 - - €,86,100 14.1%
Poddar 6,86,100 | 14.19 21.03.2019 - - 6,586,100 14.19
4. | Sarlta Gupta 2,589,702 | 537 | 1.04.2018 - - 2,59,702 5.37
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11.05.2018 -1 Transfer | 259,701 5.37
01.06.2018 -10 Transfer | 259691 5.A7
08.06.2018 -25 Transfer | 259,666 5.37
3. Akhilesh 456,950 | 531 01.04.2018 - - 2,56,950 521
Poddar 256,950 | 5.31 31.03.2019 - - 4,56,950 531
28,400 .59 01.04.2018 - = Z8,400 0.53
G, Seema Gupta
28,400 .59 31.03.2019 = = 28,400 0.55
7 Rajesh ¥ 20,000 0.41 01.04.2018 - - 20,000 0.41
) Gupta [HUF] 20,000 0.41 31.03.2019 - - 20,000 0.41
[iw] Stawrahabkding Patbarn of topten SharahoMars [othar than Diactars, Pronoders and Haldars of GDRs & ADRs|
Cumulstive Sharaholding durfng
Shareholdng AP iar
£ No Shereholder'y
: L No. of *:“fm Mo of share | % Of total shares
shamras B 5 ™3 oftha campRiny
company
SUBRAMAMLAN P
Ak tha Beginning of tha year 131580 3.9627 191590 249627
Thange During the Year i E 3 5
1. I reanin/Caansisa
Ak the and of tha yasr 191500 3.9 191,500 3.9
AMIT IAIN
F At the beginning of the y=ar 63,433 1.31 63,433 L31
{hanges During the Year ¥ = ¥ =
InCraasn/Dacrsasa
Ak the end of the yeor 63,433 1.31 63,433 L31
AMITA PRASHANT
5 Ax the beginning of the year 5,000 L0l S0 000 103
thanges During the Year
Increass/Decreasa
Trangfer on 09.11 2018 {50080} {L03) 1 0.0000
Transfer on 18.01.2019 SO0 103 SO0 103
At the and of tha yasr 50,000 Lo3 50,000 Lo3
PALLAVIBEN KETANKUMAR MEHTA
i At the beginning of the y=ar 45,650 0.84 45,650 Q.04
{hanges During the Year
InCraasn/Dacrsasa
Trensfer on 09.11.2018 {26150) [0.54] LS00 090
Transfer on 18002019 26450 0.5 ASESD 0.9
At tha and of tha yaar 45,650 o5 45,650 094
BMA WEALTH CREATORS LTD
Ak the begirning of the year 37387 077 37.387 0.77
Thanges During the Tear
5 Increste/Drecrease
Transfer on 00.11.2018 (37387) o.r L 0.00
Transfer on 18.01.2019 ITIRT .77 37347 orr
Attha and of tha paar 37387 0.77 %7,5497 0zr
KINIAL KEYURKLMAR ADHVARYL
At tha baginning of the year 25,448 0.53 15449 9.53
B
Changes Durlng the Year - - - .
Increase/Necrease
At tha and of tha yasr 25440 0.53 25,448 0.53
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SAURIN GEMS PRIVATE LIMITED
At tha baginning of the ysar 25,000 052 25,000 052z
Chang=s During the Year - - - -
¥ At the end of the year 25,000 052 25,000 052
PRASHANT VERMA
At the beginning of the year 25,000 0.52 25,000 .52
& Changes During the Year - - - -
Ak tha and of tha yaar 25,000 0.52 25,000 0.52
G T STOCK VISION PRIVATE LIMITED
Ak tha baginning of tha vaar 25,000 0.52 25,000 0.52
9 Changes During the Year - - - -
Ax the end of the year 25,000 0.52 25,000 .52
UDHAY CHONDHARY
At the Beginning of the year 24,928 n.52 24,928 .52
10 Changes Durlng the Yaar - - - E
[ T Fled Ft
At the end of the yeer 24,928 0.52 24,928 0,52
) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
sharshalding during tha year Cumulative :::::::Idln: durling
5. No .
Far Each of the Directors & KnP ot o of total o of total
sha-res shares of the No of shares shares of the
sampany company
Mr. Rajendra Kumar Poddar
At the beginning of the year 11.27.761 23.33 11.27.761 23.33
-Increasefdecrease in Share holding
1. during the year
- Date of Increase/Decrease ) ) ) )
-Reasnns for increasefdecrease
{e.g.allotmentftransfer/bonus/sweat
equity ete)
&t the end of the year 11,27, 761 2333 11.27,761 23.33
Mrs Amita Poddar
At the beginning of the year |5,BE, 100 1413 6,826,100 14.19
2 -Increase/dacrease in Share holding
) durlng the year
- Gate of Increase/Decrzase - - - -
-Reasons for increasefdecrease
{e_g.allotmentftransfer/bonus/sweat
aguity etc)
At the end of the year B.86,100 14.19 E.26,100 14.19

(]
b
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Movbes:

The Followling Directors and KMP did not hold shares during Flscal 2019:
a) Mr. Rajesh Gupta — Non Executive Director
b} Ms. Madhusudan Prasad Keldwal - Independent Diractor
c) Mrs. Divya Kalre - Independent Director [ Appointad as on 01.06.2018 and resigned as on 07.05.2019]

d} Mr. Dinesh Chand — Chief Financial Cfficer { Appainted as on 20.04.2018 and resigned as on 05.09.201%}
e) Ms. Heena Lakhanl - Company Secretary

) mr. Akhilesh Poddar: - Chief Financial Officer (Appainted as on 17.02.2019) holding 256950 shares of the Company.

¥ INDEBTEDMESS

Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstandingfaccrued but not due for payment [In Lacs}
5 d Lo
Indebtedness at the beginning of B:::I.u din ans Unsecured Deposits Total
the financlal yaar i Leans P Indebtadnass
deposits
1} Principal Amount 893.02 - 853.02
il} Interest due but not paid - - - -
1M} Interest accrued but not due - - - -
TOTAL [I-+1+111) 893,02 ) ) 893.02
Change In Indebtedness during the
financial yaar
Addltlons 121625 - - 121689
Reduction [1359.67) - - {1359.67)
NET CHANGE {142.78) - - [142.78)
indebtedness at the end of the ) ) ) .
financial year
1} Principal Amount 75024 = - 750.24
11} Interest due but not pald - - - -
iii} Interast accrued but not due - - - -
TOTAL [I+HI1+1N) 750.24 - - 750.24
Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PEROMMNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and for Manager;
Total
SlNo Particulars of Remuneration Mame of the MD/WTD/Manager oot
1 Gross salary - - - -

(a} Salary as per provisions

contalned In sectdon 17{1) of the -
Income Tax. 1961.

(B]) Value of perquisites ufs 172}
of the Income tax Act, 1951

(c ] Prefits in ieu of salary under
section 17{2) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

2 Stock optlon - - - - -
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3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
Commission:
- a5 % of profit - % = = ”
4 - Qthers, spacify
5 Othiers, please spaclfy - - 2 5 3
Total (A} - = - - -

Croiling as par the Act: Rs.42 Lacs [As par Part-l of Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013}

B. Remuneraton te other directors:
Sl.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount
1 Indapandant Directars M Mad:;::':ln Prasad MAr. Mrs. Divya
Abhinav Kalra
Chaudhary

{3} Fer for attending board
committee meetihgs

{b) Commlsslon - - -

{c ) Others, please specify - - -

Total (1) - Z 2

Mr, Rajesh Virendra
Gupta

2 Other Non Executhre Directors Mrs. Amita Poddar

{a) Fee for attending
board committee meetings

{b} Commlsslon - - -
{c ) Others, please spechfy. - - -
Total (2) " % <
Total (B)={1+2} 2 . E
Total Managerial
Remuneration

Cvarall Caillng as par tha Act. - - .
L REMUNERATICN TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD {In Lacs)

Managerlal Personnal

&l. No. Particulars of Remuneration Company
CED 5 e CFD Total
L Gross Salary
{a} Salary as per provisions contained In 14.64 3.00 5.68 2432

section 17{1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

{h) Value of pargulsites ufs 17(2) of the = = - _
Incame Tax Act, 1961

{c } Profits in lieu of salary under section e = = =
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option . - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -
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4 Commission
-2s % of profit e 5 = =
-others, spedfy
5 Others, please specify .85 - .33 129
Total 15.60 3,00 7.01 25,61
Wi PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Section of the Detalls of Authority| Appeall made If
Type Companies | Brief Desariptlon | Penalty/Punishment/Compou | [RDFNCLT/ any (ghwe
Act nding fees Imposed Court) detalis}
A, COMPANY
Penalty - - - - -
Funlshment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
B. DIRECTURS
Fenalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - - - -
Compounding - - - - -
Forandonbehalfofthe Board ofDirectors
MAYTTR LEATHERFRODUCTSLIMITED
SD/- SD/-
PLACE: JAIPUR
DATE: 24.0%.2019 REK.PODDAR AMITA PODDAR
Director & CEQ Chairpersen & Director
DNN: 06143571 DIN: 00143486
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NOMINATION& REVIUNERATION
POLICY
FOR
THE MEMBERS OF BOARD
AND
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONEL
AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONEL
OF
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
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Preamble

a. Pursuant to section 178 of the companies act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and clause 49 of the listing
agreement, the board of directors of every listed company shall constitute the nomination
and remuneration committee. The Company already constituted remuneration committee
comprising of three non-executive independent directors as required under listing
agreement. In order to align with the provisions of the companies act, 2013 and the
amended listing agreement from time to time, the board on 30 May 2014 changed the
nomenclature of the “selection & remuneration committee” as “"nomination and
remuneration committee” and reconstituted the committee with three non - executive
independent directors as member of the committee. The Nomination & Remuneration
committee presently comprises of three members i.e., Mr. Madhusudan Prasad Kejriwal
(Chairman of the C ommittee), Mrs. Divya Kalra and Mr. Rajesh Virendra Gupta.

b. Theremuneration policy provides a framework for remuneration paid to the members of the
Board of Directors (“Board”), Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP") and the Senior
ManagementPersonnel (“SMP") of the Company (collectively referred toas “Executives”).

¢. The policy would be reviewed every year by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

Aims & Objectives
The aims and objectives of this remuneration policy may be summarized as follows:

7 That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to atiract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully.

# That the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmark.

» Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

. Definition

"Act" means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to
time

"Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

"Company" means "MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED ".

"Employees’ Stock Option" means the option given to the directors, officer or employees of a
company or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, ifany, which gives
such directors, officers or employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the
shares ofthe company ata future date at a pre - determined price.

"Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of The Companies Act
2013.

"Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or
the Manager, Company Secretary, Whole-time Director, Chief Financial Officer and Such other
officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole- time -employment,
designated as KMPby the Board and such other officer as may be prescribed.

"Nomination and Remuneration Committee" shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors
of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement.

"Policy or This Policy " means, "Nomination and Remuneration Policy."
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* "Remuneration" means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 196 1.

+ "Senior Management" shall mean officers /personnel of the listed entity who are members of
its core management team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all
members of management one level below the chief executive officer/managing director/whole
time director/manager (including chief executive officer /manager, in case they are not part of
the board) and shall specifically include Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer.

+ "Regulation" refers to and comprise of Companies Act, 2013, The Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, The Companies [(Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and such
other rules and provisions as applicable to the matters dealtin by this Policy.

4. Applicability:

This Policy is applicable to:

= Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and Independent;
» Key Managerial Personnel;

F Senior Management Personnel;

» Other Employees of the Company.

This Remuneration Policy shall also apply to all future / continuing employment/
engagement(s) with the Company. In other respects, the Remuneration Policy shall be of
guidance for the Board. Any departure from the policy shallbe recorded and reasoned in the
Committee and Board meeting minutes

5. Compositionof Committee, Chairman, and Secretary:

» The Committee shall consist of at least 3 members and all members of the Committee
shall be non-Executive Directors out of which at least fifty percent of the directors shall
be independent directors;

» Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Company shall act as Secretary to the
Committee;

» The quorum for the Meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
either be two members or one third of the total strength of the Committee, whichever is
higher (including at least one independent director in attendance).

» Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director;

# Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall
notChair the Committee;

» In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting
shall choose oneamongst them to act as Chairman;

# Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration C ommittee meeting could be present at
the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the
shareholders' queries.

6. Frequency of Meetings:
The meeting of the Committee shallbe held ATLEASTONCE IN AYEAR.
7. Committee Members Interests:

= A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being
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evaluated;
P The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be
present at the meetings of the Committee

8. Voting;

- Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a
majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all
purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee;

F In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman ofthe meeting will have a casting vote.

9. Appointment and Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management:
Appointment Criteria and qualifications:

#» The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior
Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

» A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to
decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are
sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.

» The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as
Managing Director /Whole-time Director /Manager who has attained the age of (70)
seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be
extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the
notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment
beyond seventy years.

# The Company shall take a prior approval of the Members by way of a Special
Resolution for appointment / continuation of appointment of any Non-Executive
Director who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years.

# Noperson shall be appointed or continue as an alternate director for an independent
director of a listed entity

» Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to compliance of provisions of
Section 149 of the Act, read with Schedule IV and Rules there under.

10 Term /Tenure:
A Managing Director Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding 5 (five) years at a time. No re-
appointment shallbe made earlier than 1 (one) year before the expiry of term.

B Independent Director:

i. An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 5 (five) consecutive years on the
Board and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report.

ii. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
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Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of 3 (three) years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
not, during the said period of 3 (three) years, be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

iii. At the time of appointment of Independent Director(s) it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to 7 (seven) listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such
othernumber as maybe prescribed under the Act or the SEBI Listing Regulations.

iv An Independent Director should not be a non-independent director of another company
on the board of which any non-independent director of our company is an independent
director.

C Evaluation:

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
Managementatregularinterval (yearly).

11 Criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board:

Following are the Criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the

Board:
> Executive Director; The Executive Directors shall be evaluated on thebasis
of targets / Criteria given to executive Directors by the Board from time to
time.
> Non-Executive Director; The Non-Executive Directors shall be evaluated on

the basis of the following criteria i.e.
Whether they:

a) actobjectively and constructively while exercising their duties;

b} exercise their responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the
company;

c) devote sufficient time and attention to their professional obligations for
informed and balanced decision making;

d) do not abuse their position to the detriment of the company or its
shareholders or for the purpose of gaining direct or indirect persomnal
advantage or advantage for any associated person;

g) refrain from anyaction thatwould lead toloss of his independence;

f)  inform the Board immediately when theylose theirindependence;

g) assistthe companyin implementing thebestcorporate governance practices;

h) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Committees;

i) participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in
which they are chairpersons or members;

i) strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

k) keep themselves well informed about the company and the external
environment in which it operates;

I)  do not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or
Committee ofthe Board:

m) Moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in
situations of conflict between management and shareholder's interest;

nj Abide by Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association, company's
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policies and procedures including code of conduct, insider tradin g guidelines
ete.

The evaluation ofindependent directors shallbe done by the entire board of directors which
shall include:-
1. performance of the directors; and

2. fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their
independence from the management:

Provided that in the above evaluation, the Directors who are subject to evaluation shall not
participate.

D Remaoval:

Due to reason of any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other
applicable Act, rules and regulation there under and as per the rules and code of conduct of
the Company, the committee may recommended, to the Board with reason recorded in
writing, removal of The Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personal subject to the
provisions and compliances of the said act, rules and regulations.

E Retirement:

The Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personal shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain The Directors, KMPs and Senior Management Personal in the same
position /remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit
of the company .

12 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

1) The Selection and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors shall be re-named
as Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
2) The Committee shall be responsible for:-

a. Formulating framework and/or policy for remuneration, terms of employment
induding service contracts, policy for and scope of pension arrangements, etc for
Executives and reviewing it on a periodic basis.

b. Formulate the criterin for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
appointments and remnuneration for the Director and executives.

c. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed
as Executives in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy, recommend to
the Board their appointmentand removal and carry out their evaluation.

d. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

e. Formulating terms for cessation of employment and ensure that any payments made
are fair to the individual and the company, that failure is not rewarded and that the
duty to mitigate loss is fully recognized.

f. Ensure that the level and compositions of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient,

relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriates
performance benchmarks.
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g. Devising a policy on board diversity
h. To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the
performances of its duties.
i. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director,
on the basis ofthe report of performance evaluation of independent directors
3 The Committee shall:
i. Review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy;

ii. Ensure that all provisions regarding disclosure of remuneration, including pensions,
are fulfilled;

iii. Obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in other companies;

iv. Ensure that no director or Executive is involved in any decisions as to their own
remuneration.

4 Without prejudice to the generality of the terms of reference to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee set out above, the Committee shall:

i. Operate the Company's share option schemes (if any) or other incentives schemes (if
any) as they apply to. It shall recommend to the Board the total aggregate amount of
any grants to employees (with the specific grants to individuals to be at the discretion
of the Board) and make amendments to the terms of such schemes (subject to the
provisions of the schemes relating to amendment);

ii. Liaise with the trustee / custodian of any employee share scheme which is created by
the Company for the benefit of employees or Directors and.
iii. Review the terms ofexecutive Directors' service contracts from time to time.

13. Compensation Structure

(a)

(b)

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors:

The Non-executive Directors of the company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees
only for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees. The sitting
fees paid to the Non-executive Directors for attending meetings of Board of Directors and
Committee of Board of Directors is Rs. 2,600/~ per meeting shall not exceed the maximum
amount as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 per meeting of the Board or Committee or
such amount as maybe prescribed by the Central G overnment from time to time.

I Remuneration to single Non-executive director exceeds 50% of total Non-executive
director then approval of shareholders by special resolution shall be obtained every year.
Beside the sitting fees they are also entitled to reimbursement of expenses. The Non-
executive Directors of the Company are not paid any other remuneration or commission.
The sitting fees of the Non-executive Directors for attending meetings of Board of Directors
and the Committees of Board of Directors may be modified or implemented from time to
time only with the approval of the Board in due compliance of the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

Stock Options:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, an Independent Director shall not be entitled to any
stock option of the Company.

Remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) & Senior
Management Personnel (s) (SMPs):
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The Company has a credible and transparent framework in determining and accounting for
the remuneration of the Managing Director / Whole Time Directors (MD/WTDs), Key
Managerial Personnel(s) (KMPs) and Senior Management Personnel(s) (SMPs). Their
remuneration shall be governed by the external competitive environment, track record,
potential, individual performance and performance of the company as well as industry
standards.

The break-up of the pay scale, performance bonus, and quantum of perquisites including
employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc shall be
decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and shall be
within the overall remuneration approved by the shareholders.

The remuneration determined for MD/WTDs, KMPs and SMPs are subjected to the

approval of the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the company in due compliance of
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.
The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director and / or Whole-
time Director shall be in accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down as
per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and any other laws, as may be
applicable, for the time being in force .

The fees or compensation payable to executive directors who are promoters or members of
the promoter group, shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders by special
resolution if:-

(1) The annual remuneration payable to such executive director exceeds rupees 5
crore or 2.5 per centof the net profits of the listed entity, whichever is higher;

(2) where there is more than one such director, the aggregate annual remuneration
tosuch directors exceeds 5 per cent of the net profits of the listed entity .

The remuneration for the KMP and the SMP at the time of the appointment has to be
approved by the Board but any subsequent increments shall be approved by the Managing
Director of the Company as per the HR policy of the Company and ratified by the Board. As
a policy, the Executive Directors areneither paid sitting fee nor any commission.

14. Approval and publication
i This remuneration policy as framed by the Committee shall be recommended to the
Board of Directors for its approval.
ii. This policyshallbe hosted on the Company's website.
iii. The policy shall form part of Director's report to be issued by the Board of Directors in
terms of Companies Act, 2013.

15.Supplementary provisions

a. This Policy shall formally be implemented from the date on which they are adopted
pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors.

b. Anymatters not provided for in this Policy shall be handled in accordance with relevant
State laws and regulations and the Company's Articles of Association. If this Policy
conflict with any laws or regulations subsequently promulgated by the state or with the
Company's Articles of Association as amended pursuant to lawful procedure, the
relevant state laws and regulations and the Company's Articles of Association shall
prevail, and this Policy shall be amended in a timely manner and submitted to the Board
of Directors for review and adoption.
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c. Theright tointerpret this Policy vests in the Board of Directors of the Company.

16. Deviations from the policy
Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed

necessary in the interest of the company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so
in an individual case.

Effective Date 01.04.2019

Approved by the board of Directors in their meeting held on 25.02.2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR 5d/- Sd/-

DATE :24.09.2019 R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR
Director & CEQO Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° March, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

‘T

The Members,

Mayur Leather Products Limited
G-60-62 & B7-69, Jaitpura Industrial
Estate Jaipur - 303704 (Rajasthan)

Wehave conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Mayur Leather Products Limited (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and complian ce-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEBI1 Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereof;

(vi) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector specific laws that are applicable
specifically to the company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(Notified w.e.f. 01.07.2015 and revised w.e.f. 01.10.2017);
ii. TheListing Agreements entered intoby the Company with BSE Ltd and CSE Ltd.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subjectto the following observations:

1. Hundred percent Shareholding of promoter(s) and promoter group is not in dematerialized
form as required under Regulation 31 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

2. During the financial year 2018-2019 the Company has submitted its Shareholding
Pattern with a delay of one day for quarter ended 31.12.2018 for which notice of penalty
was received and the same has been deposited by the company as per SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

3. During the financial year 2018-2019 Quarterly financial Resulits for quarter ended
31.03.2018 filed with delay of 02 days and for quarter ended 31.12.2018 with delayof 11
days for which notice of penalty was received and the same has been deposited by the
company as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

4. Further During the Financial Year Company has not transferred its shares which are lying
in unpaid dividend accountsince last seven year to IEPF account.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exisis for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at themeeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part ofthe minutes.

We further report that thereare adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the company has taken approval of shareholders for related party
transaction in the Annual General Meeting held on 29.09.2018. Apart from this during the audit
period, the Company has not undertaken any events/actions having a major bearing on the
company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. referred to above.

Place: Jaipur For ATCS & ASSOCIATES
Date: 30.05.2019 Practicing Company Secretaries

SD/-
DEEPAK ARORA
Proprietor
FCS55104

COPNo.: 14773

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.
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ANEXURE A

Our Report ofeven date is toberead along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company. We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors
regarding compliance of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder relating to
maintenance of Books of Accounts, papers and financial statements of the relevant
Financial Year, which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Ccompany.

We have relied upon the Report of Statutory Auditors regarding compliance of Fiscal
Laws, like the Income Tax Act, 1961 & Finance Acts, the Customs Act, 1962, the
Central Excise Act, 1944 and Service Tax.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of Laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Place: Jaipur For ATCS & ASSOCIATES
Date: 30.05.2019 Practicing Company Secretaries

SD/-

DEEPAK ARORA
Proprietor

FCS 5104

COP No. : 14773
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Form AOC- [ Annexure [V
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies / joint ventures as per the Companies Act 2013.
Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respectof each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

#.No. | Particulars SUBSIDIARY
1 51. No. a1
2 Name of the subsidiary MAYUR GLOBAL FRIVATE
LIMITED
3 Reporting period for the subsidiary
concerned, if different from the holding NA
company's reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as

on the last date of the relevant Financial NA
year in the case of forelgn subsidiaries.

5 Share capital 26,000,000 [Paid np Share
Capital)

5] Reserves & surphas

7 Total assets 44.954,346.37

8 Total liabilitics 44,954,346.37

9 Investments 12,641,653.66

10 Tumover g

11 Profit before Taxation 1,189,523.08

12 Provision for Taxation -269,226.43

13 Profit after Taxation 1,458.749.51

14 Proposed DHvidend NIL

15 % of shareholding 52.15%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end ofthe statement:
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil
FOR MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date: 24.09.2019 sd/ Sd/
Place: Jaipur R.K. FPODDAR AMITA PODDAR
(Director & CEOQ) {Chairperson & Director)
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
Sd/ Sd/
AKHILESH PODDAR HEENA LAKHANI
{Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)
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ANNEXURE- V
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
FORM No. AOC 2
Form for disclosures of particulars of contracts/arrangement entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section(I) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NOT

APPLICABLE
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis
(Rs. In Lacs)
Name of the |Natore of |Duration of |Sallent |Justification |Date(s) of |Amounnt |Date on
related party |the the terms of |for entering |Approval |paid as |which the
and natnre of (contract/ |contracts/ the ioto auch by the advance |apecial
telationship |artangemen|arcangement (contracts |comiracts or |Board , ifany |resolution
tf ! or aTTAngement wan pasaed
transaction |transactions |arrangem |s or in general
eots or transactions meeting as
tranzacti required
ons under flrst
ineluding provize to
the walue section
188
1.
mﬁlnm REL?“;;E NA 72,00 |NA gﬂ.ns.gm NA NA
[Common
Directorship
of Mr.
Rejendm n |Rent NA 0.82 NA 30.05.201 NA NA
Eumsar Income 8
Poddar &
Amita Foddar Interest
in both 05.901
d
Purcha
se of
1. |Goods |NA 2037  (NA U | T} NA
&Materi
al
Classic
International Sale of
Gouds
&Materi 30.05.201
2. al & NA 23,55 NA 8 HA RA
Service
Y
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Purcha
ae of
l, |Geods |NA 11.61 NA EU.GSEGI NA NA
&Materi
Mayur al
Unigouters | |sale of
Limited Goods
2 EMateri NA 077 NA 30.05.201 NA NA
al & 8
Service
8
Purcha
Stout (India) el 30.05.201
1. |Geods |NA 26.34 RA P NA RA
Industries : 3
&Materi
al
For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
FPLACE: JAIPUR S/ - Sel/ -
DATE : 24.09.2019 R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR
Director & CEO Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
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ANNEXURE - VI

1. DISCLOSURE ON THE REMUNRATION OF THE MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the Median remmuneration of the

employee of the company for the financial year- (Rs. In Lacs)
&, Name of Director/KMF |Remuneration of |% increase in | Ratio of
No. |and Designation Director ;| KMP remuneration |remuneration of
for the financial in ths each DMrector/ ta
year 2018-19 Financial median
[Rs. In lacs) Year 2018-19 |remuneration of
Employses
1 Rajendra Enmar 15.60 Not Applicable |7.61
Poddar
Chief Executive Officer 8
Director
2 Amita Poddar C Not Applicable |Not Applicable
Non- Executive Director
3 Madhusudan Prazad (¥ Not Applicable |Not Applicable
Kejtivwal
Independent Director
4 Rajesh Gupta o Not Applicable |Not Applicable
Non- Executive Ditector
5 Divya Kalra o Not Applicable | Not Applicable
Independent Director
& Mnesh Swami 7.19 NIL 3.51
Chief Financial Officer
{From 20.04.2018 to
31.03.2019)
7 Rohit Agarwal .50 NIL 24
Company Secretary
[From 30.05.2017 to
30.05.2018}
8. Heenn Lakhgni 2.50 NIL 1,22
Company Secretary
[From 01.06.2018 to
31.03.201%

The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 2.05 Lacs.

II. The percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief FinancialOfficer, C h i e f
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, ifanyin the financial year- CEO 21.50%, CFO
37.78%, C50.00%.

[I[. The percentage decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year-5.53%.

V. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company - 59.
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Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than managerial
personnel in the last financial year and comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial

remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration :-

Average increase in the remuneration of all employees excluding KMP's: Nil
Average increase in the remuneration of KMP's: 33.56%

The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: -
Not Applicable

Ii is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, KEey
Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR Sd/- Sdf-
DATE: 24.09.2019 R K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR

Director & CEO Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
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IN TERMS OF

REMUNERATION DRAWRN

[As per rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel]

Amendment Rules, 2016]

whether
any
such
smploye
Bhares cisn
La held relative
=t along of any
Date of peri A;;::l E Harmre “:.if;h or g
Name of | Designatio | Qoalifisatie | A A ancs m of
Employes n n ge ppoint {Years Remun plo | Employ sp mATAgAC
ment y erntion SdEE and of the
finke) | Y depend | compan
ma
i od v and it
childra B0,
n name of
such
director
or
MADAEAE |
AKHILESH g
.M [OFERATI 01.00.201 RK.
PODDAR oN ORADUATE 33 o Year'a 97200 | NA | Pormanent | 2,596,550 PCDDAR
CINESH
CHAND CFO GRADUATE 39 | Q102201 | 18 o | 744000 |NA | Permenent | Na NA
HWAMI 8
OY. oM 2162201 | a0
SUGATADE | (PROD & MBA 59 | 5 Year's | TWH000 | NA | Permenent | o, NA
QPERATION)
DLG.M
SHIB MFT FROM 0502301 | 21
e anucmm T 47 | ¢ e 624000 | NA | Parmansnt | NA HA
TTI NATIONAL
SUNIL DUTT | MAINTINANCE oxoLa0l | 21
AFFRETICESHI | 48 520,800 | NA | Pormanent | NA NA
SHARMA INCHARGE bty 7 Year's
HAMLESH MANAGER 0107300 | 1S
el EDF) H.COM a9 |- i 508800 | NA | Pormanent | NA HA
MAKSOOD | ASSISTANT 02.12.201 | 30
ALT MANAGER GRADUATE 50 |3 Fent's 415200 | NA | Permanent | HA NA
SURESH
SECRETARY 0104301 | 13
KUMARKE | 1o m.D. PRE DEGREE | 52 | , Yogrs | #@3,400 | NA | Pormancot | NA HA
CORFORATIR 01.04.201 | 25
RAJU SINGH | MANAGER CRADUATE 43 | ;T s 375600 | NA | Permanent | HA NA
HEAADMIN
BUSINE=SS
BAURABH 0112201 | 13
DEVELOPMEN | B.SC az 300,400 | NA | Permanent | NA HA
BHAUMIE T MANAGER 4 Fear's
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER FPRODUCTS LIMITED
PLACE: JAIPUR Sd/- Sd/-
DATE: 24.09.2019 RE.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR

Director & CEQ
DIN: 00143571

Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143486
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERALL REVIEW

Mayur Leather Products Ltd. is a publicly held Company engaged in the manufacture and export
of leather shoes and shoe uppers. Majority Sales of the company comprises of Local Sale. For the
period under review the Local sale (comprising of direct sale and through merchant seller) was
63.06% of total sale (Export plus Local Sale excluding other operating Income), rest being the
Export sale. The Company has decreased its Export sales to Rs. 461.28 lacs as compared to last
year which was Rs. 912.01 lacs. During the year the Company has decreased its turnover to
270944 pairs from 312908 pairs in the lastyear.

The company has been able to stable its sale due to aggressive marketing efforts to improve the
product mix to give better margins.

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year. The Earning per
Share (EPS) (basic and diluted) for current year 2018-19 is Rs. (5.22) /-as compared toRs. (6.01)/-
for the previous year 2017-2018.

OPPORTUNITIES

The Company has carved a niche for itself in the industrial shoe/ uppers segment both
internationally and in the domestic market. The quality of the Company's products is well
recognized. Embarking on this strength we are constantly working towards expanding the market
for Company's products to other couniries apart from our present work areas.

We intend to extend our exports but at the same time due to World-wide recession, we wish to
increase domestic sales. We are also approaching to other big industries tolaunch our products.

CHALLENGES

There has been worldwide recession during the period under review. Further, it is expected for
another year for which the challenge is to try and develop new products for the export market and
compensate by developing market in India.

OUTLOOK

With the efficient m.a:;ﬁement and zealous employees' strength, the Company constantly
endeavors to keep up with the trend of increase in the turnover and reduction in expenses. We
therefore hope tokeep this trend going with ongoing efforts toincrease the domestic as well as new
foreign markets, adequately training the manpower to effect the reduction in costs and increase in
productivity and efficiency.

RISK & CONCERNS

To sustain and grow in global market one must be ready for some level of uncertainty. Greater the
uncertainty, higher the risk. The risk management function is integral to the Company and its
objectives include ensuring that critical risks are identified, continuously monitored and
managed effectively in order to protect the Company's business. The Company operates in an
environment which is affected by various factors some of which are controllable while some are
outside the control of the company. The Company proactively takes reasonable steps to iden tify
and monitor the risk and makes efforts to mitigate significant risks that may affect it. Some of the
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risks that are potentially significantin nature and need careful monitoring are listed here under:

Macroeconomic Factors

Political Factors

Product portfolio

Competition from product launches

Talent acquisition & retention

Continuance and growth of channel partners
High dependence on suppliers

Geographic concentration

Changes in government policy and legislation
Chinese Competition

Raw Material Price Increase

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY

The Company has a well-established and comprehensive internal control system. Documents,
policies and authorization guidelines comply with the level of responsibility and standard
operating procedures specific to the respective businesses. Observation made in internal audit
reports on business processes, systems, procedures and internal control and implementation
status of recommended remedial measures by Internal Auditors, are regularly presented to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board. The system of internal control is being improved to
ensure that all assets are safe and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
and that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Company regularly
conducts internal check, using external and internal resources to monitor the effectiveness of
internal control in the organization. It strictly adheres to corporate policy with respect to financial
reporting and budgeting functions. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors deals with
significant control issues and instructs further areas to be covered.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summarized financial performance of the Company as compared to last year is shown as

under:

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 % Change
Revenue from operations 126,196,401.69 180,551,483.74 (30.11)
Other Income 17,549,646.89 12,987,173.71 35.13
Profit before tax -25,146,256.73 -28,747,711.54 -12.53
Net Profit after tax -25,239.846.64 -29,068,022.19 -13.17
Payment of Dividend {including 0 0 0
Interim and DDT)

EPS -5.22 -6.01 -13.14

HUMAN RESOURCE
Human resource remains a cornerstone of Mayur Leather's business. The Company continues to

lay emphasis on attracting and retaining talent. Personnel developmental initiatives including
training, both technical and managerial, are regularly conducted to enhance human potential. As
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on 31" March 2019, the number of employees including the contractual employees is 111.

The Company recognizes that its employees are its principal assets and that it's continued

is dependent upon the ability to attract and retain quality people. The companyhas established a
full-fledged Human Resources Department, which is entrusted with the responsibility of retaining
and developing the skills of all its employees. The Company also recognizes the importance of
providing training and development opportunities to its people to enhance their skills and
experiences, which in turn enables the Company to achieve its business objectives.

Cautionary Statements:

Statements in the Management Discussions and Analysis describing the Company's objectives,
expeciations or predictions may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities,
laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED

PLACE: JAIPUR Sd/- Sd/-

DATE :24.09.2019 R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR
Director & CEO Chairperson & Director
DIN: 00143571 DIN: 00143486
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS OF MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
Reportonthe Standalone Indian Accounting Standards ( Ind AS) Fin ancial State ments

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Mayur Leather Produects
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheetas at March 31,2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary ofthe significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our Opinion and tothe best of our infor mation and according to the explanations given to us,except for
the effects and indeterminate effect of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section
below, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act 2013 (*1he Act™) in the manner so required and give a (rue and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stale of affairs of the company as at March
31,2019 and total comprehensive income (comprising profit and other comprehensive income ). chan ges
inequityand its cash llows for the year thenended

Qualified Opinion
1. As Detailed in Note MNo. 44 of Standalone Financial Statements, Rent Expenses Rs. 51 57 Lakhs not
accounted as per INDAS-1 15 (Revenue rom Contracts with Customers ).

2. As Detailed in Note No.45ofStandalone Financial State ments, Gratuity has not been provided as per
actuary valuation given in IND AS-19 (Employees Benefits ).
3, As Detailed in Note Mo. 46 of Standalone Financial Statements,Loans and Advancesamountingin Rs.

86962 Lakhs are subject to confirmation and Reconciliation further these Loans and Advances
givenexceedsthe limit given u/ s 1 36 ofthe Companies Act, 201 3.
We further report that had the observation made by us in Item No. | above would have been
considered the total Comprehensive Income and total Equity would have been reduced by Rs.5157
Lakhs and Current Liabilities would have increased by Rs.51 .57 Lakhs.
Keyaudit matiers

I. We draw attention Lo Annexure to the Auditor's Report Para No. vii (a) that the company is not
regular in depositing its statutory dues with appropriate authorities. Our opinion is notqualified in
respect ofthis matter.

2. The Company is in process to prepare Return and reconciliation for Goods and Service tax for the
financial year 2018-19. In the absence of sufficient details and information, we are unable to
determine the correct liabilities oftax, interestand penalty; accordingly we are unable to comment
onthe impact ofrelated liability included in these Standalone Financial Statements

ther Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible lor the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditors Report thereon, The Annual Report is expected to be made available 1o us
after the date of this Auditor's Report. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
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connection with our audit of the standalone linancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report,if
we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and
regulations.
Management's Responsibility forthe Standalone Ind ASFinancial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™ with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements Lo give a true and fair view of the financial position, linancial performance (including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally acce pted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section [33 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ofthe Act for safeguardingofthe assets of the Company and for preventingand detectingfrauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimatesthatare reasonable and prudent;and design,implementation and maintenance ol adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give atrue and fair view and are free [rom materialmisstatement, whetherdue tofraud or
error.
In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements management is responsible for assessing the
company's abilityto continue as a going concerndisclosing,as applicable matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or [o cease operations or has no realistic alter native but todo so. Those Board of Directors are
alsoresponsible foroverseeingthe company's financialreporting process.
Auditors'Responsibility
Our objective is Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Stalements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's
reportthatincludesouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a highlevelofassurance,bulis nota guarantee
that audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise [rom fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis ofthese Standalone Financial Statements.
As partof an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain sceplicism
throughout the audit. We also;

o Identify and asses the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements whether
due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those risk and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
malerial misstatement resulting from frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery.intentionalomissions, misre presentations or the override ofinternalcontrol,

¢  (Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audil procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i} ofthe Act, we are responsible for
expressing our opinion whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
andtheoperatinge ffectivenessolsuch controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimates
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andrelateddisclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to continue asagoing concern. Ifwe
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors report to
the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, il such disclosure are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company Lo cease Lo conlinue as a
Zoing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transaclionsand eventsina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planed
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deliciencies in
internal controlthat we identifyduring our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement the we have complied with relevant
ethical requirementsre garding independence .and tocommunicate with them allrelationship and other
matters that may reasonablybethought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,related safe
suards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, wedetermine those matters that
were ofmost significance in the audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audil matters. We describe these matler in our auditors report unless law or
regulations precludes public disclosures about the matters or when,in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated inour report because the adverse consequence
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communicat ions

Reporton Othe rLegal and Regulatory Requirements

aj

b)

)

d)

e)

f)

As required by the Companies { Auditor's Report) Order,2016,issued by the Central Government ofIndia
interms of sub-section (1 1) ofsection 143 ofthe Act (“the Order™), and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records ofthe Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us,we give in the Annexure Bastatement onthe maiters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3} ofthe Act, wereport that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
andbeliefwere necessary for the purposesof our andit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kepl by the Company so [ar as it
appears from ourexamination ol those books.

The Balance Sheet,the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income ), the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books ol account.

In our opinion the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.

On the basis of the written representations received [rom the directors as on March 31, 2019 takenon
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors isdisqualified as on March 31,2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal inancial controls with reference Lo financial statements of
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the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure A

2} With respect totheother matters tobe includedinthe Auditors' Reportinaccordance with Rule I | of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and tothe best ofour knowledge and beliel
andaccordingtothe information and explanations giventous:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact,if any,of pending litigations as at March 31, 2019 onits
financial position in its standalone Ind ASfinancialstatements — Refer Note 47 1o the standalone
Ind ASfinancialstatements;

ii. The Company does not have derivative contracts and in respect of other long-term conltracts
there are no material foreseeable lossesasat March31,2019;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the yearended March 31,2019;

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company
for the yearended March 31,2019

(h) withrespecttothe matter to beincluded in the Auditors' Reportunder Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us,the remuneration paid by the
Company to its direclors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are
required tobe commented upon by us.

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED AOCOUNTANTS

FRN: 000152 C
S0y -
{MADHUKAR GARG)
Place: Jaipur PROPRIETOR
Date:24.09.2019 M.NO.OTD162
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Annexure A to Independe nt Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Mayur
Leather Products Limited on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March31,2019.
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Qause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 ofthe Act

. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial state ments of Mayur Leather
Products Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31,2019 in conjunctionwithour auditofthe standalone Ind
ASfinancial statements ofthe Company for the yearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal (inancial controls
based on the internal controlover financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assels,the prevention and detection of
fraudsand errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financialinfor mation,as required under the Act.

Auditors'Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit ofInter nal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the*Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit ofinternal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectivelyin allmaterialrespects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operaling effectiveness.Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements included obtaining an
understandingofinternalfinancialcontrols with refere nce to financialstatements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

5. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Company's internal linancial controls system with reference to linancial
stalements.

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls with reference tofinancial stateme nts

6. Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed (o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) Provide reasonable assurance
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that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of linancial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with anthorisations ofmanagement and directors of the company; and (3)
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or dispositionofthe company's assels that could have a material effect onthe financial statements.

InherentLimitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference tofinancial stateme nts

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to linancial stalements may become inadequalte
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion; the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls

system with reference to linancial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to linancial

stalements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over [inancial

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

ForH.C.GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C
SD/-

(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR

M.NO. 070162
Date: 24092019

Place Jaipur
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Annexure Bto Independent Auditors’
Report Referred to in paragraph 11 ofthe Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Mayur
Leather Products Limited on the Ind ASFinancial Statementsasofand for the yearended March 31,2019
i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situationofproperty, plant and equipmentand intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management and is reasonable
having regard to the size olthe Company and the nature ofits assets. No material discre pancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds ofimmovable properties, as disclosed in Note 7(a) on property,plant and equipment
tothe Ind ASfinancialstatements,are held inthename ofthe Company.

ii. The physical verification of inventory (excluding inventories lying with third parties and stock in transit)
have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. In respect of inventory
lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physicalverification ofinventor yascompared tobook records were not material.

iii. The Company has granted loans to body corporate covered in the register maintained under section 1 8% of
the Companies Act, 20 13 (“the Act™).

a. Inour opinion,the rate ofinterest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted
to the Body Cor porate listed in the register maintained under section | 89 ofthe Act,is prima facie, not

prejudicial to the interest of the com pany.

b. In our opinion and according (o the Information and Explanation given 1o us, there is no
agreement/arrangement regarding stipulation of schedule of Repayment of Principal and Payment of
Interest. Hence, we are unable to make specific comment on the Regularity of Repayment of Principal
and Payment of Interest, insuch case.

¢. Inour Opinion and accordingto the information and Explanation given to us, asin absence of
agreement/arrangement we are unable to verily the total amount overdue for more than
ninety days, if any in respect of loan granted to a Body corporate listed in the register

maintained under section 1 89 ofthe Act.

iv. Inouropinion,and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
wilth the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investments made. The
Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under
Section 185 and 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013,

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,74.75 and
T6ofthe Act and the Rules [ramed there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost
records asspecified under Section 1 48( 1) ofthe Act in respectofits products. We have broadly reviewed the
same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination ofthe records with a view to determine
whetherthey are accurate or complete.

vii. (A)According to the books and records as produced and examined by us in accordance with generally
accepted auditing practices in India and also based on Management representations, undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees' state Insurance Dues, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
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Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT, Goods & Service Tax Act, we £ 01.07.2017 Cess and Other material Statutory
dues have generally not been regularly deposited, by the Company during the year with the appropriate
authorities in India. Accordingtothe information and explanation given tous,undisputed amounts payable
in respect of the aforesaid dues were not outstanding as at March 31%,2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date of becoming payable.

(B) According to the information and explanations given tous and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are dues which have not been deposited with the respective authorities in respect of Income Tax,
Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise and VAT, Goods & Service Tax Act, w.ef.01.07.2017 as at March
31,2019,

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us,
the Companyhas notdefaulied in repayment ofloansorborrowings toany inancialinstitution or bank or
Government ordues todebenture holders as at the Balance Sheetdate.

ix.  TheCompanyhas not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the vear. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

.64 During the course ofour examination of the books and records ofthe Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted audiling practices in India,and according tothe information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
any suchcase by the Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneralion in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Viothe Act.

xii. Asthe Companyis not aNidhiCompany andthe Nidhi Rules, 20 14 are not applicable toit,the provisionsofl
(lause 3 (xiijofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and |88 ofthe Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
Ind AS Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Qause 3{xiv) of the
Order are notapplicable to the Company.

xv. The Companyhasnolentered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him.Accordingly,the provisions of Qause 3(xv) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C
SD/-

(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162
Date:24.09.2019
Place Jaipur
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Mayur Leather Products Limited (the Company) is a publicly held Company
incorporated on 13th March 1987. The registered office of the Company is located
at G-60-62 & 67-69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaitpura, Jaipur-303704. The
company is engaged in the manufacturing and export of Leather Shoes and Shoe
Uppers. The majority sales of the Company comprises of exports. The Company is
engaged in production of industrial shoe / uppers segment both internationally
and in the domestic market. The Equity Shares of the Company are presently
listed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ASSUMPTIONS AND NOTES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Ministry of corporate affairs has notified roadmap to implement IND AS notified
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2016. And according to the said
roadmap the company is required to apply IND AS in preparation of financial
statement from the financial year beginning from 1st April 2017.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred toas the

Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2016 as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

Use ofestimates, assumption and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. Actual results could vary from these
estimates. The estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future years (refer Notes on critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements). The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of
the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comprising of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss, Statement of changes in equity, Statement of Cash Flow together with notes
comprising a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory
Information for the year ended 31st March 2019 and comparative information in
respect of the preceding period and Balance Sheet as on transition date, i.e. 1st
April 2016 have been prepared in accordance with IND AS as notified and duly
approved by the Board of Directors, along with proper explanation for material
departures.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Measurement
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The standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention except following which have been
measured at fair value:

a. Financial assets and liabilities except those carried at amortised cost
b. Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value less present value of
defined obligations

An asset is classified as current when it is:

(a)Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle,

(b)Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

(c)Expected tobe realised within twelve months after thereporting period, or

(d)Cash or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

Aliability is classified as current when it is:

(a)Expected tobe settled in normal operating cycle,

(b)Due tobe settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

[c)There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

The operating cyde is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and
linbilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

4.2 Inventories
a. Raw Material :

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at cost or landed value
whichever is lower. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of
raw materials, components, stores and spares is determined on FIFO basis.

b. Finished goods & work in progress:
Work in progress is valued atcost

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a portion of manufacturing overhead based on
normal operating capacity.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary tomake thesale.

4.3 Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the method as prescribed in IND AS 7 'Statement of
Cash flows', where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
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operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated
with investing or financial cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

4.4 Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors include omissions and misstatements arising from a failure to
use reliable information that was available or could have been obtained when
financial statements for those periods wereapproved for issue.

Prior period errors relating to the last comparative period will be shown by
restating the comparative figures of Balance sheet and Profit and loss, wherever
necessary. Thus, it will be disclosed in the comparative financial statements as if
the error had noteven occurred.

And if the error relates to earlier financial years(FY 15-16 or before], then it will be
adjusted from the asset/liability and retained earnings of the last comparative
period shown(FY 16-17).

4.5 Revenue recognition and other income
a. Revenue on sale of products

The Company recognise revenues on accrual basis and measured it at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts, volume rebates,
GST. Revenue is shown inclusive of excise duty since excise duty is liability of the
manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether
the goods are sold or not.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been tramsferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, thereisno
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

Export sale has been recognised at the time of removal of goods from factory at
invoice value (whether FOB or CIF) on the basis of exchange rates declared by
Custom D epartment for that particular month.

No significant financing component exists in the sales.

b. Revenue from services (Job Charges Received):
Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

c. Export Benefits:

Export benefits in the form of Duty Drawback, Duty Entitlement Pass Book
(DEPB) and other schemes are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when
the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect
of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

4.6 Otherincome
a. Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
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outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset tothat asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b. Dividend

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive dividend is established.

C. Lease Rent

Lease Rent is recognized as income in the Statement of profit and loss on acerual
basis i.e. as and when leaserent is due.

4.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plantand equipment are tangible items that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes; and

(b) are expected tobe used during more than one period.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are
recognised in accordance with this Ind AS when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

Initial recognition: The Company has applied for the one time transition
exemption of considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016
as the deemed cost under IND AS.The initial cost of property, plantand equipment
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes, and any
directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location
for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent expenses and recognition: Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment have beem put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, are normally charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which the costs are incurred. Subsequently Property, Plant and
Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, ifany.

Gain /loss on disposal: The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement ofan
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipments exceptfree hold land is depreciated
on Straight Line Method in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions and deletion during the year
has been provided on pro-data basis with refernce to the month of addition and
deletion.

Capital work in progress

The expenses relating to the construction of building is capitalised at the time
when they are incurred. And when the asset would be completed, the same shall
betransferred to asseta/fe.
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Leases

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised
in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
excepted inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in
the balance sheetbased on their nature.

Operating lease payments arerecognised as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless either (a) another
systematic basis is more represantative of the time pattern of the user's benefit
even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or (b) the payments tothe
lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for thelessor's expected inflationary cost increases. In the event that
lease premiums are paid to enter into operating leases, such premiums are
recognised as a prepaid expenditure and amortised over the period of lease.

Financial lease transactions entered are considered as financial arrangements
and the leased assets are capitalised on an amount equal to the present value of
future lease payments and corresponding amount is recognised as a liability. The
lease payments made are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of
outstanding liability in relation toleased asset.

Leasehold land has been amortised over theremaining period oflease term.
4.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebates less accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment
loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use.

4.10 Investments in Subsidiary

The Company has invested in shares of its subsidiary Mayur Global Private
Limited of whose 52%shares are in hand of Mayur Leathers Product Limited.

4.11 Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and
measured at amortised cost. Transaction cost is amortized over the period of
Borrowing using straight line method

4.12 Employee retirement benefits
a. Short - term Employee Benefits:-

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in
the period in which the employeerenders the related services

The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability after
deducting any amount already paid.

b. Post-employment Benefits:-
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(a) Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to superannuation fund is recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss as it is incurred. There are no other
obligations. Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make
monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage
of the covered employee's salary.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable

to the shareholders' and weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year
attributable to the shareholder' and weighted average number of equity and
potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result
would be anti-dilutive.

Impairment of assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are
indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount (ie. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in
use). The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the
reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Anyimpairment gain loss is transfarred to profit and loss.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are
recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the notes. Contigent
assets is neither recongnised nor disclosed in the financial statement.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
equivalent period governmentsecurities interest rate.

Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted
toreflect the currentbest estimate.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
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it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle ora
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent
liabilities is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

o Contingent assets are not recognised in the books of the accounts and are not
disclosed in the notes. However, when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, butitis recognised
as an asset and the corresponding income is booked in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

4.16 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current
period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities atiributable to temporary differences
and to unused taxlosses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply when the related defferred
income tax assets is realised or thedeferred income taxliability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current taxassets and liabilities and when the deferred taxbalances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off
set where the Company has a legally forceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on anet basis, or torealize the asset and settle theliability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred taxasset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheetdate
and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent
there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period.

4.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and atbank, deposits held at call
with banks.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents
consists of cash and short term deposits, having maturity less than 3 months.

Other bank balances include FDRs with government department which are not
readily available.
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4.18 Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and
impairment
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ofanother entity.

Financial Assets
o Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit or Loss, depending on the

judgment of the management for managing those financial assets and the assets'
contractual cash flow characteristics.

o Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial
categorisation. For impairment purposes, financial assets are assessed
individually.

De-recognition of financial Asset

A financial asset is primarily derecognised (ie. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

o The rights toreceive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. When the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates ifand to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g.,loans, debtsecurities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables:

o Areceivable is classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect to the amount due
from customers on account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost , less expected creditloss if any.

o Impairment is made for the expected credit losses. The estimated impairment
losses are presented as a deduction from the value of trade receivables and the
impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Other
expenses’.

o Subsequent changes in assessment ofimpairment are recognised in ECL and the
change in impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under "Other Expenses".

o Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by
reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Other Expenses'.

o Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to "Other
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Income".
Investments in Mutual Funds

Investments in Mutual Funds have been valued at their fair values through Profit
and Loss account, as on the closing date. The fair value has been taken from the
market.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than those valued at fair value
through profit and loss are recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are
directly related to the issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial
liability carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit orloss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities
held for trading. The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon
initial measurementrecognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on
account of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business.
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. The differen ce between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid is recognised inprofit or loss as "Other Income" or "Finance
Expense".

4.19 Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing at the time of transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not covered
by forward exchange contracts are translated at the year end rates and those
covered by forward contracts are restated at each reporting date by using spot rate
and exchange rate difference was booked. Corresponding Forward Contract
Receivable & Payable is also booked in books of account taken on such forward
contracts. The Exchange rate difference on Forward Contract was charged to
Statement of Profit & Loss. Premium paid on such Forward Contractis charged to
Statement of Profit & Loss on periodic basis.

4.20 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
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carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any resulting impairment loss is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On classification as held for sale
the assets are no lon ger depreciated.

4.21 Segment reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on nature of products and
returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating
segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available
and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the
managing board in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance.

4.22 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current labilities as deferred income and are credited to
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight - line basis over the expected lives of
related assets and presented within otherincome.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements
are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based omn historical
experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectation of
future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised
in the period in which the results are known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events that existed as at the
reporting date, or that which occured after the date but provide additional
evidence about the conditions existing at the reporting date.

Property, plantand equipment

o Management assesses the remaining useful lives and residual value of property,
plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and
residual value are reasonable.

Income taxes

o Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income
taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

o The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which
could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone
financial statements.

Contingencies

o Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim /litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
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accuracy.
Impairment of accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables carry interest and are stated at their fair value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for expected credit losses. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is
recognised for theexpected credit losses.

e Discoun ting of Security deposit, and otherlong term liabilities

o For majority of the security deposits received, the timing of outflow, as mentioned
in the underlying contracts, is not substantially long enough to discount. The
treatment would not provide any meaningful information and would have no
material impact on the financial statements.
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Wote 7 Property, Flant & Equipment |
As On 310872019 lha per As On 3170372018 {Aa
H.Na. Description IND ABJ par IND AH|
‘TANGHBLE ABEBETE :
1 Land -
F Building 6,991,165.48 7,401,372, 18
3 Furndture & Fiztures 311,036.51 402,5364%
1 Laboretory Equipmenta 375,E14.53 435,208.33
B Flant & Machinery 17,950,564.15 20,113 976,99
5 COffice Equipmenta H12,476.28 248,821 86
T Electric natallation 36,158.00 36,158 D¢
o Diesel & Generator Set 237 ,090.82 256, 73008
9 Complter 150, 774.2T7 190,073.08
10 Motor Vehicle 3,435,532, 74 3,785,150.60
11 |Shoe Last 214,320.03 156,870.14
12 THer 1581,145.57 187,396.82
13 Boulds 1,454,072.81 1,54%,283.54
Restsnrant -
14 Computer 1301750 13 01750
16 Electric Pitting 123,282.0% 216,288.7%
18 Furnilnre & Fixturea 333,010.95 334 ,881.71
17 Office Equipmenta 114,770.83 114,1232.36
TOTAL 32,154,064.58 36,44 7,6648.39
Hote-8 Non- Currant Investmenta |
As Da 310872019 ks par As On 310372018 {Aa
H.Ka. Duacription
a Equity sharea in Mayur Global Private Limited 13,560 000,00 13,560,000.00
13,546,(H) ahares &t the mtc Ra, 183/- cach {10,00,000
shares g at 31at Match 2016 and 31at March 2017)
) Investment in Mutual Funds 3,333 ,646.37 3,174,160.00
TOTAL 16,553 646.37 16,734, 160.00
Note-9  Otber Non-Cusrent Financial Assets
An On 31/D3/3019 |An par As On 31/03/3018 {An
IND AH| por IND AB|
B.No. [}
1 Security Deposit with Parties 2440,231.40 2,27%,611.40
TOTAL 2,440,351 40 2270 611.40
Hote-10 [Other Non Cuurent Financial Asset
As Oo 31/D3/2019 |A par | As On 310373018 |An
IND AH| por IND AB|
8.No. Dwacription
1 Unamortized an:nau:E Cha.rg:a 74,541.56 £7,147.78
2 Securlty Depoalt with Partles - -
3 Lenge Prepayment 4,558,950.00 4,649, 71900
TOTAL 4,673,191 .56 4,716 A&6.TH
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Note-11 Invastories
As On 21/03/2019 (As per As On 31/03/2018 iAa
IND AB) per 1NL AE)]
8.Na. Daacription
1 Raw Material 14,831,577.00 16,608,217.00
1 Wairk It1 process B,630,072.00 11,025,331.00
3 Finished Gooda 8,793,361.43 9,772,145.75
TOTAL A%, 308 010 .45 AT, 408,593 78
[(Rfer Wobe an aocounting policy for valuation pehoy of weindosles)
Note-13 Trada Recalrable
Ay On 31/03201% (An por Az Umn 31/03/3018 (As
IND ARy prr IND AfY)
B.Hv. Description
1 Trude Receivables 16,511,158 .82 4/ H11 297 38
TLOTAL 16,811,188 490 446,811 397,38
|
Note-13 Cazh % Cash Equivalents
As On 310373019 [As per As On 317032018 (As
IND AS) par IND» AS)
A.HNa. Desoription
1 Bank Balanpe
- In Fixed Deposit A0,00H0.00 438,000, 00
=In Currant Avcomind and Deposil Aoeount 148,548.58 146,5902.08
1 -iiayh in Hand
In Local Carrency 2,041,167.00 434, 056.00
Tm. Foreizn Cuxrency 233,467 .98 233,467,938
TOTAL 2473, LED, B 1,287, 426,06
Note-14 Other Bank Halancs
A On 31/093/2019 (As por As On 31/03/2018 (As
IHD AB) per IND A8)
8.No. Desoription
1 Uepaid Hvidend Accoant a79.087.75 034,368 75
TOTAL 272,087, T8 234,368, T8
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Nate-15A Loans and Afdvances
As On 31/03/2019 (As per | A= On 31/03/2018 (As
a.Na. Description IND AE) per IND AB)
1 ADOLF IMFEX 2,500,000.00
) Anita Gupta [L] 205,426.00 205,426.00
a ARTITAN RTTEDWELL &,500,000.00 5,500, 040.00
4 ASHOK KUMAR MALHOTRA HUF 2,140,548.00 2,140,548.00
5 DIV REALTORS PVT. LTD. 10,07 5,000.00
& Goadveril! Brerprises 40,230, 0H 40,320,060
7 HM.C. BOFTWARE FVT LTD 4,540,061.00 4,540,061.00
3 Ishwar Singh Verma 120,000.00 120,000.00
[ JINDAL BEUILDSYS LIMITED 1,929,51{.00 1,029,510.00
ic MEGHNA AGCARWAL 1, LA, 004,00 2, 180,000.00
11 Meel Kamal Textle Mills Fvi. Lhd. 4,550,000.00
12 Neera] Kumar Batra 1,500,000.00
13 WINMAT METH HEATLTHCARE 1, C30Ey, CChC} O} 1,000, 00000
14 NIMISHA PRASHANT 1,000,00:0.00
135 FROACTIVE FROFESSIONAL SERVICHS FVT. LTDD. 2,500,000, 00
16 Maywr Glabal Pvi, Lid. (Subsidiary Company} 8,000,000, 00 8,000, 000,00
17 FUSHEKAL INSTITUTE ANIMATION FRIVATE LIMITED E00,000.00 1,000,0030.00
18 Ram Babu Vijay 435,377.00 435, 377.00
1% Kitu Kapur [L] 344,000, 00 344,000.00
30 SAFETY PROJECTS P¥T. LTD. LOAN 3,500,000.00 3,500, 000.00
21 Shashwat Cahlea P. Lid. 14,000,000.00
22 SHUBHASHISH IT SERVICES LIMITELY 14.375,000.00 9,450, 000.00
23 SHUBHASHISH BEALESTATE SEEYICES FYT, LTI 25,300, 000).00} 26,250,000.00
24 Suirodse Indentsational 2,000,000.00
25 Surya Foles 655 ,410.00 659,410.00
as Swastik Fre Stress Induririca 351,250.00 1.351,250.00
a7 Uiited Prembivss Industties 806,806,000 8045,096.00
28 VIKAS LALIT KUMAR MEHATA 1,500,000, 00 1,635,000.00
Totnl 55,001, 698,00 832,53T,5598.00
Leas: Prrrigion for Doubiful Debis 40,220.00 40,220 00
Grand Total o4 D52 478,00 92,697 .478.00
|
Hots-15R Other currant financiol assata
Az On 31703732010 (As par As On 3170372018 Az
8.Ho. Descripticn THT A4) par [ND AS)
a} Acerned Interest on FDR - 401,337.42
b) Accrued Duty Credit Scrip - 1,883,223.00
c} Accrned subeidy ageinst inferest cost on FDB Limit 108 096.00 93,21%.00
d] Claim Recetvable azalnat Stock - -
€] Accrued Interest on Loan 4,673,607 .00 3,696 005,00
TOTAL 4.781,T23.00 5,085,717, 42
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Note-15 Other current asactis
As On 31/03/2019 (As per As On 31/03/2018 jAs
5.No. Description IND AB) per 16D AB)

wlAccrued Inferest pon FDR E =

bj Accrued Duty Credit Serlp - -

c) Accrnes] subsidy pgaingt interest cost on FOB Limit - -
d) Clabm Recefvable ageinat Stock - -

e} Arcroed Duly Thawhack 95,354.00 449 148 00
f) Forelgn travelling Advance = 1,830,356.00
g} Prepaid Fxpenacs 41,587.00 352,643.00
h) Advance to Suppliers of Raw Material 5 -
iJAdvunce to Expenses - -
J1Advances to Employees & Workers 170, 795.00 404, 67800
k)Advance Inrnmwe Tax & TS Receivable 4,432 743,00 B,327,835.00
ljincome Tax Demand C3-D4,03-05 1,013,635.00
m) Burise & Service Tax RBeceivable - -
njAdvence with Grevernment Authorities 10,263,138.52 12,28%5,7011.74
olhectued Interest om Loty -
plLease Fre Payment o, 767.00 S0, 766.32
ql Unamenrtzed Proceasing Charges - 17,7344

TOTAL 15,757,394.52

21,731,440.46
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[ 100

Roko-17 Egulty Shuxw capital
ArOn
31/0a/3019 {As As On 31/03/3010
|As par THD AHj
rer IND ADG
i.Na. Description
1 Aathoriend | |
50, 00,00 (58,00, 000 Equbty 8haras of Be, 10/- sach 55,000,000 Sr 010002, 0100110 |
2 Iswncdd & Babscribed |
45,34 B [48 54 Y Equbty sharsa of Be. 14 sach /- 4 38 00N A A A0 10 |
2 Pald Up |
4E,34,EM [48, 54 B0 Equbty sharss of Rz 10 ssch /- 33 OO0 A8 A48 Ol 00 |
* figures in bracket are of Provisas Year) |
& Ehares Forfelbed 1,411,7B6.00 1411,7B6.00 |
| I
Total 4, THO, TRE. 43, TRY, TAG.H |
I
(] Baprity Bharves ¢ - Ths Canfony has st ohuls of sombty shersa hawisg o pir waine of R, 10/- par ahacn, Daah she tebmdderia
sligidle for one yoos pac ihars held. Tha dividend propossd by tha Boanl of DHesctors i sobjact to tha spprovil of tha shareloldsrs in
tha ing Ansuasl G 1 Mesting axoept in o of interim divkdend. [n the awsie of lquidation. The Eynity sharsholders aes
aligikle ko rucalve the remadoing assets of the Company after distcfbudon of all predy dnl ts, la proyortion to theic shars
Tnlding.
I
b} Datatia of Eharen hald by Ehareaboldars holding mors than 5% of the sgeragats shares |n tha Company |
Manwe of Bhare Holdar AS AT 210319 Al AT 31.04.18
Bo. ol Weape Soldourssl  Nooflharel ol Muges
Rejendm Kumer Podder 1127, ™1 23.33% 119776l 43.33%
Mayur Global Priopte Limibed T8 241 14.B1% T4 14,81%
SAamita Poddar BEE, 100 14, 1% G100 14, 19%%
Abkdrilesh Poddar 268,60 5.3 1% 236550 5.31%
Swrite Gupta 60568 5,374 214800 6.651%
Tatal 1,048,718 #3.01% 3101383 4. 16%
b} Reconcilistion of the Nomber of Equoity Sharss
AE AT H1.03.19 AR AT 21.(:1.18
Balancs ap at the beglnning af
the your HEFA RO 0 HEFARG00.00 483420000 “HER4AA0. 0
Add ; Shares waued during the yepr 0.0 [, G 0,3 Q.00
Balrooe w at the cod of the yosr A D40 0D 43 4 BT 0D IR0 N A B B0 0D

[cy] Equity Sharwe : - The Company hes one clres of equity shares having & par vwaue of Re. 10/- per share, Each sharcholderis eligitle for
ofum vate pat ahate hald ‘The divldend propased by the Board of Dhwectere 1a subdect to the appoenral of the aharabwelders in the e
Anmual Genemal Meeting except in cess of interim dividend, In the event of liquidation. The Equity shercheolders sre cligible to receie
the remalritg aeacts of the Company afher distelbrdan of all prefersitial amettits, it propattion o thels abate haldieng
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Note l8 Qehar Equicy
FT e ]
3170372019 {As Ad s 3170372018
(A= per IND AE)
B.Ho. Description per IND AE)
Rassrves snd o
1 Guneral Reserve
At the beginning of the yeat 17,170,000,00 17,170,000.00
Add; Additioma during the year -
Leaa: withdrawsls/ transfer -
Balance at the year snd 17,170,000-00 17,170,000.00
2 Beaurity Freminm Adomnt 1B, 878 9239.00 18,579 939,00
a furplos
At the beglonlng of the year 22,547,284.92 21,504 252, 70
Add: Priot vear IND AR Adjnstmenta - 11105441
Cpenltiy Balatiees cotimideting IND As Adjustinents 0,547, 084,00 51,615,307.11
Add/({Lesa]; Additions during the year -35,239,846.64 -29,068,022.1%
Arld: Unamortized Transaction Cost
Less: Amnrteation of Leasehald 1and
Add: Incresse In Value of Inveptment due to falr value
Lesa: Deferted Tax Liabilitty
2,692 85172 X2 847 204,00
Leam: Appropristions
Interim Dividend on Equity Bhares for the Year
Propored THvidend on Equity Shares far the Year
Dividend Diateibatlon Tax
[Tranafer to Genoml Renetve
Dividend Declared during the Year|2015-16]
Reversal of DTADTL
Add: Other Comprebasnsive Inoome
Baliircs at the ik ariid %93
TOTAL AT, 35728 HE.BOT 31892
Rnte 19 Non-Curvent Barrowing
As Do
21/05/2019 {A» Ax Om 31703718
[Am par THID AN)
#.No, Description per |0 AN)
1|Canars Benk-5 Croas car Loan
2|Canara Bank- Flant & Machnery Losn 5,094 460,32 6,999 ,983.00
TOTAL B, 004,450 5,899.923.00

Hatura of Becority and terma of repayment for Loog Tersn ssonred horrowings:

Nainre of Berarity

Term lean from bank, balanes cutstatding atmoanting to Ka,
68,99,983 ia secured by way of mortagage of Plant and

Machinery

Repsguble 1n 60 monthly instafiments
gtarting from December, 2017, Last
ingtallment doe in December, 2022, Rate
of Intereat 10.75% p.a_ a8 at year end.

Car Loan, belance cutetending emounting to Ra. 900,000 is Repayehle in 84 quarterly installmeots
gtarting  frem  Orpober, 3017,  Lagt
instellment due In Cetober, 2024, Rate of
Interest 8.85% poa. as at year and,

secured by way of mortgaers of Car
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Rarte-20 Daferrad tax Habdlitisg (Kat]
Aa Om
#1/03/301% {As "";';:-‘::"":]“
A0, Dascription par I0D AH)
Major components of defarred tax balences
1 Dafarred Tax LinbiHdas
Dreferred Tax Llakilitca 1,430, 13,34 1,336, 825.42
TOTAL 1,480,813, 3 1,336, 223,43
Mote-31 o Borrguring
A On
A1/03/2019 jAs As Om 31704 018
gt IND A8 (8a par IND AE)
4. Mo. Daescripton
Working Cagtital Loan repayabls oo demand from Banks :
Becursd
1 Canats Banl - FBD Limit 2,954 33300 19,51%, 73003
2 Catyats Batile - Paclchog aredit 21,985 4B5_ 0 19,546,244 00
| Catats Banile - CC Litndt 40,3846 450 00 40 267,553 04
L) Adityn Birla Finance Lid 1,734 936 30
A Canorm Honk- Flaot & Mochnery Looan 1,800 D00 1,800, 00000
5 Conorn Hanle- Cor Loon Albe TeE D13 68 BES, Q0500
‘TOTAL 5,5822.9231.88 B3,401, 75,1
Haturs of Bacvarhty and terma of sapayment Bor Onreent Barmwing
Mutniva of Beomrity
Merch 2014 Ba. 1,95,1%, 730, Canara Bank Packing Credit Intereat Rotbe @ 10 6%.
balenee sutmtaling s on 21st March 2018 Re.1,99,96,244,
Canara Bank 0 Limit alanee cucstanding as on 23 1at March
2015 Be. 402,867,533 ars secured by way of Trade Receivablea,
Irmvendoriea, Plant and Machinary and Bullding
Rots-33 ‘Trade Fayablas
Bk Ot
A1/03/201% {As Ad D@ 3170870018
1 asm) (A preoe THID AR
S.Hn Dasoriptinmn Ll
1 Trade Payakl=a 10,325,126 65 0,163,428 14
TOTAL 10,335, 138 56 5,168 43H.14
Rote-23 Othar Current Financial Lisbliicias
Am Tm
2170373018 e | A% O 21/OR/AA1E
por IND &3) (A= per THID AH)
B.Hn. Dasaripting
1 Current meturities of long term borrowings foefer Note No. 3.3]
2 Chitatanding Kabilities 1343,528.00 348,965.00
TOTAL 123 E38.00 S48 285.00
Rube-24 Othet Catremnt Liabdli-ves
dw Omn
81/03/2015 {As ";";:g;"":]“
A.Ha. o ptiom par IND AH)
1 Statntocy Lintilities 1,164,993.38 3, L86,544.75
2 CHher Linkilides 57,780, 812,13 50,780, 862,15
a |¥hert Term Provisienw A5, B0
‘TOTAL B9, 200, 814.81 53, 9TT 40 20
Rota-3E Prowislens
iz Om
a170373015 {As As Om 3170373018
[i» par IND AH)
5.8y, Descripton por 10D AB)
1 Prevision for Income Trx
a Propopesd Dividend
3 Citvidernd Distrbution Tex Payable
TOTAL
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For the anded For ths period suded
Riipuliaty $1.08.2015 31.08.2018
(=) Bale of products
[ij Export Sales
Shoes 40,145, 154 69 34,356 107 45
Upper 5,930,551.21 56,747 .610.06
Cthers £2,237.50 a7,200.00
[il] Locsl Eales
Shoes T8,753.013.29 73,295, 18210
thers 8.826,237.93
[k} Other Operating Income
Duty Drawhack
Shoes 164.814.00 3.069,287.00
Upper 1,150,601.00 1,656,845.00
Duty Credit Scripts 5 2,499,004.00
Total 1286,196,401.69 180,561,483.74
27 Other Incotne
For the period ended For the od ended
Rastisuling 31.02,2019 31.5:?:013
Recovery againgy loaa of dameged gooda -
Renr Recetvediclty Office) 182, 648.00 B1.64B8.0C
Eent Received 3,680,230.00
Interest on Loan 8,950,397.00 0,110,981.00
Interest on FDR -280,301.55 1938.968.00
Freight 225.267.81
Dividend Received -
Service Tax Refund 28,071.00
Exchange Rate Difference 1,520,233.26 3,185,175.71
Serap Sales -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 325,790.00 137,820.00
Rate Difference in Export Material =
Insurance cleim receivahle for loat meterial -
Claim for Quality Differences 88,2590.00
Diecount Received 1,879.00
Increase in value of Mutual fimmds 158,488,377 156,220.00
FPS Licenst Received 2,734,020.00
Cther 50,957.00
Total 17,349 646.89 12987,173.71
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28 Coat off Watarial Congumed

Particmiiars

Dpaning Stock

Add: Purchans of Raw Material
Add: Fralght

Add: Insuranee

Leag: Cloalt gy Stowle

Far tha pariad sndad
21.05.201%

16,608,217.00
TS,G65 AGE, 81
2,455 ALK 4%
8,163 .00

o 076, 14125
14,881,577.00

For tha paricd snded
21.03.2018%

17,003,243.40
130,A73,891.14
5,441,673 30

33 773.00
16X, 352, A0, Had
16,608,317.00

B4, 196,560.29 136,740,663, 04
Excige Draty - 614,741.00
Total 84,106,564 137,305, 40454

a9 = lm

inventoriss of Findshsid Gooids & WIF

Particulars

For the period coded

For the poriod coaded

31.03.2019 21.03.23018
Seehiny Lveptogies
Finished fFoods 9,772, 145.75 7, 668,906.61
‘Worlt in progress 11,026,323 1.00 13,526,115.94
20, 7THT,47T6.TH 21,195,.0332.58
Leww: Closing Inventories
Finished Goods a7e3361.43 @, TF2,145.75
‘Werlt In progress BEICOT2 11,0:25,331.00
17,433,433.43 20, 79T ATE.TH
INCREARE/(DECREASE)] 3,274,0415.33 a7 545680
0 Em B hanafits [t o ]
For tha pariad sndesd For ths pariod sndsd
31.08.201% 31.03.201%
il Balaries f& Orther Allowanes 17481, 736,00 18,467,017 00
[LEN Leawa Encashment 103, 584 00 &0, 2553 .00
[FEE] Reimbmrasment af Medical Expenees 1,110, 376.00 1,334 Ta3 o0
i) Reimbmrasment of Conveyanss EXpenasa 379.268.00 178, 00000
I ithticse Pretnhim o Mediclaies & Ceatdty
=) st ST FET.0D T3,538.00
i) Contritaton to Provident Furd 477 514.00 TA0,583.00
fidi) Bonuas 545, 444,00 1,.804,253.00
[ix] Comtribution to ESIC 316 879.00 A87,259.00
[x] Contribution to Grwbuity 832 18900 177.767.00
[ ] Inzurancs Premium Keymen Inmarsnce Policy -
i) Biaff welinrs Expennscs 365, 488.00 536,%92.65
[xiii] Sercurity Charges 841 ,920.00 £31,1566.00
[Eai] Cleaning and House Keeping 531,339.00 &58,082.00
[xv) Proceaeing Chargea 11,342,850.34 15,554,913 .36
[xv) FProdurticn Incentives 235,074.00 381,183.00
vl Lmass Rent for 8upply of Manpawer 3,200, 00000 A,A75,000.00
31 (Financial
Total 6074, 13734 A5, 525, Al O
For ths periad sndsd For ths paricd snded
Erctiealaty 31,03.2019 31,03.2018
i ] Bank Charges 637,358 24 1,126,620 77
fii) Interest on 20 Limit +,627,218.00 2,652,813.00
[afiy Interast o1 FDOB Limit ntliaed 271,504 O 28 002 00
[iv} Interest on Packing Credit 1,36%,180.00 1,199, 116.00
3] Intereat 041 Term Laen Flant & Machinery 926,940 O 155,155.00
[wi) Praocessing cherpes of term loan 223.,393.60 a,789.82
Total B 054 500,24 5, OG5 A0, 55

34" ANNUAL REPORT 2018

019




PDF Compressor Free Version

3d cher axpromss

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

For the poriod cnde-l

For the pariod amsdasl

Fexlionlas 21.02. 2018 21032018
L) MANDFACTURING EXRFENAEA
Insurences Premium (Comprehensive #& Ctherm) BE17TD -
Fower, Fucl & Water FE=g 2T 4, 'F e, 205,
Bapaizs & Malnbeaancse 2
-BMachitieny & Elecbiicals ZIGEES. DG 351,861.00
-Bhailding 3834625 20 a8 o0
Coosumahle Storen -
Develapment fLabhoratory & testHng 21304K. 9 B&1, 727 00
Rubber cCenp SOZS 230,5T5.00
‘Toiml S8 10,8 TE.BN B.TA4, B80.00)
(] ARLLTNG EXPENSEA
Clearing & Forvarding Eapenscs FH1la84 47 1,786 D290
ECC Promiuim 450132 .65 STDGE28.00
Claden for Duality B Reprali 84166.8 518,00
Diacount on Salea 133116.1 3.245.00
Exchonge Rate diference foreign currency -161390 150, 7a4.00
Embpoay Leglolatdon Chorges =N a] B, OO 100
Rete Differences Inter atate Supply a0, 551.00
Incet1tive Clearancs BExp IR0 69, 652.00
Freight & Cartagn Crhatward ZH0E192.33 4,238, 644 54
Inapecton Fee 1580 1,667 .00
Licenice Fexs Bl 5 33 al0.00
Zialey Prometon Expengoy 1250147 &2, 181 94
Ealea Comaniston FPE4510.'72 1,730, 293,00
Cielirerd o =
Loeding/Unloading Charges B3g50 50, 500,00
Pockngng Expenme= ShE A6, TTA DD
Tender Application fes Zo7AD 100, Ta0 0n
‘Total Blapees. Lk o O g
e} ADMINIETRATION EEXFENSES

Lense Bent for mmowmble Property

3,800, 00000

2,925 K. 00

Converances Expenaca ACAGBS14 41 B17650.63
Fostage & Cogrler Expenses UG, B8 20TA1 T 44856
Lonation 42100 12430100
IS Expediad s 15000 43314.00
Inasurmnos Premium | Vehiole} 213391 15488300
Intereat oo Exrime duty ¥ SO00.00
Intereat Payhle ta others a3l ES

Interest on Sales TR L= o e len)
Incore Tax Dernand atd intersat on DDT Q 1,065,485 1.4
ESYIMANE t5 SNAITeIE

-Btatutory Audit Feen 47FB115

=Tanx Audit

-Erther Services
Laogal & Profecasslonal Expenece

17 ra42n. TS

=2,03%, 131,040

Lidatityy Feeedl &a Secretoscial Comp. EXpanses 811&349.5 SBO,B32R.45
Membership Fees & aubacription frioieta e grg 336,215.80
Minosllansois Expenme=a 214336 91 160,695 61
Misrsllans=onas Balances Wrken OF 13ARTA TT 71,790.91
Printing and Statlonery 151ETE 0o, 561500
Ront, Ratca & Taxca 1,459, D25, 0
Reaiaitn & Maibtetiatics -Ganetal 318595.85 24B8,5%8.80
Fepnir & Maintrmeanos-Yehiole 2A5TAS.F 400,836 .47
Intereat on Vehicle lomn FT2BB6 25 85300
Telephonese and intermet Expenses 20K]1 12 95 A20,2327.97
Bervice Tax on Transpoert and Rent o 38,3207.08
TS Expensas 29191 Fal2.00
Intereat oo servicn tax o 361.00
Annual ERP Maintenanoes E
ArnortHsaton of leagehald Ionnod 376F -
Roynd off 235, TW

Izaveilinr EXDADses =
-Foatelgn B335 04 2TR,1Z21.00
-Looal 4303 535.27) 551.883.10
Total (T FERT RS 139,068,514 25
Toinl (A+BC) 51,388, TOD. 7O 28 00 488, 18
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33 Exceptional Itemns

For tha pariod anded For tha pariod snded
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Loas on Sale of Fixed Asaets E 3
Loas of matetial in tranait - =
Total = o
34 Incoms Tax Expsnsss
Tax expens:: recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Partioul For tha perlod saded Faor tha period saded
31.03.2019 341.03.2018
Current Tax
Prowision for Income Tax [Current Year)
Short / (Excess) Provision for incometax of
earlier Yeara Adjuated
Total
Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax charpgef|credit) -93,589.91 320,310.65
Total Deferred Income Tax expensef(benefit) =53 BEG.91 320,310.65

Tax ity respect of carller years

Total income tAE sEpODSS
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D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management ob jectives and policies
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute

its business strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy is set by the
Managing Board.

Financial risk factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, borrowings and
other liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage finances for
the Company's operations and also for purchase of capital assets and for safeguarding
its interests under contracts.

The Company has given loans to other parties, trade and other receivables, investments
in equity shares and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its operations as
a partofits financial assets.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
a. Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

b.Interest Rate Risk

Marketrisk is the risk ofloss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may
result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments incduding investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables
and loans and borrowings.

b. Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading toa financialloss.

The Company makes major of its sales, either on an advance basis or against credit, and
hence the credit risk is minimal. Financial Instruments like trade receivables are subject
toslight credit risk against which the Companyhas booked Expected Credit Losses.

The ageing of trade receivables as on 31st March 2019 is as below:

; Dua upto 36 Due for more than 36
Forticulmms Mu:tha Months Tonl
CGood 16,511,158.82 - 16,511,158.82
Deubiul 179,489.42
Cthers
Groas 16,511,158.82 175.485.42 16,511,158.82
Expected Credit Losses 179,489 42 179,489.42
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The ageing of trade recelvables as on 31st March 2018 is as below:

(In Ruppees)
Due uptn 36 Dae for more fhan 36
| T
acticulucs Months Muomnths otal
Good 3.791,552.72 40,840,255.24) 48,811,297.38
Doubtful 179 489 42
Others
Grass 5,791 552,72 41,019,744 66 48,811,297 38
Expected Credit Losses 179,489.42 179,489.42
o Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company maynot be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptablelosses.
o The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its

cash requirements. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements
toensureit has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.

Market Risk
Commeodity price risk and sensitivity

Being a manufacturing Company, the commeodity risk of the Company is there. In case of
some commodities sold by the Company, there is a price risk for which no specific
arrangements havebeen made by the Company.

Expected Credit Losses

100% Expected Credit losses are recognised for all financial assets which have become
due for morethan 36 months.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market
reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits
are maintained. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances
other than those required for its day to day operations. The rest amount is deposited in
the PD account, with the government, which can be withdrawn as and when required
and on which interest, as fixed by government, is being received. This PD account is a
risk free deposit.
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36 Fair Value Measurement
Financial nstrument by category and hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate thefair values:

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade
payables, other current liabilities, short termn loans from banks and other financial
institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of
these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the
Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of
the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for
expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

3. IND AS 101 allows Company to fair value its property, plant and machinery on transition
to IND AS, the Company has fair valued property, plant and equipment, and the fair
valuation is based on deemed cost approach where the existing carrying amounts are
treated as fair values.

The fair values for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows
discounted using a current lending rate.

In case of security deposits, Company has used the fixed deposit rate of the year of
making advance.

They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of
unobservable inputs including counter party credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a
current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the use of unobservableinputs, including own creditrisk.

For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the
carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value
offinancial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices / published NVA (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial
instruments like mutual funds for which net assets value (NAV) is published mutual
fund operators at the balancesheet date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (thatis, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). It includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on the company specific estimates. all
significant inputs required tofair value an instrument are observable then instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
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observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

{Ameant Lo Re.
Thousandsj
Particulars s ot Slet Harch 2019 Aa ot 3ot Havch 3016 A ot 31at March 3017
Cattying Ameunt Falt Value Cattylng Ameunt Fair Vahae Carrplog Atnout Fair Vahue
amoriised cost
Trade Receivahles 16,511,158.82 | 16,511,158.82 46,11 297.38| 46811.397.38 432 BO7 TE4.T4 A3 BOT,764.74
Cash s Canh Equivalents 2,474,183.55 2.474,183.56 2,191,794 81| 2,191 79481 7,033, 965.24 7,023, 955.98
Losms and Advences 54 962 4760.00 |  94,962,470.00 92 597 ATR00| 92597 ATAO0| 100,23707300]  100,237,073.00
Orthyer Finanedal Asaets | Curent and 7.223,054.40 7.223,054.40 8.368,386.82| 5,268,388.82 6,039,510.95 B, 032,510,95
Particulsrs An gt Blut March 20189 A st 91" March 2018 As ot 51 March 2017
Carrylay Anauiint Falr Valus Carrylag Antount | Falr Valoe Curtying Aoveund Faiy Valua
valne throngh other comprebensiv
Lcons - . i
Partioulsms An gt 31wt Mprgh 3015 An at. 31* March JG1R Az xt 1% March 3017
valie throngh profit and losa
Mutual Funds 3,342 B4B.37 3,332 B46.37 3,174,160.00| 3,174, 160.00 2,717, 94000 2,717 945,00
As at 31" Macch &5 at 31 March
Pastieulars Ax gt 3t Murch 2018
F-ril ] 2017
amortiesd cost
Baitowings Mon-Current and To023,680.00 | A9401,715.00 89301 715.00] £9,301,715.00 58,204 A52.00 5,224, 558.00
Trade Pryaklag 10,326,123 .66 9,163 428.14 9,163,426 14| 9,163,428.14 33,184 450.00 33,184, 450,00
Orther Financsdal Liatdlites 1232,528.00 348,265,00 J44,265.00 344,265, 711,5268.39 711 83839
As ut 31" March &z at 31™ March
Particulass As gt 31st March 3019
X018 2017
Carrylog Amoaunt Fair Valow Carrylog Ammount | Fuir Valos Canrying Amoont Fuir Valoa
aiuorthaed ot at Jadse value thromgh
it and e - - |- -
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37 FAIRVALUE HEIRARCHY

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's asset
and liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

a Quoted prices/published NAV (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1). It includes fair value of financial mstruments traded in active markets
and are based on quoted market prices atthe balance sheetdate.

b Inputs other than quoted prices incduded within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2). It includes fair value of the financial nstruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, interest free security deposits) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on the company specific estimates. Hall
significant in puts required to fair value an instrumentare observable then instrument is
included in level 2.

¢ Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Finanecial Liabilities accounted for in the Standalone
Financial Statements as on the reporting date of the entity

As at 31st March 2139
Particulars Levell Lewsl 2 Level 3
Financial Asseis
Trade Receivables 18.511,158.62
Cash & Carh Equivalesits 2473,183.56
Crher Finarelal Agaets 7222 054 40
Inveshinenis ARAaRAN 37 12 580 000,00
Finenrial IiabiliHes
Horrowings (Nen-Cuarrent and Canretit) B8.301,715.00
Trade Payvahles 9,163428.14
Other Financial Liahilities 348,265 00
As at st March 2115
Particulars Levell Lewrsl 2 Level 3
Financial Asseis 48,811,297 38
Trade Receivables 1,257,426 .06
Cash & Cach Equlvalents 101,200,235.57
Ciher Finarclal Agsets
Inrvestments 3,174,1450.00 14, 580,000,008
Finenrial IiabiliHes T6,023,6882.20
Horrowings (Noen-Cuarrent and Canretit) 10,328,128.66
Trade Fayables 122,508 00
i Hher Fineticlal Liakilites

During the year envded March 31, 2018 and March 31, N9, there were no transfer into and cut of Level 1 fair value
measurements.

Following table describes the valuation techmigues vsed and key inputs to valuation for level 3 of the falr value hlerarchy
ae st March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, respectively:

Partleulars Fair Value Helravehy Valuation Technigue Tinpaits Daed
Financial Aseeta
Investments Tewvall Quoted prices
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CAPITALRISK MANAGEMENT

Objective

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the
shareholder value. i.e. to provide maximum returns to the shareholders. The Company's
primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient
capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum
returns to the shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

Policy

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes
in economic conditions and the rules and regulations framed by the Government under
whose control the Companyoperates.

Process

The Company manage its capital by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure
financial ratios, such as net debt-to-equity ratio on a monthly basis and implements
capital structure improvement plan when necessary. Debt-to-equity ratio as of March
31,2019 and March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Particulars As on Mst March | As on Xst March
2019 2018
Total Non current debt 3,094,460.32 7650492 00
Total equity 80,117,153.28 105,356,969.92
Ratio 6.36% 7.3%
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Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of INT» AS 24, name of the related party, related party relationship,

() Related party name and relationship:

Particulaxs Designation
(2) Executive Directors:
E.K Peddar Director
E.¥ Gupta Director
Amita Poddar Director
M.P Kejriwal Independent Director
Divya Kalra Independent Director

(b} Relatives of Executive THrectors with whom tramsactons have taken place:

Paxticulms

Relation

E.K Poddar
Akhilesh Poddar

LYirector
Director's Son

{c) Non Bxcecutive Directors and Enterprises Over which they are able to exercise significant influence

(With whom transactnn have taken place):

FParticulazs Designation
Mayur Global Pyt Lid. Subsidiary Company
{d} Other Ralated Parties

Paxticulas Dresignation
Mavur Unigouters Limited Director's brother's Firm
CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL Firm of Directors Brother
STOUT {INDIA) INDUSTRIES Firm of Directors Brother
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{if} Transactions Carried Cut With Related Parties referred in point 1 above in ordinary course of Bosiness
(Ra. It Amnunt)

Nature of Transacions Related Partles

Referred te in Referzed to in 1{b} Referred toin | Refuredtoin
1{a] abrve above 1{e) above 1{d) above

Purchases
Goads & Maierial -
CLASSIC INTERMATIONAL 2,037,320.00
STOUT {INDIA) INDUSTRIES 2,634 242 00
Mayur Uniqouters Limited 1,180,452 01

Sales
Goods & Material & Services o
CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL 2.354,101.00
Mixgiir Uniqeitrs Tinited TE,5H2 00

Expenses
Jobwork expenses -
Lease Rent {(Manpower & Bullding] - Mayur
Glnbal Frt. Lid {Subsidiary) 7,200,000.00

Employee Benefit Expenses -
Interest Paid

Dther Rebmbrizegeinonts

I[neome

Reat Tivcorng Maynr Glalbal Pt Lid
{Subeidiary} BlLe48.00

Jobweork Incxrme -

Interest/Dividend Mayur Global Pvt, Ltd
{Subsidiary} 720,000.00

Purchase of Flant and Machineey 5

Enlated Farties
Nature of Transacifans As at 3 et March,
e

Az at 315t March, 2013

Dutstandings

Payable (Trade Faybles and wther Liabilitics)
Koy Manapemernt Perdoriial

Relatfves of Koy Manaperial Personnel 756,000.00 56, 000,00
End of the year 756,000.00 F56,000.00

Receivables

Eelatives of Key Managerial Personine] (Loans
|and adverwes bracle fecelvables) 12,351 666,00 11,775,315.00
End of the yoar 12.351,666.00 11,775315.00

Exerutive THrectors Compensaton
(@) Short term Employee Benefits

Total Compensativn
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41 ASSETS PLEDGED A8 SECURITY
The carrying amounts of asgets Pledped asz gecurity for current and non-current borrowings are:

An at 31st March, As at 31st March,

2019 2018

Current Assets
Financial Assets
Floating Charge
Cash & Cash Eqnivalents
Receivables 16,511,15%.82 45,811,297 .38
Fixed Deposit lien by bank against term loan
Short Term Loane & advances
Hon Finanelal Asssts
Floating Charge
Inventories 42,305,010.43 a7,405,693.75
Other Current Assets

Total Current asscts Pledged as security

Non Current Assets
Firat Charge
Land 4,802,013.00 4,802,018.00
Building
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Plant and Machinary including Store 8 Sparea 17,950,566.15 20,114,116.00
Fized Deposit lien by bank against term loan
Others

Total non-current assets Pledged asz security
Total assets Pledged as security 71,568,783.4D 109,133,125.13
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The following is a reconciliaton of the equity shares used in the
computation of bagic and diluted earnings per equity share:

fin number)

Particulars

For the vyear ended
31" March 2019

For the vear ended
31" March 2018

Issued number equity 4,834,800 4,834,800
shares

Potential Equity Shares - -
Weighted average 4 834,800 4 834,800

shares outstanding -
Bagic and Diluted

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company 1used in the basic

fin number)

Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended
31* March 2019 31" March 2018

Profit and loss after tax -25,239 846.64 -29.068,022.19

Profit and loss after tax
for EPS

_25,239,846.64

-29,068,022.19

Basic Earnings per -5.22 -6.01
share
Diluted Earnings per -5.22 -6.01

share

n 34" ANNUAL REFOAT 2018-201

The number of gsharez used in computing basic EPS is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the satne bagsis as basic EPS, after
adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity.

=]
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43 PFinancial and Dervatives [nstroments

The company have following foreign curreny earnings and expenditures :

(Armmourt in Rs)
Expenses in foreign currency
AB at ¥t March, As at ¥1st March,
Particnlars
019 2018
Travelling 829.304.0 46218700
Claims and Compensations - For quality and development
Baw Materail Parchese 4 458.906.00 7.542,059.00
Membership 187, 11400 46.928.00
5475,924.00 8,351,174.00
Earning in Foreign Currency
{(Amount in Rs)
As at 315t March, |  As at 31st March,
ParHenlara
019 218
Export of Goods on BOB Basis 46,127,973.40 91, 200,91 7.71
46,127,973.40 #1,200,817.71

Renyt Expenses amoinding to Ba_ 51 57 Lakhs for Restatrant Actvily were nnt shown as expences during the Current Year 2018-

" 19. Thus Ind A5 115 on "Revenue from Contracts with Custamers” 1s net complied with
15 Cratuity Liability hae been raleulated on estimated basls and oot as per Acturlal Valuation which is requisd ae per Ind AS 19
"Emplojree Benefits"
The Company has piven Loans and Advanees amountng o Rs. B59.62 Lacs {other than Loans to Subeidiavy) out of which Rs.
& 869,62 Lacs are subjert to Confirmation and Recenciliation.

Furthet the Loans and & Advarwes glven by the Company exceed the Timft specified under Section 1856 of the Compandes Act,

2013

For and on behalf of the Boaxd

8D/ - 8D/-

R.K. FUDDAR
{CEO & Directar)
DIN No.: 00143571

SD/-
Akhilesh Poddar
{Chief Financial Gfficer)

Place: Jaipur
Date: 24/09/2019

AMITA FODDAR

[Chairperson & Director)
DIN Na.: (1143486

8D/-
Heena Lekhami

[Company Serretary]
M.Na. Ara 53279

(]
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For H.C. GARQO & COMPANY
CHARTIERED ACCOUNTANS
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8D/-

Madiwkar Garg

Froprietor
M.No. 070162
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TOTHEMEMBERS OF MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
Reportonthe Consolidate d Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Stateme nis
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind ASfinancial statements of MayurLeather Products Limited
i *hereinaflier referred to as the Holding Company™)andits subsidiary (the HoldingCompany and itssubsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group™), (refer Note lto the atlached consolidated Ind AS financial statements},
comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2019, the consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss{including Other Comprehensive Income ), the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended
andthe Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant records (hereinafier referred to as “the
Consolidated Ind ASFinancial Statements™.
In our Opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,except for the
effects and indeterminate effect of the matters described in the basis for Qualified Opinion section below, the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, ofthe state of affairs of the company as at March 31,2019 and total comprehensive
income (comprising profit and other comprehensive income ), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
thenended.
Qualified Opinion

l. As Detailed in Note No. 46 of consolidated Financial Statements, Rent Expenses Rs.51.57 Lakhs not
accountedasper INDAS-115(Revenue from Contracts with Customers).
As Detailed inNote No. 47 of consolidated Financial Statements,Gratuity has not been provided as per
actuaryvaluation given in IND AS-19(Employees Benefits).
As Detailed in Note No.4 80l consolidated Financial Statements, Loans and Advances amounting in Rs.
869 .62 Lakhs are subject to confirmation and Reconciliation further these Loans and Advances given
exceedsthelimit given u/ s | 86 ofthe Companies Act, 201 3.

[t

LR ]

We further report that had the observation made by us in Item No. 1 above would have been considered
the total Comprehensive Income and total Equity would have been reduced by Rs. 51.57 Lakhs and
Current Liabilities would have increased by Rs. 5157 Lakhs.

Key audit matters

L. We draw attention to Annexure to the Auditor's Report Para No. vii(a} that the Holding Company is
not regular in deposiling its statutory dues with appropriate authorities. Our opinion is not qualified
inrespectofthis matter.

2 The Holding Company isin process Lo prepare Return and reconciliation for Goods and Service tax for
the financial year 2018-19. In the absence of sufficient details and information, we are unable to
determine the correct liabilities of tax, interest and penalty; accordingly we are unable to commenton
theimpact ofrelated liability included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

3. We have not audited the Financial Information ofone subsidiary whose Financial Information reflect

total assets of Rs. 449 54 Lakhs, and net assets of Rs. 33791 Lakhs as at March 31, 2019 and total
revenue of Rs. 7722 Lakhs. Total comprehensive income (comprising of Profit and other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 14.59 Lakhs and net cash flow amounting to (Rs.9.70 Lakhs) for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated financial statements. These Financial
information have been audited by other auditor whose report have been furnished by the
management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as il relates to the
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amounts and disclosures included in respect ofthis subsidiary and our report in terms of sub section
(3} of Section 143 of the Act in so lar as it relates 1o the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the
reportofthe other auditor.

{Xher Information

The Company's Board of Directors isresponsible for the otherinformation. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our
Auditors Reportthereon, The AnnualReportis expected to be made available tous after the date of this Auditor's
Report. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will
notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit ofthe Consolidated (inancial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomesavailableand,in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated. When we
read the annual report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required Lo
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the
relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Stateme nts

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
20013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that giveatrue and
fair view ofthe financial position, financial performance {including other comprehensive income), cash flows
and Changesinequity ofthe Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard ) Rules, (as
amended ) under Section 133 ofthe Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance ol adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
financialstatements that give a trueand [air view and are free rom material misstatement,whetherdue to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the company or Lo cease
operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the company's financialreporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectiveistoobtainreasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that andil conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the aggre gate ,they could reasonably be expected
toinfluencetheeconomicdecisions ofusers taken on the basisofthese Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain skepticism
throughout the audit. We also;

¢ ldentify and asses the risks ol material misstateme nt of the Consolidated FinancialStatements whether
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due to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery.intentionalomissions, misre presentations or the override ofinternalcontrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i} of the Act, we are responsible for
expressing our opinion whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
andtheoperatingeffectivenessolsuchcontrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of accounting estimales
andrelated disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the aundit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt onthe Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. [f'we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atlention in our audilors report Lo
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial State ments or,if such disclosure are inadequate, Lo
modily our opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company (o cease (o conlinue as a
ooing concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Consolidated Financial State ments,
including the disclosures and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactionsand eventsina manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planed scope and
timingoftheauditand significant audit findings.including anysignificant deficienciesin internalcontrolthat we

identifyduring our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement the we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence ;and to communicate with them all relationship and other matters that
mayreasonably be thought tobear onourindependence,and where applicable,related sale guards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were ofmost significance in the audit ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matiers. We describe these matter in our auditors report unless law or
regulations precludes public disclosures about the matters or when inextremely rarecircumstances we
determine that a matter should notbe communicated in ourreport because the adverse consequence of
doing sowould reasonably be expected tooutweighthe publicinterest benefits ofsuch communications

Reporton OQther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

114

Asrequiredby Section143(3)ofthe Act,wereporl.tothe extentapplicable, that:

We have sought and, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS linancial
statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Holding Company.
including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements have been kept so far asit appears [rom our examination of those books and records of the
HoldingCompany.
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¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensiveincome),Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Chan ges
in Equity dealt with by this Report are inagreement with the relevant books of account maintained by
the Holding Company including relevant records relating to the preparation ofthe consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
AccountingStandards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.

e. On the basis ofthe written representations received from Lhe directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31,2019taken on record by the Board of Directors ofthe Holding Company, none of the director s
ofthe Holding Company is disqualified as on March 31,2019 from beingappointed asa director in terms
ofSection 164 (2)olthe Act.

[ Withrespect tothe adequacy of the internal linancial controls with reference tofinancial statements ofthe
Company and the operatinge flectiveness ofsuch controls,refer to our se parate Reportin Annexure A

g. Withrespecttotheother matters tobe includedinthe Auditors' Reportinaccordance with Rule | 1 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according tothe explanations given lous:

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2019 on the consolidated financial position of the Group— Refer Note 47 to the consolidated
Ind AS inancial statements.

ii. The Group does not have derivative contracts and in respect of other long-term contracts there are no
material foreseeable losses as at March 31,2018.

ili. There has been nodelay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the HoldingCompany duringthe yearended March 31,2019,

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Holding Com pany
for the yearended March 31,2019

(h) withrespecttothe matter tobeincludedin the Auditors' Reportunder Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is notin excess ofthe
limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by
us.

ForH.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C
SD/-

(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162
Date:24.09.2019
Place-Jaipur
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in para () of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent Auditor's
Report of even date to the members of MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED on the consolidated linancial
statements lor the year ended March 31,2019,

Reportonthe InternalFinancial Controls under Qause (i) ofSub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Act

I. Inconjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements ofthe Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED (hereinafier referred to as "the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary companies, its associale companies and jointly controlled companies, which are companies
incorporated in India,asofthat date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies and jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ofits business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financialinformation,as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™ and the Standards on
Auditing deemed tobe prescribed under Section 143(10) ofthe Acttothe extent applicable toanauditof
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by
the ICAL Those standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethicalrequirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal [inancial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of internal
financial controls system over financialreportingand their operating e ffectiveness. Qur auditofinternal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal linancial
controls over linancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluatingihe design and operating effectiveness ofinternal financialcontrolbased on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether duetofraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our auditopinion onthe Company's internal financial controls system over financialreporting.

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A Company's internal financial control over flinancial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1} pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financialstatements inaccordance with
senerally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3)
providereasonable assurance regarding preventionor timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use
ordisposition of the company's assetsthat could have amateriale ffect on the financialstate ments.

InherentLimitations ofInternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal inancial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
erroror fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,projections ofany evaluation ofthe internal (inancial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policesor procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls systems over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over linancial reporting
were operaling e [fectively as at March 31,2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants oflndia.

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C
SD/-

(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162

Date: 24092019
Place:Jaipur
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MAYLUR LEATHER PFRODUSTH LTD
CIN: L131250T1 98TPFLOGOARAS
CORBOLIDATED BALANCE AHERET AR AT JLlst Muinh 2019
(Aot In R}
Parbod Fots o Ax On I':::.I'::I;anr Mt!n!*:fm!w“r
(1) ANSETS
NOon-OnITent Lassta

[a} Property, Plant and Equprasnt Eim) 38,215 7703 A2 (A2 306 30

[} Cerprital Wetl-1t Divptiva Sk} BT, 504,00 AZT S04.00

[c ] Intengible asscts 5 1,682 445,00 1,862 44800

[d) Finanoisl Amas=ts

I} Inveatnoents i) 3,302, 698.37 17415000
(i) Crther financisl msasts [ 3, TE0,607.40 3,134, 45040

[a) Dafierred tax assete (net) - 155, 17864

[f} Crther Mom furrent Asmests 10 15,296,117 63 16,401 407 34
Corract asseta

la} mventores 11 A%, A, 0] 0.4 A7 406 G923, 76

[5] Finanoisl Ana=ts

I} Trade recelvables 12 17,085,231 4.52 44 2E9,290.18
i) Canh anrl cash equivelentm 13 A,076,683.00 1,481 ,BA4 6B
{iif] Bank balances ciher than {if} abeve 14 B79,087.7T5 w34 265,75
{v] Loana & Advences 154 9 BT, 13E6.00 B1,927,135.008
Iv] Oibers cltvenl Hiadslal asaols 158 4, 145,839.08 8,282 283 63

[} Charrent Tax Asects [Het)

[d) Other ourreot assals 16 17, 711,57¥5. 3L 20,887 855.67
Total Assats Sl 11, T48.T1 ST, Tod, 56426
[FEQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Equity

[a} Equity Share capltal 17 42 581 ATE.00 42 @l ATH.00

[ Cther Bauity 13 2E480,712.53 47 B0 AT 84

50,044, 18883 B0, 101,845,584

(¢} Non—controlling Imierest 18,.456850,571.59 19,845 028,57
LIABILITIES
Noo-rmrreot Habilibee

[a} Fitancial Liskdlitas

M Poxrowings 1w 5,084 450,32 &, RF5 583,00

[5] Draferrad tax liabdlitiss (MNet) a0 1,537 07234 1,34368,823.43

[c) Crther Mon Carrent Ldakilides
Corraet HahiHtbns

[a} Fliancial Tiabdiities

! Borrowings g1 80,0020, 231 54 B2 58373200
{il) Teads payablas 23 8,540, 19848 8,435, 027 14
(1] tther finsncel Habilldes 23 451, 02200 TA8,E37.00

[5] Other ourreot Labilities a4 o8.853. 27818 A7 S84 337.30

[c} Frovisiona 25 THE 55200 1,202 13907

[d] Camrent Tax Lichilitiea {Met]

Total Equity and Liakiltias S31,911,T456.7T1 ITE, 796, 882,23

Bas ascompanying modsas to  thae

L s e
As par Our Ssparate report of sren dace attached.

S S - 2D )-
|RE. FODDAR AMITA PODDAR For H.C. GARG b COMNPANT
(VB & Drireetar} {Chairpereon & Dirzetor) CHARTERED ACCOTNTAMS
DI Mo.: 03143571 DN No.: 0143484 FEHN: D1 530

B/ - B0/ - 80/-
LAk hileoh Poddoar Heeno Lalhoari hMadhuikmr Borg
(Cldat Finanedal Oficer] [Cotpatyy Bectetats) Proqprlator

M. No, Acs BX276 Wl Mo, FFO16G2

|Flaca: Jaipner
|Daus: 24 0w /2019

34" ANNUAL REFOHAT 2018-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

MAYUR LEATHER PROCULCTS LTD.
IS0 9041 2008 Cardfled Star Export Housa

BAYTR LEATHER FRODUCTE LIMITED. JALFUR

CIN: L1S1ZYES 19 7FLCOIE NS

BTATEMENT OF DONSOLIDATED FROFIT & LOER FOE THE YEAR ENDED 31at March, 2019

Far the year snded 31-

Far tha year sndad 31-

bt o 033015 [INIY AR IA01E  [THID AR
L. Beveoue inm opemmtions 25 126,196,401 58 187 802, 050.34
IlI. Cither Ineome a7 17,270, 080.9% 15,210,617.60
|:I:I:I:. ‘Toinl Revenue {1 +I) 143 45405,402. 55 203,113,578, 24
3 |

|Ennt of materiale conmamed a8 B4, 196,664,258 138478,217.84
[Pruarchase of Btock-in-Trmde

Changes In Inventories of Anlahed gmoda, work-ln-

a aned Brock-fn-Trade 25 2,374,043.33 5,271,315.37
Emplomyes foorkoems bensfit expenine 3 37,464,581 .34 46, 380, 892 04
|F‘i-nnn.c= coxte a1 8,056 338,84 8,381, ,681.77
|Dem'=daﬂon and amortizetion cxpeoss ag 4,62, 935.65 B, G0N, 14704
|Dther expenpss 33 29,41% 262,43 AT ,.252,601.84
Tuial Exp-enses [IV] 1&7,207.TAB.TT 231.510,TEE.82

¥. Profit balors sxcaptional & sxt L1 v it &
LA I - IV] -39, TRl 503 1% - i O TS kR
VI, Excwspriiorrual Theina 34 165,430 46 =
VIL. Frofit bafors sastraondlioery b and tax (W - V) =33,%58,7T33.48 - 28,008, 075. 58
V. Extracrdinary ltama
. Peodit hafodrs bax (WL - FII N DAE,TIR.68 -2H MR O7TD.ER
M. Tox SapoTise:
(1] Current teoe 35 - S0, Qe Ch
(3] Daferrad tax 355,425.55 -4, 914, L&
[3} Short/[excess)] provision reversal -¥55,996.07
4] MIAT Credit 228, B4 O0 139 993607
L. Prolt/{Losr) for the period Iom Contloning
parations [OE-X) -23,7E1,097.13 -2E,413,691.76
(X1 Probt/ {Loss) foon Diacmobnuing Opemmbions (T-X) =
DI, Tax Exproscs fogm Digcontiogiog Cpeoabioos =
[MTY. Profit/{Loes) ficm Dlecontiouing Cperatione {After
[Too) (MIL-XITT) -
E¥. Proticf|Loss) for the paclod {EI+XI1V) -24,781,097.13 -ZE&13,5691. 76
Othet Coang Ttsiss
Incomn Tex Efoct
Orther Comprebhasnsire Income, Hat of Toxes
‘Total comprabheosive incoms -39, Tl ,0%7.13 -a%,413,8801. 78
[ACV]. Emttvhiys peet equity slete:
{1} Braiz= -4.93 -5.88
[2] Dilated -2 - A8
For asd on babhalf of the Boand As par Our Svparats ceport of svan date atiached
BOf- B0/ -
E.K. FODDAR AMTTA FODDAR For H.O. GARG & ODMPANTY|
ICED & Dhirector) (Cheirpersnn & Drirectork CTHARTERED ACCOUNTARA
DM Mo, 014357 THI Me.: Q0143485 RN 18I0
8O- 8- 804~
|Alchiloat Poddar Heonp Lakhani Fadbnilear Ghanr
(Chief Fitistacdenl O] [Cotnpety Bectetaty] Pt
M No. Aca 53370 M. No. 70162
Plaes; -Jaipar

|Dat=: 24700 /2019

34’

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

I
MAYUE LEATHEE FRODUCTELTD
CIN: CIS29R TS LC0mEas
ETATEMENT CFF COMNECHIDATELR CSH FLOUW FOR THE YEARE BNOED J0LIW RS
[Arnsnmt iy Eo)
COERENT YEAR EREVIOUS YHAR
FAETICLTLARE Ens-1% HIT-38
DETATLH ARSCHITT TDHTATLE AMOIINT
[, 7, e 1) [T, B0 )
i i
Changrs In rescrees doc o comaaHoation 1,838 gart 1d p.m.mﬁl
Lncrassn i et dhus o i (incnding
Interest) el sfte arlfustment o share bl il
Firumon Cost B IW0336 B BRRLER1 T
Intmres recefred BT A5 D04 755.50
Ditwidend Eeertyed .
Baent Incoone
Lastc /[ Peodit] oo Gallo, wevitbon olif of Plood Anscto - -
T {wHon 4843008 18 B B0E 14708
Dotk e Tan 55475 35
Chymmiting Frofit bt Wy Capitall S gen (L7754, o 3 (3 583,90 N0}
o ot frore
Thwreas ! {[1ecrvaee] 0 Trucks arsd Civer Payubily [EF15908.71) o7 A58 400,04
e Dvecrenoes in Trade i siiver Recsimble A8 HMLAT L8567, BE}
[Fnenrosc] Therreaae iy Faenbony AT P T A
Cosh L d From Cperathons. 3,2 A A3 S A 5
Tjpoac- T PRI -
Mt Cand FlorgTuoed] Pro Orpomiting Actiriies p Y L0089, 5F A0
B CAEH BLOW m;m(mmnm —
Purcheac of Blecd Amefs (BT BT 14y 2315887186
1 1n oty Bamk Balomog 55,2080 0 [REA T
Purchsp ¢ Gl of Troobmynt of st funds [T50.486, 35, [T T}
Ircwesnaf Deorens i vahes off neeeboemt da b fr vahestion - Lo, 200 HT}
Increens Dheorense in ofbyer ooncoorrent finumclsl ssets A5 EnD M (B 555, T
Inoreese/ Dreonesre in ofher ooocomrent asets 175089 71 [1 A5 8 T
Inirrrat porckeod BT AT A A, TR By
Tivldd B T
Bant Tncoane -
ot Sl FlovgTweed] in rmaghing Actimiiies 115, 5 {265, T, LOF.TS
| CARH FLAW PROM FINANSTNG ACTIVITIES
Frourement o Boemeis LT 522 657 TASATL0
Trwtatbie Hy ooty clufec bl - 93015
Lriarasd paid [ [F3LEM 77}
et Canl Flirng | Bram P g Activitien =5 350 1LY =400 HTRES
[ Fiet e Decrmency i Cach s Cooh Eivalers YTV BV
Cpandng kak F Ol il by B | bk 1,487, . 55 6,138 45053
it Dl oy o S, el oo el wd ek FR 308 1 AT 344,57
1| Crsh wreef Tl Firperiond sin wof Folbenwing:
Crah an Fond 2B A0k o8 TTLEO.0H
B L2 Paratt TR ki ST, L] T,13%.51
‘Clowingy halanon of Cash and Cash Equial ottt ) 14AR1 810
| 2| Flow s been propamed wmeba meivect methosd an st ot n (T A5
|_3|Frewicna Yencs. huree been rheoerer -t enerfirm b the e ey’
Fer el oo babalt af the Bosrd Aa pur {tur Buparata remort af wves duts whtsehed,
- any- I
E.E. PODLDAR AMITA POCDAR For O, GARG B COMPANT|
[CED & Drrector] {Chalrparson & Director] CHEARTERED ACCOTETATE
DIN Roo BI1a35T1 DDA No.! 190385 WEINr DN LA
a0 fs a0/= B =
Akhllegh Pofddar Hetng Lakmoni Bfa| hylonF AR
[Chinf Fineoecial CHfecer] Hrmrpany Becretarry Propristor
Hare: Jalpur M.Ma. Ace 3357 B Ho. 070163
Tinies 34./09/301%

34" ANNUAL REFOHAT 2018-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

MAYUR LEATHER PROCULCTS LTD.
IS0 9041 2008 Cardfled Star Export Housa

MLAYUR LEATHER FRODUCTE LTR
PINE LSS I COR
STATENENT OF CONFOUIT:ATER CAFH TLOW FOIE THE YLAR ENDITD HALATS
Kquity Ehars Cupitel
haagos i oyl share CoTesppy =
Dulenca x thw begluring o the repezting pariod : ;"‘“ml"l';“ s
AEEB A TN - 42,541 476,00
OTHER EQUITY
Partivalany Goaomd sz Buglu P e aree | Gt Comprobeastyy noom= | Total
[T —— 17, L70,000.00 B RET,ETLAT AT 0 3,907,200 17
p——— 28,541 54,20 0,041,544, 25
IndAS Adjuzstment LABIELA T T
Audd: [namewticed Tomanction Cost B4 Bad.x] B, BE0.08
Leasc Amrtivation of Leasehald It 50, 766.00 [ soesce
BdA: [niteise in Valns of liwestent du t G vk 156,220.04 166,320.00
Lesw: Deeferoed Tox Linklitty £2,08L57 42,087
Lees: Berlt of Suhaiary §54, 322,00 S54,90.00
Lo Eewalyetion: of brestment, [Cocuiclersd iz Mel) 758,045, 54 e
Leass Share of Mayur (ehal In CP of Leather 11,467,068.92 ITAST 88103
Lok Shate of Myt Ghihal 11 B of Lenties -B,T13 [YI6.6 BRI 0EAT
1 Share o Revenas Proft of Wapar Global Fet, Lid. 4,090,099, 16 4,080,099, 15
8 Capital Rsperva e brstmant 5, 148,342,84 6,148,245 4%
Balanos 12 aF 51nt Macch, 201K 17, 170,006 TAATOEH3T AT S0 T S0 ATEAT
Profit far the year 33,781 7.1 43,781 097.13
IAS Mdjuriment :
Rl Faaneertized ‘Tesmeactionn Coet
Lesw: Amrtization of Leswehold I
il Increase i Valus of rsstmant dus otk vaku
Lo Dierrad T Linklitty ;
Leass Bralr of Subsidlary 1,458, 74251 -LASBMO51
Lok Rrewa it tof Howsrt ottt (Cicaieond, 0 Dist) ;
Leasc Bhuare of Mayur Cebal L CP f Lowter .
Loet: Shere of Mapte Olehel [n BF of Lastiar 3,840,200 29 3,940.204.80
ik: B i Reveruee Profit of by Slebal Prk, L 1,294, 125,53 -1,294,125.89
hildd; Caphtnl reaarve arise doring the pear LS5e1T24
Balance 1s nt Mared 31, 2014 17, L70,000.00 4 583310.17 | BANTIZE
For ncl on bekalf of the Board s pir O Bagaraby repert of v dabs rtinched.
8O- 8O-
RE FIDDAR AMITA FULNDAR Far B.0. ARG b COMPART
{CEC & Cirevtor) (Chaiceemra & Dinveirn} CHARTERED ACCOUNTANY
LN He: 00143571 DIV Heo.: 00143468 Y. 0001EC
&ny- &ny- 80/-
Aldrilesh Fodr Hieow Laldharsi Bndhalowr Gary
{Chlaf Finautcal {MBzer] [Contpany Sarretaryy Fropeipine
My, hew S9I70 b B, DTLE
Flace: Jodpur
Diate: 34/09/201¢

34" ANNUAL REPORT 20158-2019




PDF Compressor Free Version

2.2

MAYLUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
D50 49001: 2008 Certilad Star Expart Housae

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Mayur Leather Products Limited (the Company) is a publicly held Company
incorporated on 13th March 1987. The registered office of the Companyis located at G-
60-62 & 67-69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaitpura, Jaipur-303704. The company is
engaged in the manufacturing and export of Leather Shoes and Shoe Uppers. The
majority sales of the Company comprises of exports. The Company is engaged in
production of industrial shoe / uppers segment both internationally and in the
domestic market. The Equity Shares of the Company are presently listed with the
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The company has a holding of 52% in its
subsidiary Mayur Global which is engaged in the same line of business.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ASSUMPTIONS AND NOTES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Ministry of corporate affairs has notified roadmap to implement IND AS notified under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2016. And according to the said roadmap the
company is required to apply IND AS in preparation of financial statement from the
financial year beginning from 1stApril 2017.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred toas the

'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2016 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as
at 1st April, 2016 being the date of transition to Ind AS. The financial statements of the
Parent Company, its subsidiary have been consolidated using uniform accounting
policies

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an
entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the group. The group combines the financial statements of
the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group. Non-
controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in
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equity and balance sheet respectively.
Associates

Associates are all entities over which the company has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group's share of other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amountof theinvestment.

When the group's share oflosses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalfof the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated tothe extent of the group's interest in these entities. Unrealised
losses are alsoeliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed wherenecessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Use of estimates, assum ption and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. Actual results could vary from these estimates. The
estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer Notes on critical
accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements). The management believes that
the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements comprising of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in
equity,Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow together with notes comprising a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the
year ended 31st March 2019 and comparative information in respect of the preceding
period and Balance Sheet as on transition date, ie. 1st April 2016 have been prepared
in accordance with IND AS as notified and duly approved by the Board of Directors,
along with proper explanation for material departures.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Measurement
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under
the historical cost convention except following which have been measured at fair value:

a
b

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

(a)
(b)
(c)

Financial assets and liabilities except those carried at amortised cost

Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value less present value of
defined obligations

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position
based on current/non-currentclassification

The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity,
non-current liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule III,
Division Il of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.

An asset is classified as current when itis:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle,

Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

Expected tobe realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settlea
liability for at least twelve months after thereporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

Aliability is classified as current when it is:

Expected tobe settled in normal operating cycle,

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency.

Inventories

a.

Raw Material :

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at cost or landed value
whichever is lower. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of
raw materials, components, stores and spares is determined on FIFO basis.

Finished goods & work in progress:

Work in progress is valued atcost
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Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a portion of manufacturing overhead based on normal
operating capacity.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the method as prescribed in IND AS 7 'Statement of Cash
flows', where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or financial cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company

are segregated.

Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors include omissions and misstatements arising from a failure to use
reliable information that was available or could have been obtained when financial
statements for those periods were approved for issue.

Prior period errors relating to thelast comparative period will be shown byrestating the
comparative figures of Balance sheet and Profit and loss, wherever necessary. Thus, it

will be disclosed in the comparative financial statements as if the error had not even
occurred.

And if the item relates to earlier financial years(FY 15-16 or before), then it will be
adjusted from the asset/liability and retained earnings of the last comparative period
shown(FY 16-17).

Revenue recognition and other income

a. Revenue onsale of products

The Company recognise revenues on accrual basis and measured it at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts, volume rebates, GST.
Revenue is shown inclusive of excise duty since excise duty is liability of the
manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the
goods aresold ornot.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Export sale has been recognised at the time of removal of goods from factory at invoice
value (whether FOB or CIF) on the basis of exchange rates declared by Custom
Department for that particular month.

Nosignificant financing component exists in the sales.
b. Revenue from services (Job Charges Received):

Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
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c¢. Export Benefits:

Export benefits in the form of Duty Drawback, Duty Entitlement Pass Book (DEPB) and
other schemes are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of exports made
and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the
relevant export proceeds.

Otherincome
a. Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

b. Dividend

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive dividend is established.

C. Lease Rent

Lease Rent is recognized as income in the Statement of profit and loss on accrual basis
i.e. as and when lease rentis due.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to
others, or for administrative purposes; and

(b) areexpectedtobeused during more than one period.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are
recognised in accordance with this Ind AS when they meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

Initial recognition: The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of
considering the carrying cost on the transition dateie. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost
under IND AS.The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly atiributable costs of
bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

Subsequent expenses and recognition: Expenditure incurred after the property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
normally charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are
incurred. Subsequently Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmentlosses, ifany.

Gain/loss on disposal: The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference beiween the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.
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Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipments except free hold land is depreciated on
Straight Line Method in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013. Depreciation on additions and deletion during the year has been provided on
pro-data basis with refernce to the month of addition and deletion.

Capital work in progress

The expenses relating to the construction of building is capitalised at the time when
they are incurred. And when the asset would be completed, the same shall be
transferred to asseta/c.

Leases

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the excepted
inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheetbased on theirnature.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless either (a) another systematic
basis is more represantative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis, or (b) the payments to the lessor are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. In the event that lease premiums are paid
to enter into operating leases, such premiums are recognised as a prepaid expenditure
and amortised over the period oflease.

Financial lease transactions entered are considered as financial arrangements and the
leased assets are capitalised on an amount equal to the present value of future lease
payments and corresponding amount is recognised as a liability. The lease paymentis
made are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of outstanding liability in
relation to leased asset.

Leasehold land has been amortised over the remaining period oflease term.
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebates less accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if
any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly
attributable to bringing the asset toits working condition for the intended use.

4.10 Investments in Subsidiary

The Company has invested in shaers of its subsidiary Mayur Global Private Limited of
whose 52.15% shares are in hand of Mayur Leathers Product Limited.

4.11 Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured
at amortised cost. Transaction cost is amortized over the period of Borrowing using
straightline method

4.12 Employee retirement benefits

a.  Short -term Employee Benefits:-
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All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in
which the employee renders the related services

The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability after deducting any
amountalready paid.

b. Post-employment Benefits:-

(a) Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to superannuation fund is recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss as it is incurred. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective trust. Eligible
employees receive benefits from a provident fund which is a defined contribution plan.
Both the eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the
provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary.

4.13 Earnings per share

o Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable
to the shareholders' and weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.

o Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year
attributable to the shareholder and weighted average number of equity and
potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the result
would be an ti-dilutive.

4. 14 Impairment of assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are
indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use). The carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an
impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any impairment gain loss is
transfarred to profit and loss.

4.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised
when thereis a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it
is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but disclosed in the notes. Contigent assets is neither recongnised nor
disclosed in the finan cial statement.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

] Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
equivalent period government securities interest rate.
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Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Contingencies

o  Contingentliabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where
it is either not probable that an outflowof resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent
liabilities is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

o  Contingent assets are not recognised in the books of the accounts and are not
disclosed in the notes. However, when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, butitis recognised
as an asset and the corresponding income is booked in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

4.16 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicableincome tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused taxlosses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are excepted to apply when the related defferred income tax assets is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the
Company has a legally forceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or torealize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax creditis recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer
a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normalincome tax during

the specified period.
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4.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, deposits held at call with
banks.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of
cash and short term deposits, having maturity less than 3 months.

Other bank balances include FDRs with the government department which are not
readily available.

4.18 Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and
impairment
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial lability or equity instrument of anoth er entity.

a. Financial Assets

Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit or Loss, depending on the
judgment of the management for managing those financial assets and the assets’
contiractual cash flow characteristics.

o Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial
categorisation. For impairment purposes, financial assets are assessed
individually.

b De-recognition of financial Asset

A financial asset is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

] The Companyhas transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay toa
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset. When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extentit has retained therisks and rewards of ownership.

c Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables:

o A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect to the amount due
from customers on account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, less expected credit loss ifany.

] Impairment is made for the expected credit losses. The estimated impairment
losses are presented as a deduction from the value of trade receivables and the
impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Other

expenses'.
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0  Subsequent changes in assessment of impairment are recognised in ECL and the
change in impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under "Other Expenses'.

] Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by
reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under"Other Expenses".

] Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to "Other
Income'".

e Investments in Equity Instruments

Investments in Equity Instruments have been valued at their fair values through
Profit and Loss account, as on the closing date. The fair value has been taken from
the stock exchange where theshares are listed.

 § Financialliabilities

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than those valued at fair value

through profit and loss are recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are
directly related to the issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading. The Company has not designated any financial labilities upon initial
measurement recognition atfair value through profit or loss.

g Trade and other payables

A payableis classified as 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account
of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These
amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

4.19 Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally recorded at the exchange
rate prevailing at the time of transaction.

Monetary itemms denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not covered by
forward exchange contracts are translated at the year end rates and those covered by
forward contracts are restated at each reporting date by using spot rate and exchange
rate difference was booked. Corresponding Forward Contract Receivable & Payable is
also booked in books of account taken on such forward contracts. The Exchange rate
difference on Forward Contract was charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. Premium
paid on such Forward Contract is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on periodic
basis.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not covered by
forward exchange contracts are translated at the year end spot rates and those covered
by forward contracts are restated at each reporting date by using forward rate for
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remaining period prevailing on the reporting date and exchange rate difference was
booked. The Exchange rate difference on Forward Contract was charged to Statement

of Profit & Loss, since Fair Value Model has been adopted by the Comapany.
4.20 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any resulting impairment loss is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. On classification as held for sale the assets are no
lon ger depreciated.

4.21 Segment reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on nature of products and returns

and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are
the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which
operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the managing board in
deciding how to allocateresources and in assessing performance.

4.22 Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance thatthe grant will be received and the Company will comply with allattached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of
Consolidated Profitand Loss on a straight - line basis over the expected lives of related
assets and presented within other income.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENT S

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical
experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectation of future
events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances.
Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which
the results are known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events that existed as at the reporting
date, or that which occured after the date but provide additional evidence about the
conditions existing at the reporting date.

a Property, plantand equipment

] Management assesses the remaining useful lives and residual value of property,
plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and
residual valueare reasonable.

b Income taxes

o Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income
taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

] The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred
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tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could
lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements.
c Contingencies
0 Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of

resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy.

Impairment of accounts receivable and advances

Trade receivables carry interest and are stated at their fair value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for expected creditlosses. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is
recognised for the expected creditlosses.

Discounting of Security deposit, and otherlong term liabilities

For majority of the security deposits received, the timing of outflow, as mentioned
in the underlying contracts, is not substantially long enough to discount. The
treatment would not provide any meaningful information and would have no
material impact on the financial statements.
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Note 7 Froperty, Plant & Equipmemt
As On 3170372019 [Aw per | As Om I1L/03/2018 (As per
8.Ho. Desaription IND AS)| IND AS)
TANGIBLE ABBETS
1 Land - -
2 Building 11,555,431.48 12,142,290.18
a Furniturs & Fhmares 85,459 97 1,043,435 49
L] Lahoratory Equipments 375,614.53 4352, 808.33
L) Flant & Machinery 18,219,455.22 20,445,958.09
& Ciifice Equipments 26243253 354,420,586
T Electric Instellation 213,840.00 250,746 .00
8 Diegel & Ganerator Set 237,030, B2 256,70 00
] Computer 188, 380,535 237 660,08
{4} Motor Yehicle 3,837 47274 4,339,215.60
i1 Bhoe Laat 214,320,065 156,870, 14
13 Dey 181,145,537 187,396,482
13 |[Moulds 1,484,073.81 1,549,383.54
Restamant -
14 Compiter 13,017.50 13,017 .50
15 Electie Fittinga 123,2B2.059 216,288.7%
16 Furniture & Fixtares 333,01045 334,881.71
i7 Oifiee Equipiments 114,770,483 114,122.36
TOTAL 38,213, 77R.043 42,082 206,35
Note-8 |Investmenta
An On 317/037201% [As per | As Oun 31/03/2018 A= per
IND AB| IND &8)
B.No. Description
[ Equity shares in Mayor SHobal Private Litadied -
| 10,0000 shares at the tate Be, 10/- cach ]
b Ivestment in Mutual Funda 3,332,645.37 3,174,160.00
TOTAL 3,302,645.27 3,174, 160.00
Noke-9 |Other Mom-Current Financisl Azsets
Am On 31703/201% (As per | As Onm 31/03/2018 {Ax per
IND AB| IND &B)
B.Ho. Description
1 Becurity Deposit with Parties 2,490,331 .40 22759,611.40
2 Dreposit with Jwvml 308,218.00 622,800.00
3 Dreposit with Waber connection 1,440.00 1,440,080
& Security agalnst Bank guerantes with Canara Bank - LR ER Y
. Creponit with Sales tax Department 30,6158.00 a0,618.03
TOTAL 2,780, 607.40 3,134 459,40
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Note-10 Other Hon Cnrrent Asest
Az On 317032019 A per | As Om 3170372018 (&s per
THD AS) IND A}
8.Ho. Dezaripton
1 Unameortized Proceesing Charges 74,541.56 67,147.78
Becurity Depoait with Parties - -
] Lesse Propayment 15,151, 576.Q7 15,334 254 56
TOTAL 18,936 117.53 18,401 407.34
Hote-11 |Inventories
An On 3170372019 jAs per | As Om 3170372018 (As per
IND AB) IND AB)
A.Na. Duseription
1 Faw Materlal 14,8871 577.00 16,608,217.00
-] York In procass B,&30,072.00 11,025,231.00
a Finizhad Goods 8,793,361.43 B8, 77214575
82,308,010.43 57.405,693.75
(Refer Note 42 of accounting policy for valuation policy of inventories)
Hota-13 |Trads Recalvable
An On 3170373019 {As per | As Om 317037018 (An per
IND AB) IND: AB)
8.Ho. Desaription
1 Trada Recshveblas 17,0453, 316,62 44 359,291.18
TOTAL 17,063,316.62 44,350 29118
Hote-13 |Cash & Cash BEquoivalent
An On 3170372019 {Ax per | Az Om 3170372018 (As per
IND AS) IND AB)
B.Ho. Descripton
1 Bank Falencs
- In Fizxed Depoait 50,000.00 433,000,040
- In Currand Accaunt and Deposit Account 443 a4% 11 272,133.61
] -Cash on Hamd
In Local Cumency 2,349,973.00 08,343, 00
In Foreign Cummency 233,467.98 233,467.08
TOTAL AT, GES, 00 1,4681.044.83
MHota-14 |Other Bank Balancse
Az On 31/03/2019 jAs per | As Om 3170372018 {is per
IND AS) IND A8}
#A.Na. Theawsrtiption
1 Linpald Dhidend Account ATG 08775 934 268,75
TOTAL BTO.087.7E 934 308.T5
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Nota-15A Loans and Advancas
A Ot 310372019 [As per | As On 3170373018 (As pe
A.No. Dascription IND AB) 1D AR}
1 ADOLF IMPEX D S O
2 Anita Guptz [L] 205 426,00 205 42600
3 ARIHAN BUILDWELL B 500, 00N 00 8,500, 004000
4 ASHOK KUMAR MALHOTRA HUF 2,144,548.00 2,140,548.00
-] DIV REALTORS FYT. LTD. 10,075, 00000
& Goodwill Entarprises 40,220.00
7 H.M.C. SOFTWARE PVT LTD 4,540,061.00 4,54{,061.00
1 Ishwear Singh Verma 120,000, e 120,000 00
o JINDAL BUILDSYS LIMITED 1,829 510.00 1,928, 510.00
10 MECGHNS AGCARWAL 1,1B0,000.00 2,150,000.00
11 MNasl Kamal Textila Miks Pvi Lid. 4. 5543, 000,00
12 Meera) Kumer Baira 1 G0 0. Oy
13 MHIMAI MEDI HEALTHCARE L0 (RO R 1,000,000.00
14 NIMISHA PRASHANT 1 RO (N0 0
15 PROACTIVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PVYT. LTD. 2,500, 00 00
16 Provision For Bed Advancas
17 PUSHKAL INSTITUTE ANIMATION FRIVATE LIMITED SO0,000.00 1,000, 004200
18 Ram Babu Vijay 435,377.00 435,377.00
19 |Ribu Kapur[L 344,000,100 244 000,00
5 SAFETY PROJECTS PWT. LTD. LOAN A 500, 00000 A 504,000,090
21 Shathwet Cables P Lid. 14,003, 000.00
23 BHUBHASHISH IT SERVICES LUMITED 14,375, 000,00 G,450,000.00
a3 SHUBHASHISH REAL ESTATE SERVICES PVT LTD. 25,2043, 00000 26,250,000.00
24 Sunriss INntemational 2,000 D00 00
25 Surya Poles 659,410 G549 414 ()
26 Swastik Pra Stress Indusirias 351,350.00 1,351,250.00
a7 Unliad Prastress Indusirss BOG,B96.00 BO# B96.00
P WIKAS LALIT KUMAR MEHATA LS00 000 00 1,635,000.00
29 HML Software Py Ltd 1,880,082.00
an Jagdish Rai Doda
31  |Seerna Anand Upadinyay 1,847 53400
33 Seema Gupta Upadyay 3,807 041.00
Less: Provision for Daubtful Delits 443, 230,
Total 94 597,135.00 91.927,136.00
Hote-1538 | Othars current Ananclal assats
Aw U J1/D3F2019 (A per | Ax Oo 3170372018 (As par
IND AS) IND AS}
8.Ne. Daacription
&} Ascrued Interest on FDR 134,116.08 535,453.63
b} Accruad Duly Cradit Scrip Z 1,89E,223.00
&} Accrusd subsidy against intarest cost an FDE Limit 108,026 (0 932,212 4}
dl Claim Receivable against Stock - -
e} Accrued [oterest on Loan 3,863 ,697.00 3,686,005.00
f] Income Tax Deposite against Appeal F.Y. 2014-15% 40,000.00 40,000.00
TOTAL 4. 145 83908 6,263 893_63
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Note-16  Other corrent assets
As On 3170312019 (As per | Am On 31/03/20LE [is por
IND AE} IND AE|
8. No. Deacripiing

Accrued Duty Drawback 28,354.00 440,148, 00
Farslgn travalling Advancs = 1,830,996.00
Prepaid Expenees 41,597.00 73,4980

Advancs b Suppliers of Raw Matarlal - -

Advancs o Expansas - -
Advances to Employess & Workers 170,795.00 4H 67800
Advance Incoms Tax & TDS Recalvable 5,135,340.00 5,780,197.00
Income Tex Demand 03-04 04-05 - 1,012,635.00

Exclaa & Sorvies Tex Recabvabla = z
G5T Reclevable 10,963,138.52 12,285, 701.68

Accrued Interest on Loan - -
Leane Pre Puyment 50, 76700 182, 680,80
Unamortized Proceasing E‘{hﬂrges - 17, 73440
Advanee to Harman Sales Pyt Lid. (Sundry Creditora) - L3, 834 00
VAT Revelvables 284.116.7% 6,724,094, 75
‘TS Receivables 721,807.00 703, 35500
Advanee against office Expenses 245 66000 200,000.00

[nterest Recefvablea - -
TOTAL 17,711,575.31 25,957 BE5.67
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Fote-17 Equbty Hhprs pupitsl
An O Am O
i F1/a3/ 2019 alfoafaoia
1 Arthwarieed
548,08, 000 (B8 6, 000] Equity Shores of By, 107 - cach B, 00 (0. ) [B48, CHHC, CHHO. (R
] hewnail & Bubsoriked
48 34, 800 {48,54,800] Equity ahares of Ba. 10 each - 4, 348 D000 <+B 3448, T O
a2 Tald Op
48,34, 800 {4E,34,B001 Bty shates of Bic, 1T sach - 8, 348 00,00 A8, 348, CHHD. ()
[* Aguures in bracket are of Previous Tear)
4 Whrres Forfsited 1,%411,786,00 1,411, 7500
Leww: Shpres held Ty Glghel T,178,310.00 T TR210.00
AEESLATGHO | wd VL AvG00

[m) Enudty Shores | « Tee Comsmmoey hox sme class mf ooty shores ndng o pac vohse of B 10/ per share. Each sharekol derds 28gihle for one vt per share held, The Srldend porog o] Ty
i B & [iraecines 18 @okppect ko b approwsd ofF ths shored ol dera in the soaming Annmal Gemeral Mestin g srcept 1n caes o Lnteris dividsad. n the avsat of ligoidsthen Tha Equily
|nlmrehodiders ore etigihle o recshe the nomein ey oot of the Carpm gy adter didribation of ol preferestia] wmoests, b proporction o telr g oy,

I I Lo | I

] Detalls of Ehuares held by Ehareabwaldecs Bolding meos Lian 5% of the sggragete shaces in tha Conipany H
EALHRLS Rols Wi, of M) % of Stmrrm We. of Mhara % af Mhares
Fugenielrn Eitnar Peidar 1127761000 03.35% 119776100 23,339
Mayur Givbal Private Limdbed T1BZ4 1. 14.51% 1824 1.3 14, 81%
lAmbta Poddar T | 14195 [T | 14, 19%
Alitilesh Poddnr ns&gsn.ml 5.31% 05605000 5.31%
Barlin G 250666, I 6.51% 314B00.008 5,515
Tobal 34811800 2101882.00 TR
[ RummimdHatlnts o the Bl of Boguity Bl
How, Apsoost (Ra.] How

Balane: aa at the beginning of the

4534800.00 AEFARCOD. 0 4B34B00.00
add : Ehares lnoued during the year .00 0.0 .00
Balemos wa at the sod of the year 0L ) A0 3000
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Hote-1B Gther Eguity
A Do F TR
i, I aljoasanle Al o3 2018
Bostin-eis atd ﬁu
1 Guneral Ressrve
At the bepitinihg of the yeat 17, 170,000.00 17, 170,000.00
Add; Addiomnsg du.ﬂnE thie year
Lean: withdrawalsf transfer -
Balaters at the year end 17,170, 000.00 17,170,000,
2 Becurlty Prembum Acconnt 15,879,020.00 15,87%.929.00
a Burpins
At the beginning of the year 14 470,543 84 £1,504,252.70
Add: Pricry year IND A8 Adunatmenta - 111,054.00
Add : Revaluation of sharea
Add: Eevaluation of Imvestment -THR,035.68
Opening Halances of Meyur Leather 23, 54T 2R4 03 B, BBT,27T1.04
Add f [Lens): Additiona during the year -23,781,097.15 -25,413,69L.76
-1/233,6813.21 22 445,67T9.26
Lesst Appropriations
Interim Dividetid on Equity Shares for the Year
Propoeed Dividend on Equity Sheres for the Year
Dividend DHatribution Tex
Income tax Demeand
Profit of Subsidiary 1458, 745,51 B4, 533,00
Interest on DDT {Demand)
Transfer to General Rererve
Revaluation of Iovestment [Conaidered in Net) -758,035.66
Dividend Declared during the Year{2015-16)
Revergel of OTA/DTL
Share of Mayur Global in CP of Leather 17,467 06892 17,467 06892
Bhare of Mayur Global in FP of Leather -12,263,321.51 -8,332,026.63
Other Comprehenaive [ncome
Share in Revermis Profit of Mayur Global Pyt Lid. -5,374,165.04 -4 080,039,186
Capital Reacrve oo Inveatment 6,688,260.61 5,148,342 .46
Halancw st the year sad -5,883,315.17 14,470, 843,94
TOTAL 26,466,712.83 47,620,472.94
Note-19 Non-Current Borrowlng
As OIn Am T
.o, o Yl aL/oarzole 31r03f2018
1 (Canera Banlk-§ Croga gar Loan
a Canara Banl- Flant & Machnery Loao 5,084 480 32 &, 895 983 .00
TOTAL 8,004 460,33 5,899,983.0
Hutors of Securicy and tarms of repaymant for Long Tero sscursd horrowings:
Nature of Security

Tetm loan from bank, balance outstanding amountitag te Ra, 68,599,983 18 accured by way of

mertagage of Plant and Machinery
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Car Logn, balance outatanding amounting to Bs. 2,00,000 iz ascured by way of mortpege of Car  Repayable in 34 quarterly installments
sterting from October, 23017. Last
instellment due in October, 20024, Rate
of intereat 8.85% p.a. aa at year end.

Note-20 Deferred tax lisbilltes Hot)

s On s On
310372019 3170372018
8. Na. Degeription
1 Deferred Tax Lisbilites
Deferred Tax Liabiliti=s 1,537,072.34 1,336,823 43
TOTAL 1,837,072.99 1,336,833.43
Nata-31 Current Borrowings
As Om Az On
310373019 31032018
B.No. Dascription
Waorking Capthtal Losn repayable on demand from
Banks :
Becured
1 Canare Bank - FBD Limit 3, 254,333.00 19,519,730.00
2 Canera Bank - an:]nng credit 21,585,489.00 19,946,344 00
(] Canera Bank - ©C Limit 40,386,450, 40,267,553 .00
4 Addityn Birla Loan 1,734,936,20 1,800, 00000
B Cevern Batik- Car Lean Alte T68,013.68 BA8,205.00
& Canara Bank- Flant & Machnery Loan 1, 800, D CHD. CHY
Unsaouared
T Working Capital Loan from MLPL - 162,000.00
TOTAL 9,529,221 .38 82,853, TaZ.00
Natnra of Sscority and terms of rapaymant for Corrant Borrewing
Nainurs of Becurity

Canare Bank FBD Limit belance mutstanding es co 318t Macch 2018 Ry, 1,95,1%,730, Canam

Bank Pacldng Credht balates outitanding as on 21at Mareh 2018 Bs.1,99 45,244, Canara Intersst FHate @

Bank CC Limit balance sutstanding a2 on 3 1at March 2018 Bs. 4,02,67,533 are secured by 10.5%.

way of Trade Eecelvabler, Mwentories, Plant and Machinery and Building

Note-232 ‘Trade Payables
As On As On
8 No. D It 41/0372019 AL/earaals
For Goodls
Micro, Emall & Medium Enterprises®
Others 6,540, 196,46 2,435,022 94
TOTAL &, 0400, 1946446 8,438,002.54

“The Company has oot recelved any Intlmation  from any of ks suppliers abent thelr having fled @ memorandum in permuance of
Micro, 3mall and Medhom Enterprises Dewvelopment Act, 2006. Hence, the disclesure requirement ufa 23 of MEMED Act, 2006 {3 not

applicable to the Company.
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Hote-33 Other Cozrent Floancial Lishilicles
As Tm As On
8.8, Daseription Al joa 2019 S1/03/2018
1 Chrrent maturities of noo curent bun'mm:g}i -
a Cratstanditng Habllides 491,033.00 746,537.00
3 Honus Payable -
4 Unaeoured Loan Komel Buildeon -
5 Linpaid Dividend S
TOTAL 431,033 0K Tas, 53700
Hote-24 Other Curront Linkdttiss
As On An On
21/0a/3019 AL/Q3f 2B
Descrlption
1 Stadutery Liahilities 14567 ,658.06 6,06,349.15
a Other Linhilites £8,059,812.13 59,828, 862.15
3 Advance from Sundary Debtors 335,809.00 1,749,226.04)
B Intereqt Payable - -
TOTAL B9, 58307019 &T, B84 33730
Nota-28 Pravisloss
As On Am On
21/032019 31/03{2018
#A.Ho. Dasaription
1 Proviaion for [noome Tax - G0, HMLO0
2 Fropoaed Dividend = =
a Diwidend Distribution Tex Feyable - -
& Lesve encashinent payuble 201 ,262.00 201,262.00
5 Bonvs Peyable 329,567.00 230,551.00
& MAT Credit 228 ,864.00 129,926,007
TOTAL TE2,.693.00 1,282, 138.07
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Fots-26 Revenune From Operations

For the period

For the petiod ended

Farticulars endead
31.03.2019 31.03.2018
{a) Bale of products
[i] Export Balex -
Shaocs 40,145,184 .69 JT . B1l,Tod.ak
Upper 5.930,551.21 56,747,610.06
Others 52,237 50 67, 200.0:0
[ii} Tooal Bales -
Shoes 78, 7T53,013.29 TO,721,745.70
Upper - -
5,175,361.93
(&) Other Operating Income -
Duty Drawhaclk -
Shoes 164,814.00 3,394, 653.00
Upper 1,150,601.00 1,656,845.00
Duty Credit Scripts - 2,499 004 .00
Job work charpes received - 589,670.00
Income from Meis - 13R.208.00

Total 126,196,402 187 802,088, 34
Hote-27 Oiher Income
For the pariod
Particulars ended e t::g;“_:‘;dl;"d""‘
31.03.201%
Recovery againey loegs of damaged goode - -
Rent Received|city Office) 101,000.00 -
Rent Received 3,680,280.00 8,795,981.00
Interest on Loan 5.835,397.00 4,102.00
Interest Recodwed 117 .082.00 294 a70.59
Interest onn FDR -280,301.55 -
Freight 225,267.81 30,275.00
Dividend Recejwed - 3,185,175.71
Bervice Tax Refund - -
Exchange Rate Difference 1,520,223.26 137.,820.00
Sorap Salea - -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 326,790.00 -
Rate Difference in Export Material - B8,290.00
Inaurance claim receivable for leat aterial - 156,220.00
Claim for Cuality Difference - -
Digcount Received 1. 879.00 2,403,211.00
Increase in value of Mutual funds 158,486.37 -
Lease Rent - 214,872.20
FPS Licenae Becelved 2,734,020.00
Cthers 50,957.00

Term Loan Subsidy

Miscellenonia Receipt
Revaluaticn of Investment in Equit

¥ ehares -

Total

17,270,050.8%

15,310,617.60
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Fore-2% Cost of Motwsd

al Consmred

Particulars

Cpening Stock

For the pacrioed
wnded
21.03.301%

16,608,217.00

For the perliod ended
21.03.3018

18,108,840.40

Add: Purchase of Rew Material

TO.905,836.81

130, 773.590.14

Add: Frelght

Add: Insurance

2455 B55.48
B8,192.00
29.078,141,.23

5,464,419.30
34 84402
154,471,593 84

Less: Cloalng Stock

14,681,377.00

16,605,217.00

Add: Bxcine Dnaty
‘Toinl

84,196, 564 29

84,1546,564,29

137,863,47T6.64
614,741.00
138,478,217.84

Fote-2¥ Chenoes in ion

rentories of Finished Goods & WP

FPartioninre

Dpaning Tnwantarias
Finlashed Goods

For the period
wade
21.03. 3019

9. 772.145.75

Forx the period endsad
31.03.3018

11,152,715.08

Lans:

Work In progress

Closing Inventories
Finished Gooda

11,025,331.00
20,797,976 TE

B, 793.361.43

14,935,976.94
25, 068,593.03

Q,772,145.73

Work in progiress

8,630,072.00

11,025,331.00

INCREABE S |[DECREADSE)

17 433, 433 43

2,374, 04332

20,797, 476.78

5,271.215.27

Note-3I0 Employvas bedsefite sxcperes

For the period
Partlcolars ondad e i t:: m:ﬂi;“ad
31.03.201L% TR
{i Balaries & Other Allowance 20,113,349.00 232 ,826,445.00
{1i} Conveyance to Employess 27,506 00 42,458 00
(1if) Leave Enceshment 103,684, 00 Z78,048.00
Reimmbursement of Medical
{Iw) Expenaca 1,110, 37600 1,334 753,00
Reimburaetnent of Conveyahoes
v} Expenges F379,286.00 178,000.00
Insuratice Premivm on Medicladnm
{wi} & Oratuity rchetne SFLTGT.00 Fi5,538.00
{vu] Contribution to Provident Funid 477, 314.00 FAG, 533 .00
{wiiid) Placement Charges - -
{1x] Beonua 8594 ,062.00 2,112,551.00
2] Contribution to ERIC F15,873.00 463, 655.00
1] Contribution to Gratuity B83Z,16% 00 177, 7B 00
Insurance Premium Keyman
{acii) Imsurance Policy - =
{aeiii) Staff welfare Expenaea 365,483 00 S56E& B40.18
{2dv] Securlty Charges 41,520, 00 £59,8485.00
{3cv) Cleatiing atd Houss Kespiog 531,259.00 6&I0,957.00
{aovd) Proceasing Charges 11,392 659,39 14,818,07H.86
{ovii) Production Incantivesa 239 074 00 AR1. 183300
(=i} Group mediclaim Insurence preminm - 25,517.00
{adw) Graupr peracnal accldental inauranes 1,250.00 5. 774.00
{2} Madiral Redrn b maest 9B, 238.00 128, 000.00
|:x::l'_i Piorrlcletst Froathed 94 019 00 204 806 00
{2oii) B3I S9,203.00 =
Total 7564, 581.34 446,280,892 .04
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Fioancial sxpemas

Far the poaiod

For the pericd sodwdd

Partdcolars andsd
31,03, 3019 RS0
{i} Bank Chargss 6543,003.24 1,868,699.77
{if) Intereat on O Lirnit 4,627,318.00 3.652,813.00
{111} Intereat on FOB Limit atlised 271,5D04.00 902,325.00
{iw] Interest on Pecldng Croedit 1,3€4,180.00 1,474,463.00
Intetweat o Termm Loty Flat S
1 Machinery 926, 94000 SHE2 004 00
{dl) Pracessing charges of term loan B2 ADR a0 3,792 00
Interest on Loan from meayar
{wii) leathar - -
Intereat on Caasi Capdial Loan
{eAid) from Canara Bank - 97, . 555.00

B, 060,33K. K4

B,3E1,881.77

DEPRECTATION &b AMORTIBRATION EXPFENERS

Particolars

For the pecioad
wnded
S1.038. 01 %

Deprediation on Tangible Arscts

4,842,990, 0

For the period soded
31.03.3018

B BOHS, 14T 5

Oritlaes eacpremes

{a}

Fartloulsrs

MANTITFACTIIRING EXPENERES
Insurance Premivm
[Comprehanplve & Cihera)
Power, Fusl 3 Water

For the periad
snded
821.05.201%

To8,815.00
4,944, 276.00

For the perioed soded
S1.03.3018

15.431.00
304, 500.00

Bepalos s balplsnance 2 =
-Mechinery & Electricals 256&,885.986 417,627.00
-Building 3.,834,625.00 29, 751.00
-Computer & ocffice Egquipment - 3,385.00
-Electyic and Furnitiires &

Fixturcs - 15,385.00
Congimma hile Stores - 11, E22 00
Development /Laboratory 8

teatng - H4,421.00
Development /Laboratory 8 testing 213,885.90 o681, 737.00
Rubber Cesa 3.025.00 30,675.00

Total

2,330, 513.86

S 47T4 . 814.00

{b}

BELLING EXPRENEELE

Dlacount on Sales

Clearing & Forvarding Expeneos
BECGET Prembiarm

Claim for Quality & Renalr
DHecouint on Sales

Cornmndsainn on Sales

TR1,264.47
450,132 &8
84, 166 80
133,116.10
2R OBA OO0

Excharge Rate difference foredgey cfireetawey -16, 135 00

Embasay Leglelationn Chargea
Rate Difference Inter atate Suipehy
Incetitiore Cles meee Fsope

Fraedgiat & Cartage Ouiterared
Ingprection Fes

Ticenee Fee

Bales Praraotian D gey

Zales Cooriondaios

[mliido -t

Landitg/ Tnloading Chedges
Pacleaging Hxjretwe

Tender Applicatian fee

Tratisilt Indwvranees of Material sold

S&,500.00
a_000_ 00

= A0R, 109 3%
1,580 00

&4, 458,00
139,147.00
3,054,510.73
&3,250,00
BEE.00
22,740.00
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&18.00

A 345 00
162,613 00
54 001 00
80,551.00
75,052 00

4 27a 004 54
166700
4% E10 00
TOR, 450,94
1,871,007 66
502,705.00
36, 7FE.00
10,738.00
47,0200
5,0445.00
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Loss on revaluation of investment
in sharea

153891816

Total |A+B+C)

20,419,262.43

Total 8,217,082.10 9,664, T82.62
{e) ADMINIETRATION EXPENSES

Conveyance Expenges 2,036,614.41 -
Factory General Expenaes 16,795.58 317,650.63
Postage & Courier Expenses 292,236.95

RICO Maintenance Charges 01,112.00 210,008.46
Donation 157,100.00 176,401.00
IS0 Expenges 15,000,000 43,314,900
Insurance Premnium [ Vehicle) 212,391.00 a01,857.00
Interest on excise duty = 1,118.00
Interest Payable to others 631.88 2,060.00
Sales Tax - -
Incotne Tax Detnand and Interest an DDT - 1,065,481.00
Secretrial Compliance Expenzes 37,730.00

Payment to Auditors -
-Statutory Audit Fees 478,115.00 -
-Tax Audit = -
-Dther Services - -
Legal & Professional Expenses 1,832 578.75 3,573,474.00
Listlng Feea & Secretarlal Comp. Expenses811,639.50 580,828.45
Membership Fees & subscription 232,427.00 296,865.80
Miscellaneous Expenses 214,336.91 160,695.61
Mizcellaneous Balances Writen (4T 1,367,304.77 52,991.93
Printing and Stationery 151,575.04) 408,837.00
Rent of Facrtory, Building and Odfige - 1,459,029.00
Repairs & Maintenance -General 318,5695.85 S48,598.80
Eepair & Maintenance-Vehicle 235,7835.70 480,832.47
Interest on Vehicle loan 72,B86.00 25,853.00
Telephone and internet Expenses 225,112.96 430,128.97
Service Tex - 42,0132.00
TDS Expenges 29,191.00 F,912.00
Interest on service tax - 361.00
Pooja Expenses 1,100,000

Amortization of Leasehold land 50,76'7.00 3,540.00
Loan Procesaing Fees 5,900.00 400.00
Penualty for Late deposits of returns - -
Interest on excige duty/TDSfincometax/G8T1,727.00 -
Eound OfF 235,79 -
Travelling Expenses -
-Foreign #32,304.00 272,121.00
-Local 450,555.27 551,883.10
Tatal [C) 10,331,749.32 11,153,305.22

27,292,601.84
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Fote-34 Exceptional Items

For the period
Pasticulare endea | e
31.03.2019 iz

Loaz on Sale of Fixed Asgets 0.00
Loss of material in tranait .00
Prior Period Itemsa 165430 46
Losas from Assoclate Company
Mayur Global Pvt. Lid. 0.00
Total 168,430.456 0.00

Note-35 Income Tazx Ezxpenses

Tax expenge recognired in the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars o :l:;::ﬂ“ For:the period anded
31.03.2019 31.03.20138

Curtrent Tax
Provigion for Income Tax {Current
Year) 630,000.G0
Short /[Exceas) Provision for
Incometax of earlier Years
Adjusted
Total 630,000.00
Deferred Taz
Deferred Tax charge/{credit] 355,425.15 444 314,18
Tatal Deferred Income Tax
expenssf{benefit) {444,314.18)
Tax in respect of earlier years -
Total income tax expense 356,426.156 185,685.82
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
36.1 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute

its business strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy is set by the
Managing Board.

36.2 Financialrisk factors

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, borrowings and
other liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage finances for
the Company's operations and also for purchase of capital assets and for safeguarding
its interests under contracts.

The Company has given loans to other parties, trade and other receivables, investments in
equity shares and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from its operations as a
part ofits financial assets,

The Company's activities expose itto a variety of financial risks:
a, Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

b. Interest Rate Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may
result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, payables
and loans and borrowings.

b. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial
instrument or customer contract, leading toa financialloss.

The Company makes major of its sales, either on an advance basis or against credit, and
hence the credit risk is minimal. Financial mstruments like trade receivables are subject
toslight credit risk against which the Company has booked Expected Credit Losses.

The ageing of trade receivables as on 31st March 2019 is as below:

(In Ruppees}
Due upto 36 Due for more
Farticulars Months | than 36 Months Total

Good 17,063,318.62 - 17,063,316.62
Doubtful 179,489.42 179 489,42
Others
Gross 17,063,316 62 179,480.42 17,242 806.04
BExpected Credit Losses 179,480.42 179 489.42
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The ageing of trade receivables as on 31st March 2018 is as below:

(Ir: Ruppees)
) Due upto 36 | Due for more
Baticlars Mouths | than 36 Months Tonl

Good 2,935,546 52 | 41,240 25524 44,179,801.76
Doubtful 179,480.42 179,460.42
Oithers
Gtoss 2,939,546.52 | 41,419,744.66|  44,359,291.18
Expected Credit Losses 179,489.42 179,485.42.

Expected Credit Losses

100% Expected Credit losses are recognised for all financial assets which have become due for
more than 36 months.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation
and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are maintained. The
Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those required for
its day to day operations. The rest amount is deposited in the PD account, with the government,
which can be withdrawn as and when required and on which interest, as fixed by government, is
being received. This PD account is a risk free deposit.
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FairValue Measurement
Financial nstrumentby category and hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade
payables, other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other financial
institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short termm maturities of
these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the
Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of
the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for
expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not
materially different from their carrying amounts.

3.IND AS 101 allows Company to fair value its property, plant and machinery on transition
to IND AS, the Company has fair valued property, plant and equipment, and the fair
valuation is based on deemed cost approach where the existing carrying amounts are
treated as fair values.

The fair values for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows
discounted using a current lending rate.

In case of security deposits, Company has used the fixed deposit rate of the year of making
advance.

They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of
unobservable in puts inclhuding counter party credit risk.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a
current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
due tothe use ofunobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying
amounts are equal to the fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices / published NVA (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities. It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial
instruments like mutual funds for which net assets value (NAV) is published
mutual fund operators at the balance sheet date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). It includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the company
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable then instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that
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is, unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, theinstrument is included in level 3.

Pattienlars As ut 31t March 2019 As at 31ck Murch 2018
Carrying Amourt Fair Valne Carrying Amount Falr Value

Financial Assets designated at

atnortised cont

Trade Receivables 17,063,316.62| 17,063,316.62 44, 359,200,158 | 44,35%,290.18

Cash & Cash Equivalenta 3,955,770.84 3,855, 770.54 241631334 2,416,313.24

Loane and Advances 94,697 ,135.00| o94,697,135.00 91,027, 135.00| 91,927 13800

Cther Financial Asseta | Current

angd non-current] &,926,444,48 6,006, 444,48 0,367, 3632.03 9,397,363.02
Particulara As ut 31st March 2019 As at 31et March 2018

| Carrylng Amount Falr Valae Carrying Amonnt Fair Valus

Finamcial Aszots dexipoated at

fair valne thraugh other
comprehensive income _ - - =

Particulors An at 31st March 2019 fAs at 31let March 2018
- Carrying Amount Falr Valne Carryilng Amount Falr Valus
Financial Assetx designated nt
foir valne through profit and
loas
Mutual Funds 3,232,646.37 3,332 ,646.37 3,174, 160.00|  3,174,160.00
Particulars As at 31st March 2019 An at 31st March 2018

Carrying Ameounat Faiz Value Carrping Amesnnk Fair Value

Financial Liobilities designated

ot amortised cost

Borrowings {Hon-Current and

Current) 75,023,682.20| 75,023,682.20 8%,463,715.00| 89463 715.00

Tracde Payables &,540,196.46 6,540,196.46 8,435,022.94| §435022.594

Othar Financlal Liabilities 451 023.00 491,023.00 746,537.00 746,537.00
Particulara As at 21st Marsh 2019 As at 3lst March Z018

Carrying Amount Falr Valoe Carryilng Amonnt Falr Value

Financiel Liabilities designated
at amortiaed cost at fadr valoe
throngh profit and loss " L N L
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3% FAIR VALUE HEIRARCHY

The following table promides the falr valus messursment hierarchy of Comparayrs asset and Habilitlen, greuped intn Lewel 1 o Level
3 a8 described below:

a Quoted prices)publizhed NAY (funedjusted) in sctive marketz for identical assets or liabiliies (lewel 1}. It inchades fair value of
finotirial ingtesments traded in actve markets atd are based on quoted market prices at the balanes sheet date,

br [oprirts other than quoted pelees choded within level 1 that are obscivable for the asset o Debillty, efther directly [that Is, as
prices| or indirectly fthat is, derived from prices] {level 2). It includes fair value of the financizl instuments that are not waded in
ant active market (for exmmple, mterest free security deposits) is determined by uesing velnstion techniques. These valuation
techiyiques maximise the nse of chaervable market dats whers it is avadlable and rely ag Httle as pogsible on the compaty specifie
catimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value en Instrument are observable then inabrument is included in level 2.

[+ [ypurts G the asset of Dability that ave not based on obwetvable medket deds fthat 1o, unobaervable ngaats) (evel 33, I one or meare
of the significant imparts is not bassd on observable market data, the ingtument is inchuded in level 3.

Fadr Valwe of Fleancial Assats and Finonciel Liebhllitiss accountsd for in the Standadons Financial Stabements s on the

reporting date of the extiy

(In Ruppees]

&a ot J1st March 3019
Parteulars Lowed 1 Lyl 3 Lewel 3
Finsnecisl Assets
Trade Receivablea 17,063,316.62
Cash & Cash Equivelenty 3,076, 682,09
Orther Financial Assets 7,736, 446,48
Investmants 3,332,646.37
Finaneial Liebilitiss
Berrrwings (Non-Current and Current} T5,023,682.20
“Trace Payahles 5,540, 196,46
(et Fitvarncdal Liakdlites 481 033.00
Az nt 31st March 3018

Particnlars Lavel 1 Lerel 3 Lewel 3
Finencial Assets
‘'eade Receivables 44,350,290.18
Cash & Coaah Equivalsnts 1,481,344.59
Other Financial Asscts 102,258 866.T8
[oveatments 3,174, 160.00
Finsncisl Liabilites
Berrowings (Non-Current and Cutrant) 89,463, 715.00
Trade Payablaa 8,435,023 54
Oither Finencial Liabilitisgs T46,537.00

During the year ended March 31, 3018 and March 31, 2019, there were no transfer ints and out of Level 1 fair value
s ireniety.

Following table describes the vabustien techmiques used and key ingita to veluation for level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as at
March 31, 2018 and Mareh 31, 2019, reapectivedy

Particulara Fair Valoe Helrarchy | Valnaton Techndque loputs Used
Financial Azsein
Inveatienta Lewel 1 wted prlcss
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Objective

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximize the
shareholder value. i.e. to provide maximum returns to the shareholders. The Company's
primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum returns to the
shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2019.

Policy
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in

economic conditions and the rules and regulations framed by the G overnment under whose
control the Company operates.

Process
The Company manage its capital by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure
financial ratios, such as net debt-to- equity ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital
structure improvement plan when necessary. Debt-to-equity ratio as of March 31, 2018,
March 31, 2019is as follows:

As on 3lat As on 31st March

Pastioulers March 2019 2018
Total debt 141.,908,180.85 187,357, 77988
Total equity 69,048,188, 83 O0,101,948.594
Ratio 206 208

347 ANNUAL REPOART 2018-2019
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41 Additional ifrmiation av reguired urrder Sohedule N aF ettty consolkdeted dF skl dlary

Mt Asirks La. total saswls Share In Olirer Bhwrw In Total
Hama of Coampamy minus kntal Bablies Bhars In Profiffloan} |comprahansbva Incoms | Comprabsnalvs Incoma
A % of
An % of cormollnsia Az %L of An 5 of
consolidated |Amowrtt [R¥. In|d profit and (Amount (R, |corsolldat [Anrount (s, |consolldat |Armount {PLs.
nat samnis Lakchm} Lonms In Lakina) ad OC1 in Lakha) ad Cl In Lakhs
Pt ©
|M3Er L aathor Produets Lid. T0.335%) api a7 106.13% 252 40 - - 1DB.IMH 252 A
FE.02% 100367 102 3% 280,69 - - 02 Mrsh =290 &8
Subsidinry Company
|Majyur Global Privats Limbted 28875 A7 .41 6138 14 .58 - - & 15%. 14.508 |
23489 J23. 33 =2 0% &.54 - - =, M .54
Tatal 1,130 08 —257 k1 - - 257 51 |
1,370 940 -284. T4 -84 14
|Loea: Adusiment arlalng out of
cormalidation 252,02 - -
2F T4z - -
Total arr.or -237.81 23781
1 {150 i -Zhd 14 -Zhd. 74

Hotaa
1. Parcantage has bewn determined bsfore coneidering greup adjustmentz and intsr Compary sliminelions
2. Tha amaurt In kallea rapresanta presieus yaan figuraa

42  Related Farty TransacHons
In accordence with the requirements of IND» AS 24, name of the related party, related party relationship,
ransachions and cutstanding balances incuding commitments where contral exdts and with whom transactions
have taken place during reported perieds, are reported as under:
(1) Related party name and relationship:

Faxticulare Designation
(a) Executive Directors:
R.E Poddar Director
RV Gupta Dilrector
Arnita Paddar Drector
MLP Kelriwal Independent Director
THwvva Kalra Independent Director
(b} Relatives of Executive Directors with whom tramsactions have taken place:

Panctico Laow Relation
R.E Poddar Director
Akhilesh Poddar Director's Son

Farticnlars Dremignation
hayur Unigouters Lirmited Director's brother's Firm
CLASSIC INTERWATIOMNAL Firm of Directors Brother
STOUT {I.NDIA} INDUSTRIES Firm of Directors Brother
(i) Transsctioms Carried Out With Releted Farlies referred in point 1 above in ordinary course of Bosiness

(Ra. In Amount)
Mature of Transactloits Related Parties
Referred to in Beferred to 1n 1{b) Referred to in 1)
1{a} akawe above alrove

Furchases
Goods & Material
CLASSIC INTERNATIOMAT, 2,037,320.00
STOUT (INDLA)Y INDUSTRIES 2,534,242.00
Mayur Undgeutets Lirmited 1,160,552.00
Sales
Goods & Material & Services
CLASSIC INTERNATIOMAT 2,355,101.00
Mayur Unigoaters Lirmited 76 582 00
Exnployes Buefit Expenises
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The carrying amounts of aszseta Pledged as zsecurity for current and non-current borrowings are:

Asg at 315t March, As at 31st March
i 2019 2018 '
Current Assets
Financial Azusts
Floating Charge
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables 16,511,158.52 46,811,297 38

Fixed Deposit lien by bank againet term lpan

Short Term Loans & advances

Non Fingunelal Assets

Floating Charge

Inventories

3,230,601,043.00

37,405,693.75

Other Current Assets

Totel Current asssts Pledged as security

Non Current Azsets

First Charge

Land

4,802,018.00

4,802,018.00

Building

Furniture, fittings and equipment

Flant and Machinary including Store & Spares

17,850, 666.15

20,114,116.00

Fixed Deposit lien by bank againat term lpan

Others

Total non-current assets Pledged an securlty

Total agsets Pledged as seconrity
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EARNINGS FER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the
computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share:

(in number}

Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended
31% March 2019 31" March 2018

Issued number 4,834,800 4,834,800
equity shares
Potential ~ Equity - .
Shares
Weighted average 4,834,800 4,834,800
shares cutstanding -
Basic and Diluted

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in

Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended
31" March 2019 31™ March 2018

Profit and loss after -23,781,097.13 -28,413,691.76

tax

Profit and loss aftex -23,751,097.13 -28,413,691.76

tax for EPS

Bagic Earnings per -4.92 -5.88

share

Diluted Earnings per 4,96 -a.88

share

The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the

YEear.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS,
after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity.

34" ANNUAL REPORT 20158-2019
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45 Finanelal aved Diorivativas Inshroiesds

Thwe cemrrpatyy havve fsllowibng Roteign cinretry sartdtgs ared expendibures

{Amaunt in Es]
Expenses in foreign curremcy
Particulars Ax at Flgt March, 201% | As at 315t March, 2018
Trasvcibing 825, .00 462 187.00
Claims and Compensations - For quallty and development :
Raw Matzrail Purchase 4,458, 905.00 7542 05900
Membership 18T, 714 00 45,928 00
5, 475,924.00 4,351,170.00
Earning tn Foowlptt Custesicy
{Ammnl in Bg)
ParHiculare Avot Mot March, 2M% | Ag at 3ok March, 28
Export of Goods on FOB Bagis 46,127.973.40 120091771
48,127,973.40 91,200,817.71

Rent Expenses amounting to B, 51.57 Lakhs for Restaurant Activity were not shown as expenres during the Curvent Year 2018

16
15. Thus Ind AS 115 on "Reverue from Contrects with Cus " in mwet cotnplied with,
i Cratuity Liability has been calculated on estimated basis and not a8 per Acturial Valuation which is requied as per Ind A5 19
"Employes Benefits"
The Company has given Loans and Advances amounting to Bs. 869.62 Lars (other than Loans to Subsidiary] out of which
P 86362 Lacs are subject to Confirmation and Reconciliation.
Further the Loans and & Advances given by the Company exceed the Limit specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013
Por and on baholf of the Board Ax pur Dur Suparats raport of sven dutes sttached.
8Dy - 80/ -
R K PODDAR AMITA FODDAR For H.C. GARG & COMPARY
[CEQ & Director] {Chairperson & Director} CHARTERED ACCOURTANG
DIN No.: 00143571 DIN No.: 040143486 FRN: Go01BaC
BD/- BD/- any-
Akhileah Poddar Heena Lakhani Madhukar Garg
[Chief Pinancial Officer) [Company Secretery) Proprictor
M.Ne. Acs 53279 M.No, 070163
Flace: Jalpur

Date: 24/09/2019
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MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
CIN: L19129R.J1987PLCO03889
Reg. Office: G-60-62 & 67-69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaitpura — 303 704, Jaipur [Raj).
Website: www.maywrgroups.com Email Id: mip@Emayurleather.com
Tel No. & Fax: 01423-224303, 01423-224308

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE ELIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE
MEETING HALL

Joint shareholders may cbtain additional alip at the venue of the meeting.

DP ID* [ Master Folio No, |
Client ID*

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER

No. of Share(s} held:

I hereby record my presence at the 342 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Cormnpany held
on Monday, the 18th November, 2019  at G -60-62 & 67 -69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate,
Jaitpurg — 303 704, Jaipur et 02:00 P.M.

Signature of the shareholder or proxy
* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

NOTE: (1) The Proxy in order to be effective ghould be duly stamped, cormnpleted and signed
and must be deposited at the Registered QOffice of the Cormnpany not leas than 438
hours before the time for helding the aforesaid meeting. The Proxy need not be a
member of the Company,
{2) Members holding shares under more than one folio may use photocopy of this Proxy
Form for other folioz. The Company shall provide additional form on request.

34" ANNUAL REFOAT 2018-201
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MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
CIN: L19129RJ1S87PLCO03REG
Reg, Offlce; G-60-62 & 6768, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaifpurg — 302 704, Jaipur (Raj).
Website: www.mayurgroups.com  Email Id: mip@mayurieather.com
Tel No. & Fax: 01423-224303, 01423-324308

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Forsuant to Section 105{6] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19|3] of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rulea, 2014]

NHame of the Memherja)

Registered address

E-mail ID

Folio Ng. / DP ID and Client I}

I/We, being the Metnber(s] of..................... shiares of the above named Company, hereby
appoint

L I s v e i e e R S s
Addreaas, oo L T S S R
BiEnatlre. ooy OF failing him fher

N BTN s T S R S R S R e
2 Vo s by L e et s P e SN e R e R
Signature:........c.cccccevvvimcev e vennneas, OF Tailing him fher

B T . | . 4 =T
Tl B
Signature:.......c.ociiieiinamse an ey ©F Thiling him fher

as myfour proxy to attend and vote, in case of a pell, for mefus and on my/our behalf at the
34> ANNVAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Monday, the 18th Novembher,
2019 at G-60-62 & 67 -69, Jaitpura Industrial Estate, Jaitpura — 303 704, Jaipuar at 02:00
P.M. and at any adjourmment thereof in reapect of auch  resolutionsz and in such manner as

are indicated helow,;
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R;:"' Descripton For* Against*
1. | ADOPTION OF ANNUAL ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS
THEREON FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 o7

MARCH, 2019.

2. | TG APPQINT DIRECTOR IN FLACE OF ME, RAJENDRA
KUMAR PODDAR (DIN: 00143571), WHO RETIRES BY
ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HERSELF
FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

3. | TO AUTHORISE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO
BORROW FUND THROUGH SALE, LEASE OR
MORTGAGE THE ASSET OF THE COMPANY UNDER
SECTION 180 (1) {A} OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
4. | TO CHAGNE IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY WITHIN TIHE SAME STATE

Signed this... da:.ruf T T e PR Pt 1

Signature of sharehulder : Affix

Signature of proxy holder[s] Revenie
Stamp

Note:

This form of Proxy, to be effective, should be deposited at the Registerad Office of the
Compsany not later than FORTY -EIGHT HOURS before the commencement of the
aforesaid meeting,
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